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EREHREE
Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a
total revenue of HK$79,550,000, representing a significant year-
on-year increase of 167%. Such increase was attributable to the
increase in operating income of approximately HK$25,221,000 and
approximately HK$12,057,000 from financial leasing business and
the newly developed big data business respectively, as well as the
increase of approximately HK$8,810,000 in operating income from
Guilin Plaza which had its business operation gradually resume
normal after reopening in November 2017.

In addition to the above mentioned businesses which brought
about new profit contribution and the improvement of the hotel
business from loss following its official reopening, the Group received
other incomes totalling approximately HK$74,771,000 including
the government subsidies for relevant projects in relation to its
development of the industrial park in Danzao. Therefore, the Group
was able to post a net profit of approximately HK$55,815,000 for
the whole year despite the finance costs including the substantial
interest expenses incurred for the development of the industrial
park in Danzao and other projects and investments, representing a
significant increase of 102% as compared to the same period of last
year.

FINANCIAL LEASING BUSINESS

The Group has engaged in the operation and management of
financial leasing business and gradually accumulated related
experience through Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.*, a
25%-owned associate of the Group since 2014. The Group holds
an optimistic view on the prospects of the development of financial
leasing business in China. In 2017, the Group has established
a wholly-owned subsidiary Canton Risen Financial Leasing Co.,
Ltd.* to further develop the financial leasing business, and initially
intends to focus on business areas including public utilities
projects, environmental protection and energy-saving projects, new
energy projects and tele-communication projects. The financial
leasing business recorded an operating income of approximately
HK$25,221,000 and an operating profit of approximately
HK$14,498,000 for the year, which is expected to fuel the Group’s
future earnings growth.
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PROPERTY INVESTMENTS

The Group’s overall rental income in 2018 was approximately
HK$6,780,000, representing an increase of 6% as compared to the
same period last year. As the ancillary facilities enhancement work at
Zhongkong Tower in Foshan was completed, the overall occupancy
rate of Zhongkong Tower increased to 82% and the rental income
for the year amounted to approximately HK$4,756,000, representing
a significant increase of 54% as compared to the same period last
year. As some of the properties of Shantou Commercial Plaza were
sold out during the period, rental income for the year decreased by
11% to approximately HK$1,394,000 as compared to last year. As
most of the properties of Huizhou International Commerce Building
and unit A on the ground floor in Kai Yip Factory Building, San Po
Kong, Hong Kong were sold out in 2017, coupled with the fact that
the remaining properties of Huizhou International Commerce Building
were all sold out at the beginning of the year, the rental income of
Huizhou International Commerce Building and the properties in Hong
Kong for the period significantly decreased by 96% to approximately
HK$14,000 and 55% to approximately HK$616,000, respectively as
compared to the same period last year.

In respect of property sales, the Group completed the disposal of
7 units of Huizhou International Commerce Building and 33 units
of Shantou Commercial Plaza, cashing out a total of approximately
HK$17,100,000 and generating a total gain of approximately
HK$8,238,000 during the period.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated on 16
November 2017, by capitalizing on the Group’s solid position in
the property development and investment segments, the Group will
continue to make use of its accumulated experience in such areas
to establish Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd. (&
HRERRBIEFZRER L T) (“Sino Rock Tyco”), an 80%-owned joint
venture of the Group to develop the industrial park in Danzao Town,
Nanhai District, Foshan City, the PRC, which is designed to house
the main and spare production plants, pilot base, research and
development centre and ancillary facilities for new energy vehicles. It
is expected that the construction of the most areas of the industrial
park will commence in the first half of 2019 and be completed in
2020.
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EREHREE
Chairman’s Statement

WELLNESS ELDERLY CARE BUSINESS

Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive Health Technology Ltd. ( E &
SEEABERNEARAF) (“Guangdong Yibaijian”), a 70%-owned
company of the Group, has completed the whole construction work
and passed the comprehensive system test of smart platform for
management of integrated elderly care services in Nanhai District
(the “Smart Elderly Care Services Platform”), and has commenced
operation. On 4 December 2017, Guangdong Yibaijian won the
tender of the second phase construction of the Smart Elderly Care
Services Platform. As of December 2018, Guangdong Yibaijian
had completed the development, implementation and acceptance
procedures of the project, further optimized the Smart Elderly Care
Services Platform and achieved the IT-based management of the
platform in a more efficient manner. In addition, Guangdong Yibaijian
explored various value-added services for health management, such
as referral and quality supervision of home elderly care services
and relief, endeavouring to diversify sources of operating income.
Meanwhile, by drawing upon the leading role of the platform in
demonstration, the Group has also formulated plans to gradually
expand the coverage of the Smart Elderly Care Services Platform
to other towns in Nanhai District, aiming to develop elderly care
platform projects in the surrounding areas of Foshan and even
within and outside Guangdong Province. At the same time, taking
the Smart Elderly Care Services Platform as a breakthrough point to
enter into the elderly care industry, the Group is currently promoting
it through media in a comprehensive manner to enhance market
awareness, thereby further extending its coverage to other wellness
elderly care services and continuously developing towards the goal
of establishing a 3-tier elderly care system comprising institutes,
communities and households in Nanhai District. As the elderly care
project is still at the initial stage of investment construction and
promotion, it posted an operating income of only approximately
HK$4,406,000, and has yet to generate a net profit for the Group
but recorded a loss of approximately HK$1,165,000.
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BIG DATA BUSINESS

In February of this year, the Group established Guangdong Sinsing
Technology Limited (BR ZE R B R 2 7)) as its wholly-
owned subsidiary in industrial Internet project construction, smart
city construction, big data operation and management and other
businesses. Considerable results have been achieved for the
year, which is evidenced by the inclusion of its “Second-level
Node (Foshan) of the Industrial Internet Identification” into the
industrial Internet Pilot Demonstration Projects for 2018, making
the project the first platform in Foshan which was recognized by
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology as one of the
pilot demonstration projects for the innovative application of identity
analysis and integration for 2018. In addition, the (South China) node
of the Big Data Platform for National Security Industries was officially
launched in 2018, and Alibaba Cloud Innovation Center (Foshan)
publicly attracted the move-in of enterprises at the end of 2018.
During the year, the big data business posted an operating income
of approximately HK$12,057,000 and a gross profit of approximately
HK$782,000, and recorded a slight operating loss of approximately
HK$387,000 as the project is still at the initial stage of investment.

HOTEL BUSINESS

Coffetel Guilin Plaza (“Guilin Plaza”) was under renovation from
March to October in 2017, and resumed normal operation gradually
after reopening in November 2017, thus increasing the operating
income to approximately HK$13,233,000 in the year, up by 199%
from the same period last year. In addition, due to the business
reorganization of Guilin Plaza, the number of hotel rooms was
reduced while the rental area increased, thereby decreasing the
demand for labor and the cost expenses. However, severance
payment of approximately HK$3,555,000 was incurred in the
same period last year. The combined effect of the above resulted
in a decrease of 65% in the operating loss of Guilin Plaza to
approximately HK$6,015,000 in the year as compared to the same
period last year.
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EREHREE
Chairman’s Statement

In order to expand the diversified business related to the hotel
industry, the Group formed China Select Small Hotel Union Limited
(@ 51%-owned subsidiary of the Group) with T-Box Union (China)
Financial Holdings Investments Limited and T-Box Union Investments
Limited on 29 September 2017, in an effort to provide integrated
service in the homestay inn and small hotel industry, including the
provision of quickly-constructed T-BOX® mobile homes with zero-
sewage discharge environmental-friendly systems, direct sales
management software and financing solutions. The Group actively
organised teams during the year for the establishment of Unions
and the promotion of Wechat direct sales tools, which has already
launched direct sales for 1,690 hotels. Meanwhile, two T-BOX
projects and relevant environmental-friendly projects have been
carried out for the implementation of the T-BOX® mobile homes and
discharge environmental-friendly systems in Ranjia Villiage in Gansu
and the Fairy Mountain in Wulong, Chongging, striving to bring
about positive impacts on the diversified development of the the
Company’s hotel-related operations in the context of development of
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area. However, as this
business is still in the initial stage of promotion, an operating loss of
approximately HK$3,642,000 was recorded.

PROFIT FROM INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited (B8 RESXEBR
A @]) (“Changhai Power”), a 32.636%-owned joint venture of the
Group, recorded a cost increase due to the higher coal prices in the
period, but it was offset by the substantial increase in sales volume
of steam as compared to the same period last year. Accordingly, the
operating performance in 2018 still improved with an operating profit
of HK$193,558,000, thus contributing earnings of HK$63,169,000 to
the Group, representing an increase of 7% as compared to last year.

As Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (BERERIGEREGE R
A)), a 25%-owned associate of the Group, changed its accounting
estimation method for provision of impairment by adopting the
prospective application method during the year, the provision for
expected impairment loss allowance amounted to approximately
HK$47,417,000, which resulted in a substantial decrease in
operating profit to approximately HK$39,138,000, contributing a
profit of HK$9,785,000 to the Group, representing a decrease of
41% as compared to the same period last year.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4%t

BERBAERBEZ TLER AEER =T
—tFNLAZT+NLBHEGBE (FE)EHEE
HEZERBERAFMEERERRATMERE
EERBEWHBER AR (AEEFE51%
BRAE) AN ARE RN METEITERME
RAERY RREREHERRAZTEESISK
FHEBRRESNT-BOXOEHEE - BT IE
BHERBERATR - SFEAEBEDEGA
BERK ETEPLERIRMEEHE T AR
BE-MEEHEIAER LF1,690%K ' R
T-BOX®B BEE K5 KEEBERIREZEMRIB R £
HREARNMEERBILZILEHERET W
ET-BOXRAEBRRER  NEFEEBRAE
BEESET ARARBELEEEZ TIEBRES
RIERTE  BRREB T T HEERE -
E i I8 T A B 1R 4078 13,642,0007T ©

BEQNFAREWRS

HREEREEEBERAA ([REEE])
(REEH5532.636% 4 ) B AR EE &
FEMEMT RA B AFRBALHE 225
SAKIE EFMES —E-NFEREEE
BT LA 8275482 F)H 7% 193,558,000
TC RS B R &N J B 863,169,000
TL EEEFIEINT% e

HRERERMERERSR AR (KNERE
Bo5% e ) AFEEE TIREN S EFE
RAERFEBARRBREZETHE HIRE
BV EIB R = 408 47,417,0007T - BEUL
ZREARIE T B ZE48%39,138,0007T * A4
EERERFIU B #9,785,000T L EF
R HRL 2 41% ©



On 28 March 2018, Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage Investments
Holdings Limited (LT EEREEREBFR 2 F) (“Nanhai
Canmanage”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Capital Contribution Agreement with Foshan City Nanhai
District Lianhua Asset Operation & Management Co., Ltd. (f# 1L
MEERHEEELEEEARRAR) (“Nanhai Lianhua”), Guangdong
Nanhai Chemical Factory Co., Ltd. (ERE M St TEMmER A A])
(“Nanhai Chemical”) and Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co.,
Ltd* (BRAHEREABR A A) (“Tiannuo”). Nanhai Canmanage has
agreed to contribute an amount of approximately RMB130,333,000
to the capital of Tiannuo, for 49% of the enlarged equity interests of
Tiannuo and the acquisition of the Guangdong Nanhong Chemical
Co., Ltd. (EREI /L THRE X A) (“Guangdong Nanhong”) by
Tiannuo thereafter. The aforesaid capital contribution agreement
and the relevant transactions as contemplated thereunder had been
approved at the special general meeting of the Company held on
25 May 2018, and the investment in Tiannuo was completed on
20 August 2018. Tiannuo completed the acquisition of Guangdong
Nanhong on 9 October 2018, which will help the Group to improve
its profitability and to explore the potential of the domestic civil
explosive business. It contributed a profit of HK$5,264,000 to the
Group during the year. On 25 March 2019, Nanhai Canmanage
entered into the Capital Injection Agreement with Nanhai Lianhua,
Nanhai Chemical and Tiannuo in relation to the Capital Injection on
the basis of their respective shareholding proportion in Tiannuo.
Pursuant to the Capital Injection Agreement, Nanhai Canmanage
has agreed to inject an amount of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$46,760,000) to the capital of Tiannuo. Upon
completion of the Capital Injection, the percentage shareholding
interest of Nanhai Canmanage, Nanhai Lianhua and Nanhai Chemical
in Tiannuo will remain unchanged at 49%, 2% and 49% respectively.
Further details of the Capital Injection is set out in the Group’s
announcement dated 25 March 2019.
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Chairman’s Statement

FINANCIAL POSITION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total assets of
HK$3,460,537,000 (31 December 2017: HK$2,277,412,000),
total liabilities of HK$2,129,217,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$1,099,553,000), gearing ratio (being total liabilities divided by
total assets) of 61.5% (31 December 2017: 48.3%), net asset of
HK$1,331,320,000 (31 December 2017: HK$1,177,859,000) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company per share of HK58.00
cents (31 December 2017: HK59.58 cents).

The Group had net current assets of HK$212,713,000 (31
December 2017: HK$244,777,000), current ratio (being current
assets divided by current liabilities) of approximately 1.15 times
(31 December 2017: 1.32 times) and cash at bank and on hand of
HK$1,221,671,000 (31 December 2017: HK$886,861,000), which
is sufficient for the capital requirements of future operation and new
projects or business development of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, properties of the Group for
own use and investment, bank deposit and finance lease receivables
with carrying value of approximately HK$899,816,000 were pledged
to banks as the security for the bank borrowings granted to the
Group (31 December 2017: properties of the Group for own use and
investment with carrying value of approximately HK$387,660,000
were pledged to banks).
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s main operating income and costs are denominated
in RMB. In the business operation of the Group, foreign exchange
fluctuation of income and costs would be mutually offset. However,
as the Hong Kong-based Group has invested substantial borrowings
into domestic wholly-owned subsidiaries in the Mainland whilst
owning substantial RMB-denominated monetary assets, an
exchange gain or loss will be recorded due to the appreciation or
depreciation of RMB. It is expected that an increase or a decrease of
approximately HK$8,104,000 in the Group’s profit for the year would
be resulted if the exchange rate of RMB to HK dollars appreciates
or depreciates by 5%. Over the past years, RMB constantly showed
an upward trend and gradually became stable in the second half of
2008. Nevertheless, RMB started to fluctuate upward and downward
repeatedly in recent years. With the Sino-US trade war during this
year, the exchange rate of RMB against USD dropped sharply.
As the Group had invested registered capital of US$70,000,000
into Sino Rock Tyco at the end of last year and the amount had
not been exchanged into RMB then, the Group converted most of
this amount from USD to RMB when the exchange rate of RMB
became relatively stable during the second half of the year, which
not fully offset the Group’s loss from RMB depreciation arising
from its holding of a large amount of RMB-denominated currency
assets and investments, but also contributed an exchange gain of
HK$5,788,000, though representing a decrease in exchange gain
as compared to last year. However, the Board believes that RMB
will be immensely affected by any change in the Sino-US trade war
in the short term. A turnaround in the Sino-US trade war may lead
to a rapid rebound, therefore the trend of RMB is unforeseeable
in the short term. Though in the long run, it is expected that RMB
will become stable and will not expose the Group under significant
and long term adverse foreign exchange risk. Accordingly, it is not
necessary for the Group to hedge against foreign exchange risk at
the moment.
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Chairman’s Statement
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OUTLOOK

During the course of transformation and upgrade in the past
few years, with industry experience accumulated therefrom, the
Group has basically confirmed its development focus and direction
through continuous exploration and survey and steady investment.
Looking ahead, the Group will proactively seize opportunities for
market development and continue efforts to adjust and optimize
its business, and will develop the business towards industrial park/
property development and investment, finance, technology and
wellness elderly care sectors. In respect of the property development
and investment, by capitalizing on the Group’s established solid
position in the property development and investment segments, the
Group will continue to make use of its accumulated experience in
such areas to develop the industrial park in Danzao Town, Nanhai
District, Foshan City, the PRC, which is designed to house various
development projects to be leased to third parties, including
the main and spare production plants, pilot base, research and
development centre and ancillary facilities for new energy vehicles
as well as staff quarters. In respect of the finance sector, the
Group will further develop the financial leasing business, and
initially intends to focus on business areas including public utilities
projects, environmental protection and energy-saving projects, new
energy projects and tele-communication projects. In respect of the
technology sector, taking advantages of the opportunity arising from
the new smart city construction plan in Nanhai District, the Group
actively research on and develop the Big Data industry projects.
Regarding the wellness elderly care sector, the Group will further
extend the coverage to other wellness elderly care services, and will
continue to develop towards the goal of establishing a 3-tier elderly
care system comprising institutes, communities and households in
Nanhai District based on the foundation of the Smart Elderly Care
Services Platform. Meanwhile, the Group will also, through its joint
ventures and associates, participate and invest in power generation,
civil explosives, financial leasing and other high-growth industries in
the PRC. With the aforesaid development plans, the Group will be
able to expand its business coverage and gradually achieve the goal
of increasing and maintaining stable returns for shareholders.
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China Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) puts great
emphasis on corporate governance and is committed to maintaining
the high standard of corporate governance which is reviewed and
strengthened on a continued basis. The board of directors (the
“‘Board”) and the management of the Company maintains and
enhances the policies and practices of the Company in a timely,
transparent, effective and responsible manner, so as to maintain
good, solid and reasonable corporate governance structure. The
Board believes that the Company and shareholders as a whole can
derive maximum benefits from good corporate governance.

The Company has adopted all the code provisions under the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) as its own code on
corporate governance.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has complied
with all code provisions under the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes the Board
and three committees under the Board, namely audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. The Board
stipulates the terms of reference of all committees in writing and
specifies clearly the power and responsibilities of the committees.
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THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises eight directors, comprising five
executive directors who have extensive business experience, and
three independent non-executive directors who possess appropriate
professional qualifications. Throughout the year 2018 and up to the
date of this report, the composition of the Board is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman)

Mr. Lin Pingwu (Managing Director)

Mr. You Guang Wu (Director)

Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director)
Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
Mr. Chen Da Cheng
Mr. Deng Hong Ping

Every director has sufficient time and attention to deal with the
affairs of the Group. Each director discloses to the Company for
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments every year. The
Board considers the composition of executive and non-executive
directors is rational and appropriate and provides adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors provide the Group with
diversified experience and expertise. Their suggestions, opinions
and participation in the meetings of the Board and each committee
bring independent opinions, suggestions and judgements on
issues relating to the Group’s strategy, development, operations,
performance, risk control and conflicts of interest, to ensure that the
interests of all shareholders are taken into account.
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In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, subject to
the manner of retirement by rotation of directors as from time to
time prescribed under the Listing Rules and notwithstanding any
contractual or other terms on which any director may be appointed
or engaged, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

Individual information and responsibilities of all directors are
contained in this annual report on pages 34 to 37.

There are no business, financial, family and other relevant interests
among directors.

THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and
business development plans, approving major agreements and
matters, monitoring the performance of senior management and
is responsible for corporate governance with a view to increasing
shareholders’ value. Led by the managing director, the management
is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans developed
by the Board. The Board authorizes the management to manage the
day-to-day business operations of the Group. Each committee under
the Board has its own specified terms of reference which clearly
define their powers and responsibilities.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters reserved to the
Board for its decision and has separately identified those functions
reserved to the Board. The Board will review those arrangements on
a regular basis to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs of
the Company.
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The Board also performs the obligations regarding corporate
governance, including:

1.  develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14
(Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report) to the Listing Rules.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each year
(approximately once each quarter) and will convene meetings
when necessary. When a regular board meeting is convened, the
Board papers will be sent to directors for review before the meeting
pursuant to the deadline as required by the Listing Rules and the
code provisions so that directors can keep abreast of the information
to perform their duties and responsibilities.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
In considering dividend payment, the Board will take into account
factors such as the Group’'s expected financial performance,
business conditions and strategies, expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans, business cycles and other
internal or external factors that may affect the Company’s business
or financial performance and financial position, return and interest
of the shareholders and other factors which the Board considers to
be relevant. The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and the Dividend Policy does not constitute any commitment or
obligation of the Company to declare dividends.
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All members of the Board have actively participated in the
Company’s Board meetings to discuss the overall strategy and

Sl

%AWE\% *EQ Z’»‘“ﬂﬁ’]% ER=EN
MM A EENERBERLRER - EFeR

business of the Group. The Board convened nine meetings in 2018 ZT—N\FXBALAeH RESHERBR
and the attendance of directors is as follows: N
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Directors EEEEB HITRE o FE =
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman) IS AE (£E) 9/9 100%
Mr. Lin Pingwu (Managing Director) MRS (FFAAHE) 9/9 100%
Mr. You Guang Wu (Director) HEREE (EF) 9/9 100%
Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director) — E 5T ( E FSIAA45FHE ) 9/9 100%
Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director) T MEL (EFFFBEE) 9/9 100%
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUINTESE
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PR B {8 5t 4 9/9 100%
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BREERK & & 9/9 100%
Mr. Deng Hong Ping BoRF A E 9/9 100%
The remuneration of directors is determined with reference to their ZEEE N2 EHSESEANBE MAQ R E

functions and responsibilities and the results of the Company in
accordance with the remuneration and performance assessment
programme of directors and senior management which was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 25 May 2017. Any director is not allowed
to participate in determining his/her own remuneration. The
remuneration received by directors from the Group during the year is
set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The Board has set up an independent professional consulting
procedure for directors and upon reasonable request, the directors
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
MANAGING DIRECTOR

The chairman and the managing director have different roles. The
chairman is responsible for the operation of the Board and the
managing director is responsible for managing the operations of
the Group. Their functions have been clearly divided to ensure a
balanced distribution of power and authority so that they will not
concentrate on a single individual.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. He Xiangming and the managing
director of the Company is Mr. Lin Pingwu. The deputy managing
directors of the Company are Mr. Huang Zhihe and Ms. Wang Xin.

The chairman of the Board is principally responsible for leading
the Board and ensures the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The chairman shall ensure the Board operates effectively
and performs its proper duties and discusses all important and
proper matters in a timely manner. The chairman is responsible for
convening board meetings, consulting, determining and approving
the agenda of each board meeting, and ensuring that directors are
provided sufficient information on current matters in a timely manner.
The chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Company
formulates good corporate governance practice and procedure.

The managing director is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so
as to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition,
the managing director is also responsible for coordinating close
cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of staff and
encouraging the initiative of staff so as to ensure smooth and
effective operation of the Company’s operations and systems.
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TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed directors are provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. The
Company Secretary and representative of auditor update directors
on the latest development and changes regarding the Listing Rules,
accounting standards and other relevant regulatory requirements
from time to time.

In addition, the directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance and position to enable the Board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the directors, all directors have
participated in continuous professional development for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

During the year under review, all directors of the Company
participated in continuous professional development to update their
knowledge and skills by reading materials relevant to the directors’
duties and responsibilities and/or their relevant professional and
by attending the training programs arranged by the Company. In
addition, Mr. Chan Kwok Wai also had attended talks and seminars
organised by different professional institutions in relation to the
knowledge of the Listing Rules and directors’ responsibility etc.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. After making specific
enquiries, all directors have confirmed that, in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2018, they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive BTHZZEES@MHR=2%F 7 IEH
directors with extensive experience in accounting or legal aspects.
The audit committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the financial
statements, annual reports and accounts and risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, providing advice
to the Board, and making recommendations on the appointment
and remuneration of the auditor of the Company and any matters

BEREEE

FHEEHIERTEAR

TESAK &
CEXZARRHNARANPHRER FER
ERERENRAREEMABEERRLRE
EZERHER RAEARAZBENEE  HM
REMBEEIIZEEHEESROIZE K
BREEEREZZEENIR BENER

related to the termination of appointment. Mr. Chan Kwok Wai isthe @A EEZS@REERLZESNSEE

chairman of the audit committee and is responsible for reporting the

meeting results and recommendations of the audit committee to the

Board after each meeting.

In 2018, the audit committee convened two meetings. Members and %

their attendance are as follows:

REREEBRMT

Z-N\F BEZEZE®

PRS-

Number of

Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate

HERE
Name of Members RE &R BITIREY i FE =

Chan Kwok Wai (Chairman of BREE (FEZEEFE)

the audit committee) 2/2 100%
Chen Da Cheng PR K 2/2 100%
Deng Hong Ping B R 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year included
reviewing the 2017 audited financial statements and the annual
results announcement, reviewing the interim report and the interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2018,
considering the accounting standards adopted, reviewing the
financial reporting, internal control and risk management systems,
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function,
reviewing the management letter about audit work of the auditor

submitted to the management and the response of the management  E%EZEIF -

and the basis of opinion made by the auditor in their report, etc.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHEES

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non- HMEESH -—RBUIIEHNTTEE LML
executive directors and two executive directors. The remuneration {TEEMEK -HFINEE ST E A TR ME
committee is principally responsible for reviewing and approving Z2ZENMSREEABNHFINHIEZ RMEEE
remuneration plans for directors and senior management, making EEHITEENSHREEASHNTHEFE
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of A IEFIZE RIKS HEF [z B (B 2 5 - BREEAK 5t
executive directors and senior management, including benefits, 4R AHMEZESENTFE BERNTRAEH
pension rights and payment of compensation. Mr. Chen Da Cheng #HEZEZeREFHEZEeN eSS L
is the chairman of the remuneration committee and is responsible EER -

for reporting the meeting results and recommendations of the

remuneration committee to the Board after each meeting.

In 2018, the remuneration committee convened one meeting. MN-ZT—N\F HFHMEESLRITREE
Members and their attendance are as follows: MEREFEELAT :
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Members REER HITRE =
Chen Da Cheng (Chairman of the BREX (FTWNZESE/E)
remuneration committee) 11 100%
Chan Kwok Wai PR B {2 11 100%
Deng Hong Ping B R 1/1 100%
He Xiangming fa] () AR 1/1 100%
Lin Pingwu MER 1/1 100%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee during the year FHEIZ B @HEFERNMN TIERER £
included reviewing the emoluments and incentive scheme of the BEHFHFMBERLESHE BErEeE=kafeE
Group, determining the emoluments of the directors and senior EAEMFHEBLEERESKES F 0N
management and considering the incentive payment and making EZ@ERLERE -FTMHEZESTHRELEE
recommendations to the Board. The remuneration committee also FX BB EIEABEBITETEANATB -
ensures that no director or senior management member determines

his/her own remuneration.
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The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration based on the responsibilities, qualifications and
working performance of staff (including directors). In addition, the
Group adopted the share option scheme for a term of 10 years
on 26 April 2013. Since adoption of the share option scheme, the
Group has not granted any share options.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and two executive directors. The nomination
committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. It shall consider the suitability of a candidate
to act as a director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification,
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
under the requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

AEBNFHBERRAEL (BREEF)NB
B BEERTHERAMEEEMSE 1o K
SEER - T—=FNOA-+BRATH
H+EmB g A RMBEEE - K
SEYRER L ERBRE-

REEEE

REZEEH-ZBYUINTESTLMEH
TEFEK - REZEGAARTERTENR
B ABRMAER - Y ERRE A ARFH R
ERBMBRYESSFLNEPREESR-
REZEERBEREANER KRB SR LY
ARFTHEFERNENEBELETEETNEGEA
# - Wt E AR RIS 13RI R A B L 1 4R
ERZBY IFRITESNBILIE

In 2018, the nomination committee convened one meeting and R-ZT—\F RELESEHEIT—AZH
members and their attendance are as follows: KERHBEERNAT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE,
Name of Members REER HITRE o FE =
He Xiangming (Chairman of the MR (EEEZ82F/E)
nomination committee) 1/1 100%
Lin Pingwu MR 1/1 100%
Chan Kwok Wali BR B (2 11 100%
Chen Da Cheng FeR 32 X, 1/1 100%
Deng Hong Ping il 1/1 100%

The work carried out by the nomination committee during the
year included reviewing the Board structure of the Company,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive directors,
considering and reviewing the Board diversity policy and making
recommendations to the Board.
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All independent non-executive directors of the Company have
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules and have
presented annual confirmations of independence issued pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company. The nomination
committee has assessed their independence and confirms that all
independent non-executive directors are independent parties as
defined in the Listing Rules. The term of office of Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
and Mr. Chen Da Cheng is for two years until 21 September 2020.
The term of office of Mr. Deng Hong Ping is for two years until 5 April
2020. They are subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election
requirements of the bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of
appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection criteria used
in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, such
candidate’s academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity etc. The
procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director is summarized
as follows:—

1. The nomination committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board periodically and make recommendation on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

2. When it is necessary to appoint an additional director or fill a
casual vacancy, the nomination committee identifies, selects
and recommends candidates to the Borad pursuant to post
nature and the criteria set out in the Nomination Policy.

3. The nomination committee shall submit the candidate’s resume
and recommendation, include terms of appointment, to the
Board for consideration. If the process yields one or more
desirable candidates, the nomination committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the assessment result
and presents the same together with its recommendation to the
Board for consideration.

ARREBUIFANTEFTCHAE LMRAN
Z3R - AR B HRBE T RAIES 136
HOBIMERFHERE - REZBE A
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BB ETRAMAENBLAL - REER
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E=ZefoRM BEREEE ([HERK
R EBNBEERERZEREHZEE
EMRF - FHEIRIE AREE PR HE SR
BRFE(EFEE)EEMERREXER
METELR ALSE - ZERENZEES
MR FRRm T —

1. REZEEHTHRIESTERE A
AR (BEREE MBENRER) I
SUERI R B S 2N B A 3 R SRBE M
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2. EALERNBINESTHEMBZRE
REZBBREZEFTRBOEE MR
RABRAENERENMERAES
SHBAR-
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4. Based on the recommendation from the nomination committee,
the Board will consider and approve the appointment of new
director(s).

5.  Each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election at
the annual general meeting of the year.

6. The nomination committee shall review overall contribution,
performance, professional knowledge and qualifications of the
retiring Directors and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration for their re-election.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. With a view to maintaining competitive advantage, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element. Therefore, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy in 2013. The policy set out that the nomination committee of
the Company reviews and assesses the composition of the Board,
makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of new
directors of the Company, oversees the conduct of the annual review
of the effectiveness of the Board in order to achieve the objective
of Board diversity. In addition, mechanisms including supervising,
reporting and policy reviewing etc. ensure that the Board diversity
policy will be implemented effectively.

The nomination committee has reviewed from time to time the
diversity of the Board of the Company to ensure that the policy
will be implemented effectively and considered that there is no
immediate need for setting up the measurable objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate
the Group to manage it risks across business operations.
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The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the audit committee and the senior
management of the Company. The Board determines the nature
and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
design, implementation and control of the risk management and
internal control systems, so as to ensure the Group has set up and
maintained a suitable and effective risk management and internal
control systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has formulated and adopted corporate risk management
policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the senior management
identifies risks that would affect the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners
are then established for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit function to
assist the Board and the audit committee in ongoing monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
identify deficiencies in the design and implementation of risk
management and internal controls and recommend proposal for
improvement. Significant risk management and internal control
deficiencies will be reported to the audit committee and the Board
on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.
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Risk management report and internal control report are submitted to
the audit committee and the Board at least once a year. The Board
had performed annual review on the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the Group’s
ability to cope with its business transformation and changing external
environment; the scope and quality of management’s review on risk
management and internal control systems; result of internal audit
work; the extent and frequency of communication with the Board in
relation to result of risk and internal control review; significant failures
or weaknesses identified and their related implications; and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside
information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information.
The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
Safe Harbours as provided in the Securities Future Ordinance. The
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, if the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained
or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading, or false or misleading through omission
of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and
negative facts.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Lo Tai On, who is engaged and
appointed by the Company from an external secretarial services
provider. The primary contact persons with the Company Secretary
of the Company are Mr. He Xiangming (Executive Director and
Chairman), Mr. You Guang Wu (Executive Director) and Ms. Chong
Ching Mui (Assistant to Chairman). During the year, the Company
Secretary of the Company duly complied with the relevant training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing financial
statements of the Group.

The financial department of the Company is managed by a qualified
accountant. With the assistance of the financial department, the
Board will ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group complies with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
standards.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the audit fee was
approximately HK$1,500,000 and the non-audit services fee
mainly included services provided as reporting accountants was
approximately HK$1,994,000.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by HLM CPA
Limited, the auditor of the Company, in respect of the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 53 to 65.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of good communication
with shareholders and investors, and recognizes the value of
providing current and relevant information to shareholders and
investors. The Board has established a shareholders’ communication
policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation to
shareholders’ communication, with the objective of ensuring that
both shareholders and investors can obtain the complete, identical
and current information of the Company in a timely manner.

The Company has maintained communication with shareholders
through the annual general meeting or other general meetings and
encourages them to participate in general meetings. Registered
shareholders receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed resolutions
and the voting form. Any registered shareholder is entitled to attend
the annual general meeting and special general meetings provided
that their shares must be registered in the register of members.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the general meeting can
fill in the proxy form attached with the notice of general meeting
and return the same to the Company so as to appoint their
representatives or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies.

At the annual general meeting held on 25 May 2018, the first special
general meeting of 2018 held on 25 May 2018, the second special
general meeting of 2018 held on 25 May 2018 and adjourned first
special general meeting of 2018 held on 7 June 2018, all directors
were present to answer questions raised by shareholders and
separate resolution in respect of each separate issue was proposed
for shareholders to vote thereon. The Company appointed branch
share registrar of the Company to act as scrutineers and to ensure
votes cast are properly counted and recorded, and announced the
results of the poll on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require
a special general meeting to be called and propose any matter
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company. The
Requisitionists may deposit the written requisition for special general
meeting (which shall specify the full name of the Requisitionists,
the business and proposal to be considered at the general meeting
of the Company, and shall be signed by the Requisitionists) to the
principal place of business of the Company for the attention of
the Board. If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting in specified days as
provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules,
the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director

In accordance with Bye-law 88 of the Company, no person other
than a director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Board for election, be eligible for election as a director at any
general meeting unless not less than seven (7) days before the date
appointed for the general meeting there shall have been lodged at
the office or at the head office notice in writing signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also notice in writing signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected
provided that the period for lodgment of the aforesaid notice shall
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. For
further information, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders
to Propose a Person for Election as a Director” published on the
Company’s website at http://chinainvestments.oceanwir.com.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company (“Proposers”), or not less than 100
of such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing
to: (a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and
(b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Proposers may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Proposers; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
name, address, telephone number and email address etc.) by the
following means:

Address: Unit 501, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax No.: 852-23013878

Email: general@cihl.com.hk
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s fair review of the business during the year and
discussion on the future business development of the Group
are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 4 to 12 of
this report. In addition, the discussion on the principal risks and
uncertainties which the Group is exposed to the relationships
with the Group’s suppliers, customers and key stakeholders, the
Group’s environmental policies and performance and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out in below paragraphs and the section on
employees under page 42 of this report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year with financial
key performance indicators is set out in the “Chairman’s statement”
on pages 4 to 10 of this report.

There were no events significantly affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of 31 December 2018 and up to the date of
this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks, operational risks and financial
management risks.

The details of financial risk management policies and practices of the
Group is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. The hotel management continuously enhance
relationships with individual and corporate customers, which enjoys
good relationship with suppliers and customers. During the year of
2018, there were no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Green initiatives and measures
have been adopted in the Group’s managed hotel. Such initiatives
include recycling of used papers, energy saving measures and water
saving practices. An environmental, social and governance report is
set out on pages 44 to 52 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland China while the Company
itself is incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on the Stock
Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda, mainland
China and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this report, we have complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China, Hong Kong and
the Bermuda that have a significant impact on the Group.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 66.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year ended
date. There was a revaluation surplus of HK$8,945,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: surplus of HK$1,094,000). Details
of such revaluation are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

Particulars regarding the Group’s major properties are set out on
pages 246 to 248 of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 70 and note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, except that under
the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of approximately HK$725,199,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman)

Mr. Lin Pingwu (Managing Director)

Mr. You Guang Wu (Director)

Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director)
Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
Mr. Chen Da Cheng
Mr. Deng Hong Ping

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
You Guang Wu, Mr. Huang Zhihe and Ms. Wang Xin shall retire by
rotation from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is two
years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

He Xiangming, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director
and chairman of the Board of the Company on 23 July 2014. Mr.
He is the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company and a director in a number
of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. He holds a master degree in
Geography from South China Normal University. He has extensive
experience in business management and environmental public
utilities. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. He was the chairman of
Grandblue Environment Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange).

Lin Pingwu, aged 51, was appointed as an executive director and
the managing director of the Company on 20 January 2016. He
is a member of the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company and a director in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin Pingwu was appointed as the
chairman and legal representative of Canton Risen Financial Leasing
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd* with effect from 9 October 2018. Mr. Lin
holds a degree in History from South China Normal University. He
has extensive experience in business management and finance. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Lin worked as M8 m¥ & /st iR Rl
£ (Chief of the Planning and Finance Section of Nanhai Education
Office*), manager of a company which engaged in the education
industry, B /& @ FAEEE K (Township Head of Xigiao Town, Nanhai
District*), /BRI EBH B (JR%2/B) HEKE (Director of Nanhai
Foreign Affairs & Overseas Chinese Affairs Office (Travel and Tourism
Administration)*), B/#EZ Bl E K (Deputy Secretary-General of
Nanhai District Committee*), /8 [& )% §l ## 2 = £ F (Director of
Nanhai Legislative Office*) and M/8EF BB % EEK (Deputy
Director of Nanhai Finance Office*).
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You Guang Wu, aged 54, was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004 until 6
April 2006 when he was redesignated as vice chairman of the board
and executive director of the Company. On 26 February 2009, Mr.
You was appointed as the chairman of the board and on 23 July
2014 resigned as the chairman of the board. Mr. You is now an
executive director of the Company and a director in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. You Guang Wu was appointed as
managing director of Canton Risen Financial Leasing (Guangzhou)
Co., Ltd* with effect from 9 October 2018. Mr. You is a senior
accountant in the PRC. He holds a master degree in economics. He
has accumulated extensive experience in investment, financing and
financial management.

Huang Zhihe, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director
and the deputy managing director of the Company on 5 August
2013. Mr. Huang is also a director in a number of subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Huang holds a bachelor degree in industrial
management and engineering and a master of business
administration from South China University of Technology. He has
extensive experience of investment and development in real estate
and management in hotel industry.

Wang Xin, aged 47, was appointed as an executive director and
the deputy managing director of the Company on 1 May 2014 and
is also a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Ms.
Wang holds a master degree in economics from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics. She has extensive experience in corporate
business operation, strategic financial planning and management,
team building and management innovation.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Kwok Wai, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004 and is the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.
Chan holds a bachelor degree in Accounting and Commerce, and is
member of the CPA Australia and a member of Hong Kong Securities
Institute. He has over 30 years of experience in the finance and
accounting industry. Mr. Chan is also currently independent non-
executive director of 4 other listed public companies in Hong Kong,
namely Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, Tern Properties Company
Limited, National Electronics Holdings Limited and Far East
Consortium International Limited.

Chen Da Cheng, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004 and is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chen
graduated from the Sun Yat-sen University, PRC. He is a practicing
solicitor in the PRC and the executive director of Guangdong
Lawyers Association. He has over 28 years of experience in legal
services.

Deng Hong Ping, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 6 April 2006 and is a
member of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Deng holds a Bachelor
Degree in marine engineering of the Ocean University of China in
Guangdong and graduated in master of economics and legal studies
of Huazhong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Deng is a
practicing lawyer in the PRC and he has accumulated extensive
experience in legal sectors, particularly in enterprises mergers and
acquisition and debt reorganization.

Note: The Group’s businesses are under the direct responsibility of the above

executive directors who are the senior management of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interest of the Company’s directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company RELXTRODHEFR
Approximate
percentage
of total
issued shares
Number of as at
Nature of ordinary 31 December
Name of director Capacity Interest shares held 2018
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i HhEWERT
EEnA E8%) ERNE EEREE igrigra= e
He Xiangming Beneficial owner Personal 1,441,000 0.08%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares or interest in debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, according to the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO, the persons who were interested in 5% or more in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company are as follows:
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Number percentage
of shares/ of total issued
underlying shares as at

Names shares Notes Capacity 31 December 2018
R-ZE-N\F
+t=ZA=+-H
1%, 18 HiE2WE BT
= B8 B B 247) B zEDE
ERmMEERREERRA A 1,441,439,842 1 Corporate interest 84.18%
(Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Investment Co., Ltd.*)
EREEEREEBRAA NG
Nam Keng Van Investment 121,864,487 2 Beneficial owner 7.12%
Company Limited
MRERERARADR EmMAA
Cui Guo Jian 121,864,487 2 Corporate interest 7.12%
ERE AR
Pu Jian Qing 121,864,487 2 Corporate interest 7.12%
SERDE NG

*

For identification purpose only

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 5 8 3% ¥ J§t A f 2 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4%t

39



40

B

Directors’ Report

Notes:

1. These 1,441,439,842 shares comprises (i) 1,222,713,527 shares held
by Prize Rich Inc. which was wholly-owned by EREGIZIREER
R 2 7] (Guangdong Nanhai Holding Investment Co., Ltd.*); and (ii)
218,726,315 new shares to be allotted and issued by the Company to
Prize Rich Inc. upon the exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
convertible bonds issued by the Company to Prize Rich Inc. pursuant

to an acquisition agreement as part of the consideration.

2. These 121,864,487 shares were held by Nam Keng Van Investment
Company Limited which was wholly-owned by Mr. Cui Guo Jian and

Mr. Pu Jian Qing equally.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the
register as having an interest in 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, there were no connected transactions which need to
be disclosed as connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements. Those related party transactions constituted
exempt connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme is for a term
of 10 years from the date of adoption. No option has been granted
since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Group
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants for their
contribution or future contribution to the Group and to strengthen the
many long-term relationships that the participants may have with the
Group.

For details of terms of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
note 32 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, no charitable donation was made within the Group
(2017: HK$115,000).
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the largest supplier accounted for 18% of the
Group’s purchases and the five largest suppliers accounted for 42%
of the Group’s total purchases. The largest customer accounted
for 15% of the Group’s turnover and the five largest customers
accounted for 41% of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has an interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group is approximately 183
(2017: 118). The remuneration of the employees of the Group
is determined on the basis of performance and responsibility of
the employees. The Group provides education allowances to
the employees. The Group also provides internal training to its
employees to enable them to achieve self-improvement and to
enhance their job related skills. The Group also operates a share
option scheme, under which qualified employees may exercise their
options at an agreed price to subscribe for shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-laws provided that the Directors for the time
being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except
such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against directors of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the convertible notes and share option scheme as disclosed
in notes 29 and 32 to the financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 were audited by HLM CPA Limited who will retire
and seek for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Investments Holdings Limited

He Xiangming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company always puts great emphasis on environmental
protection, is particularly dedicated to reducing emission of
greenhouse gas and promoting resource utilization efficiency and
waste management, etc., and paying the highest attention to its
hotel business. An environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
task team has been established by Guilin Plaza Hotel to formulate
relevant policies for hotel under the 5R principle (replace, reduce,
reuse, recover and recycle), plan and organize the implementation
of various relevant tasks and constantly put forward administrative
measures, in an effort to save energy and reduce resource
consumption. Dedicated to environmental and resource protection
and thanks to excellent performance, the hotel has passed and
maintained the certification of Chinese Tourist Hotels “Silver Leaf
Green Tourist Hotel” since 2007 up to date.

EXHAUST GAS

— Boilers and other combustion facilities have been installed flue
gas purification devices that have passed the standardized
test of the environmental protection administration, so as to
minimize the emission of harmful gas.

—  Fuel have been changed from using diesel with a lot of nitric
oxide emission to clean using natural gas, so as to reduce
emission of sulfur dioxide and particles.

— Exhaust gas emission has passed the test of environmental
protection administration, with emission indicators has met the
statutory and regulatory standards.

— All vehicles in the hotel use highly efficient fuel detergents to
reduce fuel consumption and hydrocarbon emissions.

—  During the year, the emissions of nitrogen oxides, cerium oxides
and particulates amounted to 310.3kg, 1.6kg and 8.8kg (2017:
286.6 kg, 1.5 kg and 9.7 kg), respectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

GREENHOUSE GAS

The greenhouse gas emitted by the Company mainly comes from
electric consumption. The hotel also tries our best to reduce electric
consumption and carbon footprint in the following ways.

Electricity consumption

- During the year, the hotel enhanced the solar water
heating function of its solar power system, using clean and
environmentally-friendly renewable energy and further reducing
power consumption.

—  The hotel used more LED semiconductor lamps in its lighting
system during the refurbishment, which reduces 75% of power
consumption under the same lighting effect.

—  The hotel has worked out Regulations on Energy Saving and
Environmental Protection, advocating active adoption of up-
to-date saving techniques and management methods in the
energy-saving management of the hotel, so as to practically
reinforce the capacity of energy management and control, carry
out energy saving and consumption reduction works, reduce
operation cost and protect the environment.

— The hotel adheres to the guideline of “Full Attention and
Participation by all, Constant Persistence and innovation”.
Therefore, we are not only dedicated to educating and training
our employees and strictly enforcing relevant regulations, but
also encouraging employees to put forward feasible advices to
continuously improve our energy saving and control, in a bid to
continuously intensify and develop energy saving of the hotel.

—  During the year, the electricity comsumption and greenhouse
gas emissions of the Company totalled 2,051,789 unit
and 1,562.2 tons (2017: 1,489,061 units and 1,257.9 tons
respectively), the increases is because hotal was under
renovation last year, the consumption is increased after
resumption of operation during the year.
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ENVIRONMENT AND RESOURCE
CONSUMPTION

Water Consumption

The water consumption of the Company focuses on the hotel
business. In all guest rooms of the hotel, we apply water-saving
pedestal pans which meet the Class-1 standards of water
use efficiency. We guide guests to correctly use the pedestal
pans according to different standards for bowel movement and
urination. We also encourage employees to use water frugally
in daily life. We also install the intelligent inductive water-
saving system in employees’ bathrooms. These measures
can effectively control the intensity and total amount of water
consumption.

The hotel collects a large amount of condensed water vapour
by the cooling tower, thereby significantly reducing the loss of
plume.

Strengthened water consumption regulation at the hotel: Water
leakage detection and water balance testing were conducted
and water tanks were cleaned on a regular basis. Ledgers
were established to conduct measurement and assessment by
installing separate water meters and water-saving faucets so as
to exercise control over water consumption. Water-saving signs
are placed in guest rooms to guide guests as a reminder, and
change of cotton fabric products is made on a per guest basis
instead of the previous daily basis, all aiming to reduce water
consumption and minimize pollution to water resources.

The hotel also enhanced employees’ water-saving awareness
to promote good habits and culture of saving water and
other resources, in hope to convey the concept of resources
conservation and environmental protection to guests.

During the year, the water consumption in total of the Company
totalled 33,516 m® (2017: 38,690 m?).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Consumption of Other Resources

— The Company tries to save the use of paper by advocating
“paperless office”. Moreover, we reduce the use of disposable
stationery, print both sides of paper, and deliver waste paper to
the environmental recycling company for disposal.

— The hotel reduces resource consumption by reducing guest
supplies, minimizing packages and preventing the use of
disposable tableware.

—  The new energy industrial park in Danzao, Nanhai is still at the
preliminary stage of development. Prior to the construction of
plants, the parcel of land is required to be backfilled with soil for
ground surface levelling, and a total of 240,000 cubic meters
of soil was used during the year. In particular, the Company
negotiated with the persons in charge of the neighbouring
properties under construction in Danzao Town, and collected
hill soil and sandy soil excavated from the basements of the
projects as part of its endeavours to reduce damage to the
afforested hills and mountains, the impact on the ecological
environment and the pollution and emissions caused by long-
distance transportation.

— By internally employing a method of hierarchical utilisation
of food raw materials and providing catering customers with
packaging and wine storage services, the hotel also minimised
the consumption of food raw materials and significantly reduced
the production of food waste and other wastes.

The non-hazardous wastes produced during the production and
operation of the hotel are mainly household garbage and kitchen
waste. The hotel has established a garbage house which meets
the standards of the Star Rating and Assessment on China Tourism
Hotels ( (R BEIIREEER /5 2 R EIH EFFE) ) . All these non-hazardous
wastes are collected and treated by the environment and hygiene
management agencies designated by the government. Kitchen
waste is processed mainly to animal feeds and composts. Therefore,
it is considered as zero emission of harmless waste and the impact
on the surrounding environment is minimized.
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In relation to the Hotel Business nature, Company not use any
packaging material. Except for the abovementioned, Company’s
business activities do not make any significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

In the spirit of a good corporate citizen, the Company actively
participates in various activities with regard to caring community
and environmental protection, tries to be a conscientious enterprise,
offers all-round security to our employees, and makes due
contribution to building a better community.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR

In order to promote employees’ sense of belonging to the Company,
the Company launches various games for employees every year,
including simulated ball game, outdoor activities, etc. In addition,
the Company tries to promote employees’ job skill and sense of
superiority by instruction, activities, skill competition and other
trainings.

The Company has set up the Employee Manual, wherein all articles
and the formulation and release procedures of the Employee Manual
meet relevant legal requirements. The Company has established a
trade union to offer guidance to employees.

The Company treats each employee equally, and recruits,
compensates and promotes employees according to the same
standards irrespective of their ethnology, race, nationality, sex,
religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction, marital status and
other social identities.
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The following is the employees distribution information as at the end

AT REBRARRFAKBEINMZER -

of the year.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
Number of employees BT AZ 183 113
Male employees/% BEMET Atk 96/52% 54/48%
Female employees/% wHEE T L 87/48% 59/52%
Below the age of 30/% FHIRAB08%,/ 1h 40/22% 15/13%
Between the age of 31 to 50/% FH315 25058, 1h L 109/60% 75/67%
Over the age of 50/% FHARE08%, 1t 34/18% 23/20%

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company is dedicated to providing employees with a safe
working environment, trying our best to prevent work from bringing
any risk to the public, and paying attention to employees’ health. The
orientation training of the hotel employees includes the labor safety
course, so as to promote employees’ safety awareness and self-
protection capacity. We have worked out safe-operation procedures
for each job that may bring about any risk. In addition, we carry out
daily safety supervision and monthly safety check.

During the year, the Company launched 7 sessions of a dedicated
study and training program for a total of 68 employees on safe
production (including food safety), whereby the Company guided
the trainees to recognise the importance of safe production and
operation and fire safety and clarified the accountability of fire safety.
In addition, the Company organised 2 firefighting evacuation drills
and one fire safety knowledge training program, and participated
in emergency information reporting and on-site tabletop exercises,
thereby comprehensively improving its emergency management
capabilities and strengthening its emergency management
awareness. Relevant systems have been formulated to enable the
Company to conduct safety production inspections in an orderly
manner so as to reduce accidents.

In addition, we provide all employees with free professional health
check every year.
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TRAINING AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT

The Company invests sufficient resources in employee training and
development, so as to maintain the competitiveness, professional
level and moral standards of employees. All new employees must
receive training of industry knowledge, health and safety and job
skill. Furthermore, guided by Annual Employee Training Program,
we continuously offer expertise and skill training to employees every
year, so that they can possess a high professional quality, maintain
their competitiveness, fulfill their duties and reach the highest service
standards.

In addition, we select and assign employees to pursue advanced
studies at domestic well-known professional academies, with a view
to bringing up professional talents with a broad vision and versed in
industry operation and management.

In 2018, each employee of the hotel received 12-day training of 6
courses on average. (2017: 8 day training of 6 courses on average)

LABOR REGULATIONS

With regard to labor standards and human right policy, the Company
strictly abides by relevant laws. The internal labor policy formulated
by the Company contains a strict ban on child labor or forced labor.
In each of the previous years, we smoothly passed the annual check
of labor supervision by relevant government authorities.
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PRIVACY POLICY

The hotel aims to safeguard the personal data and information
of all stakeholders basis by formulating strict privacy protection
policies and complying with internationally recognized standards to
the greatest extent. The privacy policy of the hotel applies to the
data and information on its guests and other individuals who have
business contacts with the hotel, as well as the management of
such data and information in electronic or written form. The hotel
is committed to the safe personal information collection, personal
data processing, personal information use, personal information
disclosure and daily record management. All business activities are
in compliance with relevant national laws and regulations as well as
internationally recognized privacy protection standards.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The supplier management of the hotel is always an important link
of quality control system. The hotel has worked out strict purchase
control measures, so as to ensure the quality and safety of all
purchased raw materials. All food suppliers must provide inspection
and quarantine certificates issued by the government authorities of
hygiene and disease control. Materials supplied by other suppliers
must also have national quality and safety (QS) certificates. The
hotel has formulated and implemented a strict cargo receipt and
inspection system, ensuring the quality and safety of all materials
(including raw materials) purchased by us.
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PRODUCT LIABILITY

In the opinion of the Company, products represent the core
competitiveness of an enterprise. In order to practically improve
product quality and ensure customers’ rights and interests, we
have taken an active part in the event of “Brand Creation Year”
organized by the local government, formulated and implemented
the standardized management procedures of product quality, and

successfully applied for a brand enterprise.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Company carries out a zero-tolerance policy toward any act
of bribery, fraud or money-laundering. Both the Employee Manual
and Financial System formulated by the Company contain control
procedures for preventing bribery, fraud or money-laundering
from occurring. Moreover, the Company has set up a reporting
mechanism, through which employees can report any surreptitious
irregular act.

In June 2018, a working group was established to carry out
supervision and inspection on the Company’s efforts in integrity and
safety, enhance awareness of accountability, strengthen efforts in
cleaner governing organ building, safety production, environmental
protection, etc., and conducted comprehensive integrity risk
investigation and control, aiming to ensure the healthy and stable

development of the Group as a whole.
COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
For many years, the hotel has been helping local student

groups through cash donation, material donation and employee
participation, so as to meet our commitment to community service.

In addition, the hotel always pays high attention to the impact of our
operation on our community and environment, and tries to minimize
such impact, so as to fulfill our obligation as a member of our
community.
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B g st AT A IR 2 3

Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre
2-12 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong.

R B KO PG 2- 1258 I 5% 74 2L P D305 E

HLM CPA LIMITED

Tel &7 : (852) 3103 6980

Fax f#H.: (852) 3104 0170

Certified Public Accountants

E-mail & T : info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
PEIEEERERD A

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 66 to 244,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter: Impairment of finance lease receivables

FRRETEER
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HRFISEE REHAERRRZRE

Refer to notes 6 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the impairment of the Group’s finance lease receivables
as a key audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated
financial statements, and the use of judgement by the management
in evaluating the recoverability of finance lease receivables.

The carrying amount of finance lease receivables is HK$608,173,000
as at 31 December 2018, which contributed to approximately 18%
to the total assets. In determining the impairment for finance lease
receivables, the management considers the credit worthiness,
past collection history, subsequent settlement of each finance
lease customer, and also relevant deposits received, pledge of
leased assets and guarantees. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group adopted HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and
recognised an additional impairment loss allowance of HK$934,000
in accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9.

As set out in Notes 6 and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, management measures expected credit loss (‘ECL”) for
finance lease receivable by using a provision matrix. In determining
the impairment of finance lease receivable, the management
considers internal credit rating which reflect shared credit risk
characteristics, historical past due information and lessees’
creditworthiness for different groupings of finance lease receivable as

parameters of the ECL models.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRETEE 8

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMWETNMEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to the estimated impairment of finance
lease receivables included:

- understanding of the key controls over the granting of the
finance leases and management’s impairment assessment in
relation to the recoverability of finance lease receivables;

- evaluating the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology for finance lease receivables based on current
economic conditions and forwardlooking information;

- assessing the credit profiles of the related borrowers based
on the external evidence and factors to determine the internal
credit ratings;

- evaluating the reasonableness of management’s determination
of the estimated loss rates based on internal credit ratings;

- checking the mathematical calculation and basis of impairment
loss recognised under the ECL model; and

- evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of finance lease receivables in Notes 6 and 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Based on available evidence, we found the assumptions adopted
in relation to the impairment assessments to be supportable and
reasonable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRETEE 8

Key Audit Matter: Valuation of investment properties and
PRC hotel properties

BRESSH REVRRPEBEUEN
518

Refer to note 17 & 18 to the consolidated financial statements

We identified the valuation of the Group’s investment properties
and hotel properties investment properties are significant to our
audit because the determination of fair value of hotel buildings and
investment properties is based on several key inputs that require
significant management judgements, assumptions, estimations and
other inputs.

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
the investment properties and the PRC hotel properties are
HK$230,206,000 and HK$115,000,000 respectively as at 31
December 2018. The valuations are dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant management judgement
including fair market rents, and no impairment provision is provided.
These conclusions are dependent upon significant management
judgement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRETEE 8

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMWETNMEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to the management’s valuation of
investment properties and PRC hotel properties included:

- assessing the valuation methodologies used by the external
valuer;

- assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions based on our knowledge of the business
and industry;

- evaluating the independent external valuer's competence and
capabilities and objectively; and

- considering the appropriateness of the resale values estimated
by the external valuer based on the recent transaction price in

the PRC and Hong Kong’s property industry.

Based on available evidence we found management’s assumptions
in relation to the valuation are reasonable.

Key Audit Matter: Revenue recognition

B EREHREVERDPEBEEYE
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EENBRREAE-

HREFETSEE: WaEER

Refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

With the adoption of HKFRS 15, significant judgements and
estimates made by the management are required for the revenue
recognition. The revenue recognition of the Group has been
reassessed in 2018. The application of HKFRS 15 has significant
impact on the revenue recognition of the Group’s business.
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58

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuea) BRETEE (&)
How we addressed the Key Audit Matter RPN ESNAEEREEESE
Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition included: PR R ERNTHE T B

- evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the existence,
accuracy and timing of revenue recognition;

- obtaining the ledgers and selecting samples to review
whether the management had made correct judgements
on identifying the contract, identifying single performance
obligation, determining the transaction price and other aspects.
Recalculating the accuracy of the progress of performance of
the contracts;

- selecting samples of the contracts and inspecting the original
contracts, evaluating whether the management had made
reasonable estimates on transaction price (estimated total
revenues), obtaining evidence to confirm the degree of
completion of related service and comparing with the progress
of performance recorded in the Group’s ledger.

We found that the amount and the timing of the revenue recorded
were supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRETEE 8

Key Audit Matter: Accounting for interests in associates

MEEHER BEQARERCEHEE

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s associates operate in PRC. The Group’s share of
profit of associates for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
Group’s interests in associates at that date are significant in the
context of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The financial information of associates is prepared in accordance
with the prevailing accounting standards in which may differ in
certain respects from HKFRSs.

Converting the financial information of these entities into HKFRSs
for the purpose of equity accounting involves management making
a number of manual adjustments some of which are complex in
nature.

We identified the accounting for interests in associates in PRC as a
key audit matter because of the material impact that these entities
have on the consolidated financial statements and also because of
the complex nature of certain adjustments made by management
which we consider increases the inherent risk of error.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRETEE 8

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMWESFNMEEFARETER

Our procedures to assess the accuracy of the accounting for
interests in associates included:

- performing an audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the PRC based associates, Nanhai Changhai Power
Company Limited, Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd., and
Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., Ltd., in accordance
with the requirements of HKSAs;

- evaluating significant manual adjustments made in respect of
associates to convert their financial information into HKFRSs by
comparing the adjustments to underlying documentation or by
re-performing the calculations on which the adjustments were
based; and

- assessing whether the financial information of associates
after the adjustments made by management was prepared in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

We found management’s accounting for associates are supportable
and reasonable based on available evidence.

Key Audit Matter: Impairment assessment on interests in
associates

B8 A R e Y BRI 2 R
fd T B B TR
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Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has significant interests in associates, which are
accounted for under the equity method. As at 31 December 2018,
interests in associates amounted to approximately HK$821,682,000.

Interests in associates is subject to impairment assessments when
there is an indication of impairment.

Management analysed the associates’ cash flow and operating plan
and no abnormal items were found. Management concludes that
there is no impairment of interest in associate.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRETEE 8

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMWETNMEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment on interests in
associates included:

- analysing associates’ cash flow and operating plan.

- assessing the identification of CGUs based on the Group’s
accounting policies and our understanding of the Group’s
business;

- assessing the competency, objectivity, capabilities and results
of the work of independent professional valuer that was
appointed by the management and assisted management to
determine the recoverable amounts of relevant CGUs;

- assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology;

- assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions including
growth rates and discount rate, based on our knowledge and
understanding of the business and market;

- verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cashflow model
used; and

- testing input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and available market date, and considering the
reasonableness of the budgets.

We found the assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessments to be supportable and reasonable based on available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing, the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continuea)

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosure made by the Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continuea)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Fai Fiona

Practicing Certificate Number P04986
Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-_ZT—\F+-_F=+—HIt Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BET T BT T
Revenue WA 7 79,550 29,846
Cost of sales and services HE KR Ak A (37,534) (22,551)
Gross profit E7 42,016 7,295
Other operating income H e A 9 118,221 12,741
Selling and distribution costs SHE RO HERA T (1,820) (123)
Administrative expenses TR X (70,206) (53,623)
Net gain on disposal of an investment LEREYME 2 FNE
property - 14,472
Share of profit of associates JE (R Bt 2 N B & A 78,218 75,494
Increase in fair value of investment "EMEZ R EHE N
properties 8,945 1,094
Decrease in fair value of financial assets SFABRCEREE Y
at fair value through profit or loss RNIE R D (1,148) -
Finance costs B 75 i 10 (86,296) (25,449)
Profit before taxation R 356 A &2 7 87,930 31,901
Income tax expense T8 Fi 2 11 (32,115) (4,271)
Profit for the year KEERR 12 55,815 27,630
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Ht2mE (FxX),/
income, net of income tax Wiz BREBLE
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEHRHEE
profit or loss: BmIEE:
Surplus on revaluation of hotel B IE Y S B B AR
properties 4,510 2,818
ltems that may be reclassified AgEEH AR
subsequently to profit or loss: BmIEE:
Exchange differences arising on B G I TS
translation of foreign operations EEZINEZETE (51,585) 6,544
Share of exchange difference of FEAG & N R INE =
associates o (38,044) 49,690
Other comprehensive (expense)/income FEHM2E (FAX)
for the year, net of income tax WS B ATSR (85,119) 59,052
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FE2E (AX) K
for the year B (29,304) 86,682
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-_ZT—N\F+-_F=+—HIt Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 BT T BT T
Profit/(loss) for the year FEERN(FHB)
attributable to: BE
Owners of the Company ZiN/NSIEZF SN 42,383 31,266
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A 2 13,432 (3,636)
55,815 27,630
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FE2E(BX)/
income attributable to: KRB
Owners of the Company ZiN/NESIEZ PN (30,198) 88,947
Non-controlling interests IEVE IR M = 894 (2,265)
(29,304) 86,682
Earnings per share SREF 16
Basic AR HK2.48 cents HK1.83 cents
78 52,484l 751,831
Diluted e HK2.48 cents HK1.83 cents
7 HE2 484l 751,831
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
NR-ZZE—-—NE+=-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 BET T BT T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment properties A 17 230,206 232,525
Property, plant and equipment M WERZE 18 280,684 283,080
Interests in associates N RN P 19 821,682 745,571
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBEHAEBERZ
profit or loss TREE 20 7,598 9,172
Finance lease receivables B &R E E 24 365,465 -
Rental deposit HEZS 3,417 -
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 21 148,255 -
1,857,307 1,270,348
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale HFEME 22 39,000 47,820
Inventories FE 23 380 494
Finance lease receivables BEMEE R 24 242,708 -
Trade and other receivables JFE LS BR 3
H A fE W5k IE 25 21,716 7,926
Pledged bank deposit BHEMRITER 26 77,755 63,963
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMBREEEY 26 1,221,671 886,861
1,603,230 1,007,064
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables JERTRR R
H A FE A R I8 27 131,577 130,852
Tax payables JENT & 30,470 7,137
Convertible notes R ES 29 152,226 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 21 4,980 -
Borrowings BN 28 1,071,264 624,298
1,390,517 762,287
Net current assets REBEEFE 212,713 244,777
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRBEE 2,070,020 1,515,125

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4%t



Sar A Y
LEE BRI
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZZTE—-—NE+=-F=+—H Asat 31 December 2018

2018 2017
=F-N\F —tF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT T
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital f& 7 31 171,233 171,233
Reserves 1 821,882 849,001
Equity attributable to owners of EAREEAEGER
the Company 993,115 1,020,234
Non-controlling interests FERER 33 338,205 157,625
Total Equity s 1,331,320 1,177,859
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Borrowings B 28 563,523 185,965
Convertible notes G &8 29 - 135,586
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 30 8,412 15,715
Deposits received from customers BWEFLZS 24 21,315 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 21 145,450 -
738,700 337,266
2,070,020 1,515,125
The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 244 were HF66EEF244B 7HBERERER T — N
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 H£=A -t/ NHEES= &It LZE 5
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: WAHINTEERRES
HE XIANGMING LIN PINGWU
4] 1] B4R MEER
Director Director
= =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERARLER
Hotel Convertible
properties note Non-
Share Share  Statutory revaluation  Exchange equity Capital  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve’  reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity
BENE EELES
Rx  ROEE EELE  ERHE  EXRG  RERG  ERERE  REEA g keREz  BREE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
B¥Tr A¥Tn A¥Tn  E¥Tn  B¥Tn  B¥Tn  A¥Tn  B¥Tn  E¥Tn  A¥Tn  E¥Tn
THE GROUP r50
At 1 January 2018 w=%-\5-F-A 171,233 725,199 97,139 47,186 (74,422) 34,700 - 19,199 1,020,234 157,625 1,177,859
Profit for the year AERRA - - - - - - - 42,383 42,383 13,432 55,815
Other comprehensive income/ AEEEMEZENE/
(expense) for the year (Fix)
- Surplus on revaluation of -BENEERRY
hotel properties - - - 4,510 - - - - 4510 - 4510
- Release of revaluation reserve of  —EENEEHREE
hotel properties BE - - - (1,851) - - - 1,851 - - -
- Exchange differences arising -REBNEBE
on translation of foreign EECERZR
operations - - - - (39,047) - - - (39,047) (12,538) (51,585)
- Share of exchange difference of -EEEEDRE
associates ERER - - - - (38,044) - - - (38,044) - (38,044)
Other comprehensive income/ rEFHM2ENE/
(expense) for the year (B%) s 5 s 2659 (77,091) 5 . 1851 (72581)  (125%)  (85,119)
Total comprehensive income/ rEEBRARE/
(expense) for the year (B%) 5 . . 2659 (77,091) . - w23 (30,198) 84 (29,304)
Capital injection from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - 3,079 - 3,079 179,686 182,765
Transfer to statutory reserve BREFTLNE - - 20,699 - - - - (20,699) - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=1+-AR 171,233 725,199 117,838 49,845 (151,513 34,700 3,079 42,734 993,115 338,205 1,331,320
* [tem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss TeEMNEREEEE
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Attributable to owners of the Company
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

FREEBAELER
Hotel Convertible
properties note Non-
Share Share  Statutory  revaluation  Exchange equity Capital Retained controling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve’  reserve reserve reseve  eamings Total interests equity
BENE HRER
kx RiVEE  EELE EREE EARE  ERBE  A5HBE  REERN B FERER  EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥Tr  A¥Tn  A¥Tn  B%Tr  B%Trn  B%Tn  E%Tn  E%Tn  A%Tr  BETr BETrx
THE GROUP V¥
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+%-f—H 171,233 725,199 79,481 46,108 (129,285) 34,700 - 3,851 931,287 - 931,287
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR/ (BE) - - - - - - - 31,266 31,266 (3636 27,630
Other comprehensive income/ RrERHMZERE/
(expense) for the year (%)
- Surplus on revaluation of -BENEERRY
hotel properties - - - 2,818 - - - - 2,818 - 2,818
- Release of revaluation reseve  —BENEERREE
of hotel properties Em - - - (1,740) - - - 1740 - - -
- Exchange differences arising —BEBNERR
on translation of foreign EECERER
operations - - - - 5,173 - - - 5,178 1,371 6,544
- Share of exchange difference —EERERT
of associates ERES - - - - 49,690 - - - 49,6900 - 49,600
Other comprehensive income/ rEEEM2ENRE/
(expense) for the year (F%) - - - 1,078 54,863 - - 1,740 57,681 1,371 59,052
Total comprehensive income/ rERREANS/
(expense) for the year (B%) - . - 1078 54863 - o 3006 88047 (226 86,682
Capital injection from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 159,890 159,890
Transfer to statutory reserve BEEEETAR - - 17,658 - - - - (17,658) - - -
At 31 December 2017 AZB—tF
+-A=1+-H 171,233 725,199 97,139 47,186 (74,422) 34,700 - 19,199 1,020,234 167,625 1,177,859
* [tem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss * TeEMNEREEEE
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Consolhidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —t 5
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B & BYET T BT T
Operating activities KEER
Profit for the year KEFZREF 55,815 27,630
Adjustment for: MATIEEEH A :
Bank interest income 2 WA 9 (19,564) (3,015)
Interest expense FERXZ 10 86,296 25,449
Income tax expenses Frie®if 11 32,115 4,271
Increase in fair value of KEWEZ ARE
investment properties 3 50 17 (8,945) (1,094)
Decrease in fair value of financial assets ~ #t Az 2 & REE
at fair value through profit or loss ZRARERD 20 1,148 -
Interest income from financial leasing KEREHEER
B A 7 (18,000) -
Share of profit of associates e E AR A F (78,218) (75,494)
Net gain on disposal of HEREMED
investment properties F U - (14,472)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEREYE.
plant and equipment R = K 5% A
(BHM),/B#E (74) 928
Depreciation of property, W HWE R
plant and equipment RIEITE 18 14,492 10,556
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 21 783 -
Impairment loss on trade and other FEUR SR I H A
receivables JE YR IR R (B
BN 25 = 240
Provision written-back on trade and FE YRR SR
other receivables Ef‘@[&@ﬂﬁlﬁ%lﬁz
BB B 25 (229) -
Impairment loss on finance BMEMEERIKR 2
lease receivables VERIEEEEN 24 972 -
Net exchange gain [E 5 Uk &5 % 58 9 (5,788) (8,775)
Operating cash flow before movements in & iE& & E AT 2
working capital KEREMRE 60,803 (33,776)
Decrease in inventories FERD 114 287
Decrease in properties held for sale HEMERD 8,820 7,208
Increase in rental deposit in respect of TREEEZ
right-of-use assets HEZSEM (3,417) -
Increase in deposits received from Bl EFIESIEM
customers 21,315 -
Increase in finance lease receivables BhE 78 & e YR an (632,673) -
Increase in trade and other receivables JiE W BR 51 % HoAth
& U SR IE3E N (10,584) (2,772)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other JE AR SR I HoAth
payables & RRIE
(B, (2,157) 18,987
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Consohidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B & BET T BEET T
Cash used in operations LERHIRS (557,779) (10,066)
Interest income from financial ElRERMERED
leasing received B WA 14,996 -
Tax paid =R (13,669) 6)
Net cash used in operating activities K& ZFZH2HE
R (556,452) (10,072)
Investing activities REED
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B& &Y% - &=
&g 18 (12,657) (42,873)
Addition to investment properties BEREME 17 - (5,991)
Acquisition of an associate WER—RHlEE QA 19 (148,444) -
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits with R FAREIH B B 6
more than three months to maturity —EAAZEHEFER
when placed (Em),/mP (54,813) 16,741
Dividend received from an associate Bk e — e QA
0NN 19 115,628 -
Dividend received from financial assets at W B#E A RE A
fair value through profit or loss BasoREE - 77
Placement of pledged bank deposit BEHEMFR (13,792) (63,963)
Interest received SR @YY 19,708 3,331
Net proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE HEK
plant and equipment 2R RE
R 287 548
Net proceeds from disposal of HEREVENANSE
investment properties RIEFRE - 33,472
Net cash used in investing activities RETHZ2EHS
FHFEE (94,083) (57,958)

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 $ 3% 3% B 47 bR 23 %] 73
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Bl aehiE

Consolhidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT T
Financing activities AMEEE
Capital injection from non-controlling R R ITE
interests 182,765 159,890
Interest paid =ENEESS (65,295) (9,794)
Repayment of bank loans %ﬁﬁfﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁk 26(b) (61,668) (10,441)
Proceeds from borrowings EE R 26(b) 917,005 674,801
Net cash generated from METB RS
financing activities RAFEE 972,807 814,456
Net increase in cash and ReRESEEY
cash equivalents B nFE 322,272 746,426
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January A— B —B 2B &Rk
REZEEY 886,861 134,356
Effect of foreign exchange rates EREH 2
changes (42,275) 6,079
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 R+=-ZBA=+—HB2
December HERBEEEEY 1,166,858 886,861
Analysis of the balances of cashand B&RRESZEEY
cash equivalents, being: EHOMBUT
HEARK:
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERAS 1,221,671 886,861
Less: time deposits with maturity WBB=EAZ
over three months EHFR (54,813) -
1,166,858 886,861
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is
Prize Rich Inc, which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Island (“BVI”) and the ultimate holding company is Guangdong
Nanhai Holding Investment Co., Ltd, which was incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section
of the annual report.

During the year, the principal activities of the Group are big
data business, property development and investment, financial
leasing, hotel operation, investment holding and wellness
elderly care business. The principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are described in note 39.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Ema

ARARBREFMKLAEREE
RAR ERONEBBMEZHHMAR
AR ([HAAT]) EMR ET - HEBEER
NAABRABREZHS ([RBEXE
& 1) £ AL 2 Prize Rich Inc R H&#&
ERATARPEARLME ([FE])
AR ERESIEREEERA
Ble ARNRIFEMPERE R EBE ¥
B HE R F R [ AR E R IO IETE -

AFEEHE AEBZXBEBAAK
BES MEERRRIRE BREHEE B
EEE AR RARRREEES-
AR REWBRAR ([AE®E])Z2E
ZEBDEH NS -

DEERZSEY

AEEANZERBNYHHRKRMAFARBTD
RAZERLEMEN T BEEREM
EANEE ([eE¥ ) AE -&Ralt
BRRIDAER ([BB])25] 8%
BARAHNNEEERAEENZINE
M o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which
are or have become effective for the Group’s financial year

FE R 3R] R ARAE 5T & 8 Bt 3%
ﬁjé)ﬁﬁﬂ ([BEBMBREE
Bl

RARFEE AEBR_ZE-—N\F—HF—
AR BNV RFEERRBER
GEE NG R Z TR RERT &

beginning on 1 January 2018:

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKAS 40 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Leases

As part of the Annual

Improvements HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

B S RE A

BEEVBHREER URMHDAEMER
Fo5% (1B83]) SNRHZH
HREtE
BEEMBHREER REABEMB
Fa5% (1B83]) HEERE A5
R & L5
—HEREE
B 75 s A2 R
FOReR T A
BEEMBWMEEN S@MIA
FO5E
BEEMBHREREL KEEFPEHN
F155 WARERBE
KN
BEEMBHREREL WHE
F165%
HE SRR ERBAYB
%285 (187]) s 2R
—E-F
E-FT—RF
RE =
M E
BEAGITHR ERIREME
405 (187])
B (ERMBR IBEXHR
EREZEE FARRE
— 2225

The adoption of new and revised HKFRSs has no material
effect on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current or prior accounting period. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment is required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective. The Directors of the Group anticipate that the
application of these new HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business®

HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sale or Contribution of Assets
(Amendments) between an Investor and
Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material?
(Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Amendments) Employee Benefits!

HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term Interest in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

FERHIIREEITE BT
REER([EBUKREE
All) &)

AREE W EIEFRA A T2 B/ME R KR
ERHFET REETETRBRHREE
Al- AEBMEZES BRLEMIL
RIETEAMBHRELENGIEHAE
BzEREMVBERRAERETNERNF

2,
Z

BEVHRELEN EBHHER
35 (&3T)
BEVHHRELR EAEBAMEZR

9% (1&85]) A& SRR
BEEMBEHMEER R EEEERE
F105 & BREIRE R
BEGFHEA NG LY
2858 (1£57) BEHEX
ER -
BEAVBRELEDN (RS L
FAT5R
HEAVBHRELEN BEYB
(1&%7) s 2R
—E—RF
E-FT—tF
RE 2§
o

TG ERE1R BEUENER?
K %85k (1&7T)

B GFER ’ERA
F195% (23T)

BB G ER N AR/NEI DS
F28% (187]) AERNEIMW

REARER'

58 (ERMEHRE MEBHREEREY
“REZE® T FE
—2EFE235%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Effective date to be determined.

Other than as explained in Note 3 regarding the impact of
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15, Amendments to HKFRS 15 and HKFRS
16, the adoption of the above new and revised standards

has had no significant financial effect on the annual financial

information.

3. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The nature and the impact of the changes are described below:

3.1.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (‘ECLs”)
for financial assets and lease receivables and (3) general
hedge accounting.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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FEMBER LA RERER-

8 RETWEERA T _TF—A—
Hek 2 %A 2 & EF = BB K
ZHEZEBAHREERE-

¢ RZTEZ—F—B—HIZERBH
FEMBER LA RERER-

s MAFERI 2 BE -

BREI P FESH B & B B 75 5 22 B
FO% BAEMBMELERNE1SS BE
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SEETEACKERE

HHIEE LY EHALT
31 BRMBBEENERLMT A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 3. #H SRz EME
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continueqd)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with
the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has
not applied the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December
2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained earnings and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement (“HKAS 39”).

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 4.

(%)

3.1

BERMBEREEUFIRERMIA
(%)

AEBECREBMBHRELERNF
S5 P BN RO EIR IR X B AR BB B S i
EFEREW  BIHN T — \F
—HA—B (MIRERAH) I EL
IFFERH TEE WA D B NG E
HE (BRERERBERENTH
ME) MEBEBHER T N\F
—A—HEBUEBRNITEERA
ARE —T—tF+-_A=+—
HeREERE_-_ZT—-NF-—H—
Bz AR B 2 A8 Z RN R
BaENFEMERSD R A
SEINLBRER -

Hit - L BERTIRIEEE &
RRIEI9%E [ S BT A #ER Rat
BIMBE AR THLRERK
WBEBA -

FER & B & R FORERK
FIEFTHR < BRI FE43 5R

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 5 8 3% ¥ J§t A f 2 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F#t

79



Aok B B 25 A PR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
The table below illustrates the classification and

measurement of financial assets under HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January

(%)

3. ¥PEHEACKERE

31 BERMBR/EENFOFREMTA

(%)

TRETZREEXRNNTHRAA
HB(ZE-N\F-A—-R)REF
BHMBRELERNFEIR B LS

2018. ZERIZE 3957 ©
Original New
Original carrying New carrying
classification amount classification amount
under under under under
HKAS 39 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 9
REBE REBET NEBEB REBHK
R $395% T ERISE39% T  MEERIEON MEERIFIR
ZRESE ZIRERE T2HIE TZHIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at fair value BAREFABEZ Available-for-sale 9,172  Fair value 9,172
through profit or loss TREE finance asset through profit
at cost or loss
AEHESREE BORE
KA E FFAER
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEY Loans and 886,861 At amortised 886,861
receivables cost
B R kW FIE BN A E
Pledged bank deposit BEEARITIFX Loans and 63,963 At amortised 63,963
receivables cost
ERREWRFIE BN AG 2
Trade and other receivables FEUER IR & H At Loans and 1,302 At amortised 1,302
J& W5k I8 receivables cost
B3 &G E BN A2
Total financial assets TREEGE 961,298 961,298
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 3. #H SRz EME
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1.

3.2.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continueqd)

Impairment under ECL model

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on trade receivables and
other receivables that are not accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded
based on an expected credit loss (ECL) model either on a
twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group applied
the simplified approach and recorded lifetime ECLs on
its trade receivables and finance lease receivables. The
Directors of the Group considered that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 has had no material impact on the Group’s
retained profits as at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations and
it applies to all revenue arising from contracts with
customers, unless those contracts are in the scope of
other standards. The new standard establishes a five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer.

(%)

3.1

3.2

BERMBEREEUFIRERMIA
(%)

BAEREER KB B E

FREVBRELENFERREEE
BMBREENFESRT  TEA
REEFABRSETEHRIEN
TR M5 P 5 e L At B W R TR D RE
EERT —EAAEMEERA
HERBREAGFA - AEEER
L B 7308 A B E U BR 0 K @
BEHERUREZHAEE X K
MBEEV B REENEIRHARE
BR - N\F-A—-HNRE
BT EERTE-

BRMBHEEANEISHRERTF
HESE: L ON

FEMBHRELEFIGHIRE
e ENEREEER]
FBGRTERIZE185R [UA | K 4E
AR BEERRNERFIINE
EHRAARA  BRIFZEARBR
H RS E - 3 EREY — @R
BRI - A EE PRI HEARAA
R-RBEEBMBRE LR F15
5 MARRERREBEARAE
FEZEERIMGMAREIR
PERNKESBEETER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.2. HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Continued)

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset
is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract,
control of the asset may be transferred over time or at a
point in time. Control of the asset is transferred over time
if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° do not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of
the asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 3. #H SRz EME
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 3. #H SRz EME

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) (&)
3.2. HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 32 EARAUBERESEAFISKEEEFR
(Continued) HE L ONE=P,

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of
the following methods that best depict the Group’s
performance in satisfying the performance obligation:

° direct measurements of the value transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

° the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation.

Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to obtain a
contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as contract assets
and subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised.

The application of HKFRS 15 has no material impact on
the Group’s opening retained profits in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January 2018.

The Group has reassessed its business model and
contract terms to assess the effects of applying the
new standard on the Group’s financial statements.
Management of the Group considered that HKFRS 15 did
not result in significant impact on the Group’s accounting
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 3. #H SRz EME
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2.

3.3.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, a contract liability, is recognised
when a customer pays consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the amount is already
due, before the Group recognizes the related revenue. As
at 31 December 2018, contract liabilities with amount of
HK$4,768,000 are now separately presented under trade
and other payables, as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
15.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in note 4.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17
Leases (“HKAS 177), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease (“HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4”), HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early
adoption permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 3. #H SRz EME
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) (%)

3.3. HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 3.3 EEAUKBREEAFEIHREE

HKFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than twelve months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset, representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability, representing its obligation to make lease
payments. A lessee measures right-of-use assets similarly
to other non-financial assets (such as property, plant
and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to other
financial liabilities. As a consequence, a lessee recognises
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of
the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash flows
applying HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements of the superseded HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for
those two types of leases differently.

The Group has reviewed the impact of HKFRS 16 on
all its contracts that are, or that contain leases and has
elected to early adopt HKFRS 16, with effect from 1
January 2018. The Group has opted for the modified
retrospective application permitted by HKFRS 16 upon
adoption of the new standard. Accordingly, the standard
has been applied for the year from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2018 only (i.e. the initial application year).
Modified retrospective application requires the recognition
of the cumulative impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 on all
contracts as at 1 January 2018 in equity.

(%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE-F—\E+-A=+—AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 3. #H SRz EME

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3. HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The early adoption of HKFRS 16 has no impact on the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position and
retained profits as at 1 January 2018 as the land use right
lease agreement started in the current year. The details of
the effect of Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2018 and Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out below:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at

(%)

3.3

EREMBREEAEI6RER
(%)

RERWNEEMBHREERZE16
R TEHAEEB T —NF—
A—B®ERE W BRENAY R
FEAFEZHRN I wERERZ
RERNAR - RZZE—N\F+=A
=+ —AIENEE B oK RE
EZT-N\F+ZA=1+—H1E
WiraEakEtmeEEERZ
FEHRIIINT

HEMBRIERR-F—NNF+=

31 December 2018 (extract) A=+—H (#EF#)
Results
without early Results of
adoption of early adoption Results as
HKFRS 16 of HKFRS 16 reported
I R RN REHEM
BREMBRE BEMEERS
R 1655 % B %165
ZEE M & RE5|
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BET T BETT
Assets BE
Right-of-use assets TREEE - 148,255 148,255
Liabilities =R
Lease liabilities HERE
- Current portion - RgHs - 4,980 4,980
- Non-current portion - EREES - 145,450 145,450
- 150,430 150,430
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 3. # B S XA z¥EME

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) (%)

3.3. HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 33 EAUKBREEAF16HEE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (extract)

(%)

HERBXBE—F-NFL+=
A=1+—HILFE (#H#)

Results Decrease/
without early Effects of (increase)
adoption of early adoption in profit
HKFRS 16 of HKFRS 16 for the year
I FE 4R BN REEMN
EBNERE ERMERSE FREF
% B 165K % B %165 B,/
ZEE ZEE (&)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET R BET R BT
Administrative expenses THAX (71,182) (70,206) (976)
Finance costs B%ER (84,817) (86,296) 1,479
Profit for the year FRAF 56,318 55,815 503
Profit for the year attributable to: EE BTGB
Owners of the Company AN/NETEZ Z SN 42,785 42,383 402
Non-controlling interests R R = 13,533 13,432 101
56,318 55,815 503
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE-F—\E+-A=+—AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 3. #H SRz EME

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3. HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (extract) (Continued)

(%)

3.3

EREMBREEAEI6RER
(%)

HEBRRkBE-—F-\F+=
A=1+—HIFE (Fi#g) (&)

Results Decrease in
without early Results of earnings per
adoption of  early adoption share for
HKFRS 16 of HKFRS 16 the year

ik =2 KM

EBMBERE BEBMBRE
R 5E165% % B 55165% FRER
ZEE eS| BRHD
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BET T

Impact on earnings per share BREM Z2

Basic ER HK2.50 cents HK2.48 cents HKO0.02 cents
75 #2.501L 78 #2.484L 75 #0.021L
Diluted B HK2.50 cents HK2.48 cents HKO0.02 cents

Based on the allowed practical expedients under HKFRS
16, the Group has elected not to apply the requirements
of HKFRS 16 in respect of recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for which the lease
term ends within twelve months of the date of initial
application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), the collective term which includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost are
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are change to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

4.

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4%t

4.

BEESHE (#2)

REEE(#)

o  AKEE HMREEREASEAM
ATRBZEHERRE:

e EHHMAHNRBELZNEN: K&

o MHJREHRER  KNEBE R AL
M T REMIEER R B EM
§59|\$,\&\ n(BEEBERRE

ELEHERREEN) -

AN 55 B RS T B ) 42 o AR R G 4 S B
B RAEERE AR KM B R ATl
RREIEAR-BEBME  FAKELR
HZ'IEZWJ;‘ ARA LAY B ANEER
SEHEAHEEZEAEE T B M
BAFzBIEEFABRER-

%/\*’\ EEHME2mEmERE RBRA

REFEB AN ES B AR Z
PHRSRERFRBNARAER AN
ERHE R BNE L & B BORE R s
BB



ook BV 285 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies to
be in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
have been eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liguidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination

Acquisition of business, other than business combination
under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value if the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date.
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

If, after the reassessment, the net of the acquisition-

assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

4.

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
the interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 would be
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had disposed directly of the previously held equity
interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Impairment of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount,
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate at
the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when
the equity method is discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of the interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including property under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

4.

BEESHE (2)

REBEATZRE (&)

MEEEREASE  BERNRETR
5 (PIMHEIEIARE)  EEBHED
Bl BAREER ZIBERT  H
BRRETRSMEEZ BRI REE
HENAREEGAMBEHRRDHER -

RENE

REMEDRREEE R HEARTHE
BRmFEENYE (BEREEBEN
ZHERYE) WEMENFREKAK
(BRXZMA)TE - R FHERE
KREMENRARBAE - FREME
ARERPMELENBEREEHREG
ABEHA -

BREMERNHER  FOKAELERZ
REMELRBRHERRENMETGE
R BRAR A A 2 R BIUH 8RR - BUH #ERR
ZMEMEENTMEE (REEME
FIRFREZEERAE AN ERE
B)FABBERMEDRENIBEAR -

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 5 8 3% ¥ J§t A f 2 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4%t

101



102

Aok B B 25 A PR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

i.

Hotel properties

Hotel properties are stated at revalued amounts, being
fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent impairment
losses. Fair value is determined with reference to
appraisals by external professional valuers with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not
differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair value at the end of the reporting period. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount
of the asset. All other property, plant and equipment are
stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Any surplus arising on revaluation of hotel properties
is recognised in other comprehensive income and is
accumulated in the properties revaluation reserve in
equity, unless the carrying amount of that asset has
previously suffered a revaluation decrease or impairment
loss. To the extent that any decrease has previously
been recognised in profit or loss, a revaluation increase
is credited to profit or loss with the remaining part of
the increase dealt with in other comprehensive income.
A decrease in net carrying amount of hotel properties
arising on revaluations or impairment testing is recognised
in other comprehensive income to the extent of the
revaluation surplus in the hotel properties revaluation
reserve relating to the same asset and the remaining
decrease is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

ii.

Property, plant and equipment (other than Hotel
properties)

Property, plant and equipment (other than hotel
properties) are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment (other than hotel
properties) over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

2% to 10%
10% to 30%

Land and buildings
Furniture, equipment and
leasehold improvements
10% to 30%
15% to 30%

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

iii.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when it is completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit and loss.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BEEGTEE (8

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SEITA (&)

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary AEE—REFBREFEENFSWA

course of business are presented as revenue. 25 AR -

Financial assets THEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets TREERMSIERA T E (REN T

(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in 3189 B IR X JE & B BT ER

note 3.1) Fo%)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are FETIGGremEERBZEIENX

subsequently measured at amortised cost: Kt =

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose e CTREENEKEERAFAEESME
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and ENRREHNRERENERE

XNEFE &

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash e AHKRNRETHHELECZES
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on MEARAIT ARG RAREEARN
the principal amount outstanding. B2 F B e

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are FETIBRGzemEERBIIZEAR

subsequently measured at fair value through other BEAEMEZAKRIIE ([EALESE

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”): BHEMEEEREIERDO TS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 3.1) (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significant reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 3.1) (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest earned
on the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3.7)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables and finance lease receivables). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, twelve-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
from hotel operation and finance lease receivables. The ECL
on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings.

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3.1) (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to twelve-month ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly.

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3.1) (Continued)

BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4, EEESFHE (#)
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Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
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obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 3.1) (Continued)

4, EEESFHE (#)
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Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 3.1) (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the Probability
of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and exposure at
default. The assessment of the PD and LGD is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between a contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis.

° Past-due status; and
° Nature, size and industry of debtors.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3.1) (Continued)

ii. Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
from hotel operation and finance lease receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.

Derecognition (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3.1)

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9 or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it
does not retain control of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3.1) (Continued)

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised on its consolidated statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets. In such cases, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(until application of HKFRS 9)

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into financial
assets as loans and receivables and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(until application of HKFRS 9) (Continued)

Available for sale (“AFS”) financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Dividend on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established. AFS equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, prepayments and
deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (until application of HKFRS 9)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For the financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (until application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (until application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Derecognition (until application of HKFRS 9)

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, when the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible notes

The component parts of the compound instruments
(convertible notes) issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
When the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible notes, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity components are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using
the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation
at the end of each reporting period, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 3.2)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business,
net of discounts and sales related taxes.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows
a 5-step process in accordance with HKFRS 15:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3.  Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s)
are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction
price for a contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf
of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

4.

BEESHE (#2)

R (REBMES.2HBERER
BRMBHEEDE155)

Wi W ERREBEZ ARERE
HERBBEHBRETARERERRIR
52 BRI N 35 & AR B T IR B R IR

NEFRAHANR AEERETE
B BHRELERFE1SFHINNT L E:

1. BHEEZEFPHAH
2. BRIEHABTHEL
3. EBEEXRZER

4. HEBETHEEIEXZER
5. EB(HR)EBETEEEERIAW

EMAERBAT GRERXZERERE
EHBYMHEBRELESERAE
WEH ARXZEBERIEERE=)
Ut BR 9 £E {A] 5K IH o

/(IR AEBEEKBROEBIL
AHENEREARBBERERPR EX
— Wy Rk — B ARl s

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 5 8 3% ¥ J§t A f 2 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F#t

123



124

Aok B B 25 A PR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 3.2) (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Hotel operations, wellness elderly care business and
big data business

Revenue arising from hotel operations, wellness elderly
care business and big data business are recognised when
the relevant services are rendered.

(ii) Sales of goods

Sales of goods other than properties are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

(iii) Sales of properties

Revenue from the sales of properties are recognised
when properties are delivered and title has passed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (upon application of HKFRS 15 in

accordance with transitions in note 3.2) (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Interest income from financial leasing

Interest income from financial leasing including handling
fees (if any) represents interest income from financial
leasing business, is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Consultancy service income from financial leasing

Consultancy service income from financial leasing is
recognised when the services are provided.

Rental income

Rental income arising from properties let under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the respective leases.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a

time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 3.2) (Continued)

(viii) Dividend income

Dividend income from investment is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If the considerations (including advances received
from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a contract
liability for the difference.

Revenue recognition (until application of HKFRS 15)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

goods and services provided in the normal course of business,
net of discounts and sales related taxes.

(i) Hotel operation and wellness elderly care business
Revenue arising from hotel operation and wellness elderly
care business is recognised when the relevant services
are rendered.

(ii) Sales of goods

Sales of goods other than properties are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has been passed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (until application of HKFRS 15)
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Sales of properties

Revenue from the sales of properties are recognised
when properties are delivered and title has been passed.

Rental income

Rental income arising from properties let under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the respective leases.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investment is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair

value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant

will be received and the Group will comply with all attached

conditions.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross

under “other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangement, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the

investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit scheme are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For a contract that is, or contains, a lease, the Group accounts
for each lease component within the contract as a lease
separately from non-lease components of the contract.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both:

i) periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

ii) periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

In assessing whether a lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to
terminate a lease, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the lessee
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise
the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease
term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessor

Operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and initial
direct costs is included in the statement of financial position
as finance lease receivables. Any unguaranteed residual value
is also recognised at the inception of the lease. The difference
between the sum of the minimum lease payment receivables,
initial direct costs, the unguaranteed residual value and their
present value is recognised as unearned finance income.
Unearned finance income is recognised over the period of the
lease using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

The relative stand-alone price of lease and non-lease
components is determined on the basis of the price the
lessor, or a similar supplier, would charge an entity for
that component, or a similar component, separately. If an
observable stand-alone price is not readily available, the
Group estimates the standalone price, maximising the use of
observable information.

The non-lease components are accounted for in accordance
with the Group’s policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

For determination of the lease term, the Group reassesses
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, or not to exercise a termination option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change
in circumstances that:

) is within the control of the Group; and

ii) affects whether the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise an option not previously included in its
determination of the lease term, or not to exercise an
option previously included in its determination of the lease
term.

At the commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability under the lease contract.

Leases liability

Lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Leases liability (Continued)

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured by (a)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (c) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

Where, (a) there is a change in the lease term as a result of
reassessment of certainty to exercise an extension option,
or not to exercise a termination option as discussed above;
or (b) there is a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset, assessed considering the
events and circumstances in the context of a purchase option,
the Group remeasures the lease liability to reflect changes to
lease payments by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate. The Group determines the
revised discount rate as the interest rate implicit in the lease
for the remainder of the lease term, if that rate can be readily
determined, or the incremental borrowing rate at the date of
reassessment, if the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be
readily determined.

Where, (a) there is a change in the amounts expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee; or (b) there is a
change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or a rate used to determine those payments, including
a change to reflect changes in market rental rates following a
market rent review, the Group remeasures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged
discount rate, unless the change in lease payments results
from a change in floating interest rates. In such case, the
Group uses a revised discount rate that reflects changes in the
interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., EEFITEHE (&)
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(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Leases liability (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of the re-measurement of
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where

B (&)

FEBEBERBA (E)

HERE (&)

ARG E R BB ELEA

the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero EE’\JEEE\%%Q?)@ZEE Eﬁﬁ \E\FE']
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease HENAERE: E\'JZIK?E 4 Em FlgRE
liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re- I E et ABE-

measurement in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if both:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

Lease modifications that are not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group, at the effective date of the lease modification:
(a) allocates the consideration in the modified contract; (b)
determines the lease term of the modified lease; and (c)
remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Leases liability (Continued)

The revised discount rate is determined as the interest rate

implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, if that

rate can be readily determined, or the lessee’s incremental

borrowing rate at the effective date of the modification, if the

interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at cost comprising:

i)

amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease. These costs are recognised as
part of the cost of right-of-use asset when the Group
incurs an obligation for these costs. The obligation for
these costs are incurred either at the commencement
date or as a consequence of having used the underlying
asset during a particular period.
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(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

After initial recognition, a lessee shall measure the right-of-
use asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability.

In the comparative period, in accordance with HKAS 17, the
determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains,
a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset and
whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
Operating lease payments, net of any incentives received from
the lessor, are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in
equity in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the re-translation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, time deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts or bank loans, if
any, which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of an enterprise’s cash managements are also included as
component of cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, that management has made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed that
Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. Moreover, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is lower than acquisition cost. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on change in fair value
of investment properties as the Group is not subject to any
incomes taxes on disposal of its investment properties.

Deferred taxation on hotel properties

By comparing the initial cost and the revaluated value of PRC
hotel properties of the Group, the Directors considered that
no capital gain may generate and does not constitute a timing
difference and not expect to settle the carrying amount of the
tax liabilities. Therefore, deferred tax has not been recognised
in respect of the valuation surplus relating to Hotel properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimated the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

Machinery and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference to the higher
of fair value of the machinery and equipment less costs to
sell or the value-in-use calculations. An impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable
amount is less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2018 the Group reported no
impairment loss for certain machinery, equipment and motor
vehicles (2017: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s other assets and
liabilities

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The qualified
external valuers establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The Financial Controller reports the
qualified external valuers’ findings to the board of Directors of
the Company every quarter to explain the cause of fluctuations
in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 6, 17 and
18 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s Investment
properties and hotel properties

The Group’s properties were revalued as at 31 December
2018 based on the appraised market value by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimate
of fair value, the Group considers information from current
prices in an active market for similar properties in the same
location and condition and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s Investment
properties and hotel properties (Continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties and hotel
properties at 31 December 2018 was HK$230,206,000 and
HK$115,000,000 respectively (2017: HK$232,525,000 and
HK$115,000,000).

Estimation of net realisable value of properties held for
sale

Management reviews the recoverable amount of properties
held for sale at the end of each reporting period. The
recoverable amount is the estimated selling price of the
properties less costs to sell. Management makes estimates in
determining the recoverable amount.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and finance
lease receivables

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
management of the Group estimates the amount of impairment
loss allowance for trade receivables and finance lease
receivables by assessing the ECLs, which requires the use of
estimates and judgements. Assessing the ECLs requires to
use provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, and review general conditions, internal credit
ratings and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions. The
impairment loss allowance of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
estimates.

The information about the ECLs and the Group’s impairment
loss allowance regarding trade receivables and finance lease
receivables are disclosed in notes 6, 24 and 25.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in the
PRC and Hong Kong and accordingly are subject to special
considerations and several risks.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s operating income and costs are denominated
in RMB. In the business operation of the Group, foreign
exchange fluctuation of income and costs would be mutually
offset. However, as the Hong Kong-based Group has
invested substantial borrowings into domestic wholly-owned
subsidiaries in the Mainland whilst owning substantial RMB
denominated monetary assets, an exchange gain or loss will be
recorded due to the appreciation or depreciation of RMB. The
Board expected that RMB will be immensely affected by any
change in the Sino-US trade war in the short term, therefore
the trend of RMB is unforeseeable in the short term. In the long
run, RMB’s exchange rate will not fluctuate drastically and will
not bring material adverse foreign exchange risk on the Group.
Therefore, the Group currently does not have any specific
foreign exchange risk hedging need for this matter.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:
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At 31 December

A+=-—B=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T

Assets EE
Denominated in Renminbi AREZS 1,769,707 258,672
Denominated in US dollars ENLHEE 134,634 643,440
1,904,341 902,112

Liabilities =R
Denominated in Renminbi AREZE 967,486 211,931
Denominated in US dollars ENHEE 783,038 546,826
1,750,524 758,757
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Foreign Exchange Exposure (Continued)

The following shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5% increase/
decrease in RMB against the Hong Kong dollars. The sensitivity
analysis includes only RMB denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year and for a 5% change in
RMB dollars rates. If there is a 5% increase/decrease in RMB
exchange rate against the Hong Kong dollar, the effect in the
profit for the year is as follows:

6.
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At 31 December

W+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
=F BL: e i
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Increase/decrease in profit for the year FEBIREMN WD 8,104 17,374
Capital risk management EcRBRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity holders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to equity holders, return capital to equity
holders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank loans and convertible notes) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company (comprising issued
share capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings).

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and will balance its overall capital structure
through issue of new shares as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Directors monitor capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated based on total debts divided by equity plus
total debts. Total debts is calculated as total interest-bearing
borrowings and debt component of convertible bonds.

R RER &)

EcEBRER (&)

EENEEABHRREEERER
LR BERER AR N B ERER
ZHMAE -BEERNIRASERER

AT ESFEO B ER D

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as HEHR - BEEAGLENT:
follows:
2018 2017
=2-N\F —LtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Total debts (Note 1) BESE (1) 1,787,013 945,849
Equity (Note 2) Ewm (MEE2) 993,115 1,020,234
Equity and total debts e EE A &
BELHE 2,780,128 1,966,083
Gearing ratio BEEARRE 64% 48%
Notes: B 5 -
1) Total debts comprises long-term and short-term borrowings and 1) Fi%i%%’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ BER R
debt component of convertible notes as detailed in notes 28 and BREENEESD 2F1BD BN
29 respectively. 28K MiFE29 ©

2) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed
interest rate from borrowings (see note 28 for details of these
borrowings). The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to fair value interest rate risk.
However, the management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk mainly arises from
the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2017:
50 basis points) increase or decrease in interest rate is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 would decrease/increase by HK$3,187,000 (2017:
HK$518,000).
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

This is mainly attributable to the Group’s

6.

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rest with
the board of Directors. In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to HK$212,713,000 (2017: HK$244,777,000),
current ratio (being current assets divided by current liabilities)
was approximately 1.15 times (2017: 1.32 times), while
total current assets amounted to HK$1,603,230,000 (2017:
HK$1,007,064,000), which is sufficient to meet the capital
requirement of the Group’s operations and development in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-T \Et-A=t-ALEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HKEABRER &)
Liquidity risk management (Continued) REBESREBRER (£)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into AEEz BB ERBER T 2F AR
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period HEHRZEDINHRIERABAI B
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity ETRSM-MTRZEBEIIREEGLD
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual RATBRZEESMERE
undisclosed cash flows.
2018
—E-N\E
Weighted Total Total
average Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate  On demand Within 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
miE KBRS
THF = EZX —-EHR —B= mERE BENE RELE AREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BB BRI
Trade and other payables ERETR
EthERTR - 131,577 - - - - 131,577 131,577
Borrowings B8
- Short term borrowings -RHEE 3.73% - 104,942 763,932 4,240 42,023 915,137 844,731
- Long term borrowings -RHRE 5.16% - 263,272 529,445 40,244 17,639 850,600 790,056
Lease liabilities MEBE 5.00% - 4,980 21,849 7,614 312,647 347,090 150,430
Convertible notes issued on R =F—M4F
13 October 2014 TA+=H
BET
TRREE 14.16% - 166,232 - - - 166,232 152,226
131,577 539,426 1,315,226 52,098 372,309 2,410,636 2,069,020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—N\NE+-A=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2018

the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of respective
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its city ledger from hotel, which belongs to trade
receivables and finance lease receivables. Credit risk on other
receivables is limited because no historical default record has
been made during the year and the Directors expect that the
general economic conditions will not significantly changed for
the 12 months after the reporting date.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continveq) 6. ISR EIE (&)
Liquidity risk management (Continued) REBESREBRER (&)
2017
“F-t%
Weighted Total Total
average undiscounted carrying
interest rate~ On demand ~ Within 1 year 1-3 years 4-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
mig RUERE
TR EEX —ENR —EZF mERF RENE mERE BERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT BT
Trade and other payables ERETR
EthERTR - 130,852 - - - - 130,852 130,852
Borrowings B8
- Short term borrowings -RHRE 2.38 - 56,633 648,347 3,605 22,079 730,664 702,293
- Long term borrowings -RHRE 6.15 - 17,148 32,532 41,743 38,140 129,563 107,970
Convertible notes issued on R =T —M4F
13 Qctober 2014 TA+=H
BEfA
TAREER 14.16 - 3,325 169,557 - - 172,882 135,586
130,852 77,106 850,436 45,348 60,219 1,163,961 1,076,701
Credit risk FEERR
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s maximum RZE—NFR_ZE—ttF+=A
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to =+—H && lﬁﬁuuﬂ AZHEF

KA Ef‘fﬁ@ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ%lﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@
EmEERBREL LS MBIKREAN
FIFAN S ESREENREBE A5H
ZIEERBREEREHEBRERERL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determining of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts (Please refer to notes 24 and 25). In addition, the
management of the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable at the end of reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, where
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 are based on
an expected credit loss (ECL) model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis. The Group applied the simplified
approach to measure ECL on its trade receivables from hotel
operation and finance lease receivables. Under the simplified
approach, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

To measure the ECL on trade receivables from hotel operation,
based on forward-looking economic information through the
use of industry trend and experienced credit judgement as well
as past experience including historical credit loss experience
and current expectations, the Group has collectively used a
provision matrix with 5% ECL rate on total carrying amount of
trade receivables from hotel operation, without distinguishing
different ECL rates based on different customer segments nor
past due status.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HKEABRER &)
Credit risk (Continued) FERK (&)

To measure the ECL on finance lease receivables, finance
lease receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. The Group has collectively applied
another provision matrix with two different ECL rates, which in
other words classified the credit risk regarding finance lease
receivables into 2 grades. ECL rates of the Group’s finance
lease receivables, which represent internal credit risk ratings,
are based on qualitative (such as lessee’s operating conditions,
financial positions, usage of finance lease assets, etc.) and
quantitative factors (mainly include past due information of
the finance lease receivables). The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk of finance lease
receivables and the provision matrix showing the ECL as at 31
December 2018.

RTEREHEREE Z?EH;EH*FHTE
K BREHERUKFIERNKAZEER
FrEoE- HSEIEit—JE}ﬂj:—Mﬁ
EMETRAERERBRRNBEE
s 2R EHERKANEER
RO RME - NEEREHERKRZ
BEHERBALRE AIRKRANEERR
PR T ERTE M ( ZID%%H}\W%HNR
BGIR MEHREEEMRRS) ME
(FT2EHEREHERKES E’J}ﬁﬁﬂéﬂ)
REME TREHBERE RERD
EERRAZEMEIN T N\F+=
A=+ HAEMERBLRENEEER
ZEHEEFR -

Adjusted
carrying Impairment
ECL amount loss
rates (note Il) allowance
REEWN
BHEAR IREEAHE wAE
BEAE (FF=E3) BARERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Internal credit ratings A= ETR BT T BT T
Grade 1 — Low risk — A — KRk
- Government related (note 1) — I (PFFET) 0.1% 418,840 419
Grade 2 — Low risk —HR—EER
- Others (note 1) —H b (HzE2) 0.3% 171,839 515
590,679 934
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Notes:

1. Grade 1 category is finance lease receivables which are
government related customers. Such customers are determined
to have low credit risk and related finance lease receivables are
no past due.

2. Grade 2 category is finance lease receivables which are the
customers without government related. Such customers are
determined to have low credit risk and related finance lease
receivables are no past due.

3. The adjusted carrying amount is gross carrying amount of
finance lease receivables after adding finance lease interest
receivables and deducting finance lease deposits received.

The measurement of ECL regarding the Group’s finance lease
receivables is a function of the Probability of Default (PD), Loss
Given Default (LGD) and exposure at default. The assessment
of the PD and LGD is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. The Group calculated PD by
applying linear regression by inputting gross domestic product
index, purchasing managers’ index and certain other index with
adjustment factors such as industry and region. The LGD was
based on historical observed default rates over the expected
life and by referencing the external database on regional
recovery by creditors.

6.

R RER &)

EERR (&)
GEE

1. E-REERERFHEBENEP R
BHEERUG - IR P BT AEE
5 Rl Ko A8 B B B TH & MR
SRIAREH-

2. FoABERFHEBRFHEEMNEPH
BMEMERUGR - WETPERI /K
EFERRREBNEERSREA
R¥REBDABE-

3. ULFIER RO BRE (B ARRE A B AT RO BY
EMERYGREEAFIENREN
SN EEERIEMFERBERED
B&-o

AEEREHERYGR 2 BREREBX
METERENMER BHEBEBREOR
Rk O B2 - B OB R RENE R
MRS ERE R BRIEAEEER
ERE AEERBRWABNEER
B RBEEERANE THMER
(HITR BESERETHE) XML
MERAEREORT - BOEBERIRE
FELBRINNBRFRPEORUAREE
ASEZBBIRENINBEIRERS A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Movements in the accounts related to ECL in respect of trade
receivables and finance lease receivables for the year ended 31

R RER &)

EERR (&)

BRABWIRR R E HE RS TER
ERBERZEERBER-_T—N\F

December 2018 are summarised as follows: TZA=T—HHFE2Z 8
T
Finance
Trade Lease
Receivables Receivables Total
MEHSE
FE W BR X FEWR wEE
HK$ 000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Balance as at 31 December 2017 REE BT LRSS
under HKAS 39 BPFM —E—+F
+ZA=+—8%
ek 498 - 498
Impact on initial application of X ERB BV BRE
HKFRS 9 HRIRF 2 HE - - -
Balance as at 1 January 2018 RZE—-—NF—H—H
2 KEER 498 - 498
Impairment losses recognised BB R TR 26 972 998
Provision written back BB 18 2K [B] 3 (255) - (255)
Foreign exchange translation INES T W RS
gains and losses (13) (38) (51)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF+=ZA
=t+—Hz&E& 256 934 1,190
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MKRKRER @)
Fair value ARE
i) Fair values of financial liabilities measured at i) HUBHEKAGTEZLZHBEREZ A
amortised cost ZE
Except as detailed in the following table, the Directors BrTRERFFFMEN  KABEER
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of BRI AR A B IS
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at REMmEeRmEELRERMABER
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements HEEEAREES:
approximate their fair values:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount value Amount value
REE ARE BRME(E ARE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT T BT T
Financial liability =
Liability component of TRBREEZEBEBS
convertible notes 152,226 152,226 135,586 135,586
Lease liabilities HEBE 150,430 150,430 - -
302,656 302,656 135,586 135,586

The fair value of the liability component of convertible
notes is determined assuming there will not be any early
redemption and at a 14.16% discount rate. The fair value
of lease liabilities are determined at a 5% discount rate.

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
active bid prices and ask prices respectively; and

° the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions as
input.

TMRERZBEHRNZANE
EEANEZBERFERRMREA
14.16% - HERBEZARBERE
5% AL IR 5K o

THEERTHMEBZAAER
UTHEEZE :

o MBEREGERMEFZER
BERNEBRRBTHEE
HARBEDREM S 2 &R
EERRELAEETE X

e HHMesRMEERTHRAERZ
AREDNRERBRESRE
D2 ARBEEBRN EH
ABRRTMBER 5 2EE
KB ERBABBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and

R RER &)

RERESzERMEERREHRE

AEERERERAZEMEERAR

liabilities as recognised at the end of the reporting period are REEIRATERE S eI ES
categorised as follows. See Note 4 for explanations about HHHEGRHE X EFHATL2HMFE
how the classification of financial instruments affects their 4 o
subsequent measurement.
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —t %
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Financial assets cREE
Financial asset at fair value through BAREFAEBRZ
profit or loss TREE 7,598 9,172
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:  1Z#i ik At & 2
Trade and other receivables rHQﬁE &Eﬁﬂ
& W R IR 4,366 1,302
Finance lease receivables %ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁa%%ﬁﬂ 608,173 -
Pledged bank deposit BEHEMBITER 77,755 63,963
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 1,221,671 886,861
1,919,563 961,298
Financial liabilities TEEeE
Financial liabilities measured at REEK AT E 2
amortised cost: SRAE:
Convertible notes AR R 152,226 135,586
Lease liabilities HE&E 150,430 -
Trade and other payables SRR SR R H A
JE A IR 111,543 107,910
Borrowings B 1,634,787 810,263
2,048,986 1,053,759
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

REVENUE 7. WA
Revenue represents the gross amounts received and receivable WATEENBRBBES BAEE
for revenue arising on big data business, hotel operation, and B KEREEXED HEWE KA5EH
wellness elderly care business, sales of properties, goods sold MIINABPHEETEmIIRERE RITH -
by the Group to outside customers, less return and allowances HeWABREMES 2B IR R EY 2 I
and gross rental income, interest income generated from AN BHREHEMEE ZHMERA M
financial leasing, consultancy fee income provided to outsiders NI TR AR TS B YA DA R B A A
and others during the year. HARE o
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised FRNEHERARERNSBEEEERIW
during the year is as follows: SR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Food and beverage B 41 538
Service income from hotel operation BIERERA 8,550 1,392
Rental income from hotel properties IR F 2 WA 4,642 2,493
Rental income from investment properties KEMERTEY
and properties held for sale FH WA 6,780 6,373
Consultancy service income from BE A EE
financial leasing i ON 7,221 -
Income from big data business KEUE ZE R A 12,057 -
Interest income from financial leasing KEBMEHEED
A EHA 18,000 -
Sales of properties e 17,100 15,944
Service income from wellness elderly RNEREEZER
care business i ON 4,406 3,106
Others HAb W A 753 -
79,550 29,846
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. oHERN

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised REEER AEEBREED ANEL

into six operating divisions — big data business, financial EEBOB-RBEEL BREME.

leasing, hotel operation, property investments and wellness BIEEL MERE KREEEER

elderly care business and others. These divisions are the basis REMEBL REBETALFESF AHE

on which the Group reports its primary segment information. EEREHENIHER -

Principal activities are as follows: FEEBOT:

Big data business — industrial internet project REBELE - THEOEMNIAER
construction, smart city JE N = 3
construction and big data TR R A
operation and management BELEER

Financial leasing — provision of finance lease consulting FEMRE — R EREmRE
services and financing services in HEBARS
the PRC K& IR %

Hotel operation — hotel ownership and management Y - BIE R E R

B

Property investments - holding investment properties, MEKE - BEREME.
properties held for sale and FEMERE
investment in the development REEREZE
and construction of industrial park Bz&E&

Wellness elderly care — comprehensive elderly care services AEREE — BEERE RS

business Ep

For the property investments, the management reviews the MMERENME AEBEREENS

financial information of each property investment, hence each HREWMERNMBER HEEKEY

property investment constitutes a separate operating segment. EBRBULEDE AT REWE

However, the property investments possess similar economic BEERUNCERE BBR LSS

characteristics, and are with similar development and selling AL RPERTESE At AR

activities as well as similar customer bases. Therefore, all EMEAGRERE—EREN I AHD

property investments are aggregated into one reportable HEHRA -

segment for segment reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment information presented below:

BRZEZMERZINWNT

Segment revenue Segment result

AHBBA DEEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F ZT—+F —E-N\F T tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BB T BETT BB
Big data business AEBER 12,057 - (387) -
Financial leasing MERE 25,221 - 14,498 -
Hotel operation R #7 13,233 4,423 (6,015) (17,133)
Property investments MK E 23,880 22,317 10,759 20,547
Wellness elderly care business ANEEEEER 4,406 3,106 (1,165) (5,561)
Others H 753 - (3,642) -
Total FCE 79,550 29,846 14,048 (2,147)
Bank interest income RITH B YA 19,564 3,015
Interest income from wealth REBEHEROM KA
management product 2,079 -
Compensation and government BRAMEXRZ
subsidies received for the W R BT
development of Industrial
Park in Danzao 74,771 -
Compensation of land resumption Wit E S 13,111 -
Professional fee BEBR (8,018) (2,574)
Net central administration cost PRITHAKAFERE (25,335) (25,213)
Net exchange gain [ 5 U 2 % 5 5,788 8,775
Share of profit of associates BB EDEATR 78,218 75,494
Finance costs B (86,296) (25,449)
Profit before taxation BR % AT & F 87,930 31,901
Income tax expense FTEMEx (32,115) (4,271)
Profit for the year RERF 55,815 27,630
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales in the current year (2017: Nil).

Segment result represents the profit generated by each
segment without allocation of bank interest income, interest
income from wealth management product, compensation
and government subsidies received for the development of
Industrial Park in Danzao, compensation of land resumption,
professional fee, net central administration costs, net exchange
gain, share of profit of associates and finance costs. This is
the measure reported to the Group’s management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 8. oEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERAERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Segment assets PHEE
Big data business RNERETE 4,442 -
Financial leasing BMEHE 613,806 -
Hotel operation B JE T 155,026 160,802
Property investments LES 437,363 292,463
Wellness elderly care business RNEEEEEE 1,272 550
Others HAith X 75 665 -
Total segment assets moHEE 1,212,574 453,815
Pledged bank deposit BHEMIBITER 77,755 63,963
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEEY 1,221,671 886,861
Interests in associates REZERR 2w 821,682 745,571
Financial assets at fair value through BAREFAERZ
profit or loss TEEE 7,598 9,172
Unallocated assets ROBEE 119,257 118,030
Consolidated assets HEEE 3,460,537 2,277,412
Segment liabilities PEEE
Big data business KBRS 6,977 -
Financial leasing MEMRE 575,838 -
Hotel operation B JE ZE 7 5,967 14,837
Property investments YEKE 333,863 108,475
Wellness elderly care business KERSEER 1,629 2,380
Others H At ¥ 75 1,619 -
Total segment liabilities woHaE 925,893 125,692
Convertible notes AR R B 231,047 214,407
Borrowings &3 917,646 702,293
Unallocated liabilities AAOEBE 54,631 57,161
Consolidated liabilities == 2,129,217 1,099,553
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead) 8. DIER (&)
Other segment information HihpHE R
2018 —E-—NE
Wellness
Big data Financial Hotel Property elderly care
business leasing operation investments business Others Total
A
AEEER MEHE BIEER MERE BEER Hit %% @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Depreciation e 10 45 9,014 3,495 12 - 12,576
Additions to property, mE-BER
plant and equipment RERE 701 2,814 1,601 4,948 - - 10,064
Gain on disposal of HEME  BE X
property, plant and REZEBR
equipment - - 31 - - - 31
2017 —T—+tF
Wellness
Big data Financial Hotel Property  elderly care
business leasing operation  investments business Others Total
N1
REBE MEHE BEEY MERE BEEHB Hin %% @it
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Depreciation e - - 5,416 2,180 5 - 7,601
Additions to investment  REMEARE
property - - - 5,991 - - 5,991
Addition to property, mE - BER
plant and equipment LERE - - 37,825 4,770 38 - 42,633
Net gain on disposal of ~ HEREMEZ
investment property s - - - 14,472 - - 14,472
Loss on disposal of HEME  BE X
property, plant and LE2ER
equipment - - (1,031) - - - (1,031)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Geographical segments

The Group’s big data business, financial leasing, hotel
operation, wellness elderly care business and others are
located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), other
than Hong Kong.

Property investments are located in both the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of
operation and information about its non-current assets by
location of assets are detailed below:

ook BV 285 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

DEE R (&)

RE®BED

D EE R

AEBZABEBEER BREMEE BE
X AREBZEBREMERL

RPEEARENE ([FE] TEEE
B e

MEREDURPEREE -

REBEEINBE P 2 WK

B E
i\J’\&E;lE//&JJéFHzéSF1 EElD2

B At

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets”
HEBEFZHEEWSE FREEE"
2018 2017 2018 2017
—ZE-N\§ ZT—tF —E-N\& T —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETT AT T
The PRC # 78,934 28,475 373,353 378,902
Hong Kong B8 616 1,371 19,510 19,512
79,550 29,846 392,863 398,414

Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, finance lease
receivables, rental deposit, right-of-use assets and unallocated
non-current assets

Information about major customers

During the year, HK$11,610,000 out of the Group’s revenue
of HK$79,550,000 arising from big data business were
contributed by one customer. And the customer accounted for
more than 10% of Group’s total revenue.

* FERBEETBENBENR 2 #ER
BOAEAABGZeREE BEH
ERKR HER: ERAREE K
ANEIERBEE

TEEFEHR

RER - AL B HE%79,550,0007T ) £
EEBRARBRRRNBIEEG B
11,610,0007T AR B & B — (&~ -
MREBZEFEENRANAEE &
¥R HE10% -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

10.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income included the following items:

9. HM&EWA

HAi &L WA BRRIATIER :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Bank interest income RITF B WA 19,564 3,015
Compensation and government subsidies ERALEZEZ
received for the development of 18 MBS ah
Industrial Park in Danzao 74,771 -
Compensation of land resumption Wi w8 & 13,111 -
Interest income from wealth REBMEM®N
management product FEWA 2,079 -
Net exchange gain = 5,788 8,775
FINANCE COSTS 10. B & X
2018 2017
—2-Nf —E—tf
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Handling fee FES 19,007 -
Loan arrangement fee ERTHE 6,078 -
Interest on: THFEZFE
- Bank loans —IRITEX 33,033 6,686
- Convertible notes — A HRREE 19,965 17,819
— Lease liabilities —HEAaE 1,479 _
- Loan from an immediate —BEERAAIZ
holding company B% 2,699 249
— Loan from an associate —BENRZER 731 695
— Other loans —HMER 3,304 -
86,296 25,449
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11. FIBHEAX

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Tax charges comprise: MBS B
Current tax: REHIA
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax BALEMED
B - (6)
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EMER
BB (39,025) -
Deferred tax (note 30): IEERIIE (MI7E30) -
Temporary reversed/(differences) VNS i
arising in current year RmE/ (ZR) 6,910 (4,265)
(32,115) (4,271)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year, except
for the first HK$2,000,000 of a qualified entity’s assessable
profit which is calculated at 8.25%, in accordance with the
new two-tiered tax rate regime with effect from the year of
assessment 2018/2019.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2018. In addition, the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime is not applicable to one entity within the Group
during the year.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at
25% for the year ended 31 December 2018.

RFEEMHTERB AT EFNEH
R HE16.5% (ZE—+tF :16.5% ) &t
B HWRE-_T— T -NRBF
ERRRBERNAFEST MRG58
1% & B8 1) & 78 #2,000,0007T F& & B o
F1%8.25% T Rt B R Hh o

HRASBEEHEE-_Z—-NF+=A
=t RALEFEIEEMNEERRT G
A W BB BER T BNSHER -
(] 5 T 2N 6 1) 15 750 A A% il I 4 g AR 7S
AREBEETHE—FRA-

BHE T \F+_A=+—HARH
B BT B X R T5 4225 % 2 Bt R S B b
EMEH-
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BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuead) 11. FTEHEXZ (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit BEGFEERREMEZEKER  FA
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss RIBZ R EAFEER - WHM AT
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation B 355 AT 22 A 87,930 31,901
Tax at the rates applicable to profit in the EEBEREFT
countries concerned BZMEFEZ
I8 (22,258) (2,489)
Tax effect of share of profit of associates JE(RE &SRR AF 2
MIETE ‘i? 8,253 8,185
Tax effect of non deductible expenses LR a4
mB & (13,040) (6,652)
Tax effect of non taxable revenue FEERBBAZ
MG R & 1,483 5,353
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RIERBIARE
MIETE (6,683) (8,668)
Utilisation of tax loss TS B 1R 130 -
Tax effect for the year REE2MBTE (32,115) (4,271)
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RE-F—\E+-A=+—AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. ZXEEEF|
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
Profit for the year has been arrived at AEERMEFTAS
after crediting/(charging): (k) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME -BEREETE (14,492) (10,556)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE (783) -
Auditor's remuneration ZEET B &
Audit service Bt R (1,500) (1,200)
Non-audit service FERTIR (1,994) (106)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME  BERHE
plant and equipment 2B,/ (B#E) 74 (928)
Net gain on disposal of an investment property HEKREMEZ FlE= - 14,472
Net gain on disposal of properties held for sale HEFEMEZFhE= 8,238 6,199
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables JFE e B 0 I Lt U
FIEZRERKX - (240)
Provision written back on trade and IR 5B R B L A FE UK
other receivables FIE 2 R E e & 229 -
Impairment loss on finance lease receivables MEMERKRZ
BERXK (972) -
Cost of properties held for sale ERAERAZZ
recognised as expense FEMERE (8,820) (7,208)
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BREAT ZHFENRAE (1,489) (389)
Total staff costs BB TR
Directors’ remuneration EEMe (8,136) (8,149)
Other staff cost Hit 8 THA (27,112) (12,394)
Retirement benefit schemes contributions Ht 8 T ZRIK
BAEEIMER (1,209) (929)
Termination benefits BIERXRET (232) (3,555)
(36,689) (25,027)
Gross rental income from investment properties BEME 2 BES WA 6,780 6,373
Less: o
Direct operating expenses from investment FRERSIAZ
properties that generated rental income during REMEZERE
the year BERY (42) (21)
Direct operating expenses from investment FRERSIRAZ
properties that did not generate rental income BEME B
during the year mERY (1,508) (2,037)
5,230 4,315
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EERETME
EMOLUMENTS
a. Directors’ emoluments a. EEMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight ENHEMNE (ZE—EF N
(2017: eight) Directors were as follows: BIVESEAZHMESWOT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—1F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fees nue BT T BT T
Executive directors HTES
Mr. He Xiangming faT [A) BR 5 A 120 120
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR A 120 120
Mr. You Guang Wu R LA 120 120
Mr. Huang Zhihe EEMEE 120 120
Ms. Wang Xin F ME+ 120 120

Independent non-executive directors B FEHITES

Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PR B (& 55 4 120 120
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BRIERK o A& 120 120
Mr. Deng Hong Ping B R S A 120 120

960 960
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EERETME (#)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
a. Directors’ emoluments (Continued) a. EEME (£)
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Salaries and other benefits HEeREAMBER BT T BT T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. He Xiangming faT [A) BR 5 A 600 600
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR A 600 600
Mr. You Guang Wu R A 600 600
Mr. Huang Zhihe EEMEE 420 413
Ms. Wang Xin F ME+ 420 413

Independent non-executive directors B FHITES

Mr. Chan Kwok Wai [RE & k4 - -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BRIERK o - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping B R S A - -

2,640 2,626
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

13. EERETIME &)

174

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) a. EEME (£)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Performance-based or BREAY HK$’000 HK$’000
discretionary bonus [R5 e AN BET T BT T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. He Xiangming Al M AR 55 4 936 936
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR A 936 936
Mr. You Guang Wu R LA 936 936
Mr. Huang Zhihe HEEMEE 655 655
Ms. Wang Xin F ME+ 655 655
Independent non-executive directors B FHITES
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PR B {2 55 4 - -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BRIERK o A& - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping B R S A - -
4,118 4,118
2018 2017
—®-N% —F—+t%
Retirement benefits HK$’000 HK$'000
scheme contributions BARERGEMHERX BT T BT T
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. He Xiangming fa] TR) B 5 A 90 102
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR ST A 90 102
Mr. You Guang Wu i ER A 80 85
Mr. Huang Zhihe =AML A 79 78
Ms. Wang Xin F ML 79 78
Independent non-executive directors B FEHITESE
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PR B {2 5% A - -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng PR32 A 5 A - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping B R A - -
418 445
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include their
services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Group. No directors had waived any emoluments
for both years. Save as disclosed above, no other
emoluments were paid or payable to any director.

During the year ended 2018 and 2017, no emoluments
had been paid by the Group to the Directors or the five
highest-paid individuals referred to in (d) below as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ material interests, transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance to which the Group as a party and in which
a director of the Group had material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors of the Group or body corporate controlled by
such directors, or entities connected with such directors,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

13. EERETIME (&)

ExMeE (&)

FRBEEZEEWEBERSERA
RALEMBATZ EBAARHE
ZEERE -RMEFEA - L&
BEEMEEMAME - FRIA LHREE
S EMESY BB EE M E -

HE_ZT— ) \FR-_ZE—LFIF
€ AEBE EAE ST ()
REREERSFHMA LIS E
AR B0 S A AN £R [ By
ZRESERREBML ZFEE-

EERXS RGN ZERE
=

AEEMEIVASEESTER
AEEREEA MR F RS
FRAEAKENAFEZERR
5 RHERAH -

NESRZBAZER EEXRR
Hitt X5

MEAXEEEZTAIRFTES
EH B EEECAER
R AR F R FREIM
BRDAFECER EEREHE
bR 5
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EERETITME (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
d. Five highest-paid individual

During the year, the five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 are directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in note 13a. No
individual other than the Directors has been included in
the five-higher-paid individuals.

14. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme which is available to Hong Kong permanent employees
under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance. This
retirement scheme is administered by independent trustees
with their assets held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions under the staff retirement scheme for each
year are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.
The total contribution to the scheme amounted to HK$41,651
(2017: HK$37,650) for the year and has been charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Forfeited employer contributions in
respect of former employees from the staff retirement scheme
before vesting period may be used by the Group to reduce
its ongoing employer contributions. There is no forfeited
contribution utilised during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no balance of
forfeited contributions available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (continuea)

Since the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has also participated
in an approved MPF Scheme with Bank Consortium Trust
Company Limited effective 1 December 2001 to provide an
MPF Scheme to all employees. The contributions borne by the
Group are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages (monthly
contribution is limited at 5% of HK$30,000 for each eligible
employee) as calculated under the MPF legislation. During
the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the MPF Scheme and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$76,999 (2017: HK$74,118).

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to
make the required contributions under the schemes.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

14.

15.

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

EERKETE (&)

BREBHETAGMELAES ([afE2])
R AEENMR=ZEE—F+=-A—
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wESFE MBI ES +
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REEFE  AEEREERTEHK
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2 HARREB 76,9997 (ZE—+F ¢
BHET4,11870) o
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178

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$42,383,000 (2017: profit of
HK$31,266,000) and on the number of 1,712,329,142 ordinary
shares (2017: 1,712,329,142 ordinary shares) in issue during
the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there
were no diluting events existing for both years.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

16. BREF

BREARBERNNDREBERAEERSE
NG REE B FI 41 42,383,0007T
(ZZ— Lt F  BANELHE31,266,000
JL) RARFE B E171,712,329,142% 5@
(=T — 4 :1,712,329,142% @

B 5 -

HRAAEEHE-_E—\ER-_T—+
FREEBE A TMEERGD FE R E
2 SREEEF -

RABHREANEEZBRERREETR
M2 ETER T8

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT I
Profit for the year attributable to REFRNBHAE A
owners of the Company FEAG BT 42,383 31,266
Number of shares BROBE
2018 2017
—E-N\E&E —E—+F
’000 '000
F & T %
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of R FHEFIREAR
basic earnings per share ARz EBKREE 1,712,329 1,712,329

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both the basic and diluted earnings per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no dilutive
earnings per share has been presented as the exercise of the
convertible bonds would have an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic earnings per share.
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BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REW*

In the PRC  In Hong Kong
held under held under
medium-term medium-term
leases leases Total
RHBEREZ REEREZ
ALY HEEA wa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT REMEZDARE
PROPERTIES
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 191,417 38,500 229,917
Additions = 5,991 - 5,991
Disposals HE - (19,000) (19,000)
Increase in fair value ENGEBRERER
recognised in profit or loss NAEEM 1,094 - 1,094
Exchange difference N = 14,523 - 14,523
As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+tF
and 1 January 2018 +ZA=+-HBR
—E2-N\§¥—-H8—H 213,025 19,500 232,525
Increase in fair value ERGEBRRERZ
recognised in profit or loss RN EEN 8,945 - 8,945
Exchange difference M =R (11,264) - (11,264)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
+=-BA=+—H 210,706 19,500 230,206
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cContinued)

All of the Group’s property interests held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The carrying amount of investment properties amounting to
HK$210,706,000 (2017: HK$213,025,000) have been pledged
to secure general banking facilities and mortgage loan to the
Group.

Investment properties were revalued at their open market value
at 31 December 2018 by Associated Surveyors & Auctioneers
Ltd., an independent firm of professional valuer, on an open
market value basis. The valuation gave rise to a revaluation
surplus of HK$8,945,000 (2017: surplus of HK$1,094,000),
which has been recognised in profit or loss.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cContinued)

Associated Surveyors & Auctioneers Ltd is a member of
the Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s investment properties were classified under level 3
of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 during the year.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Level 3) based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.

17. REWE (&)

BEAERHETRABEAGHEMSZESS
B UYHERBEERMETHNERM
EAEEELUYME &R - BREGEEDE
REREEEIRSZEUVNER ST
BRET-

tFEEERZHENANEFARER
P-EMEVENAAER BAIER
MENTES REERS-

AEBMZRENEEDBERANEFH
ME =R -RFRALEETAMEARE N
E=f-

TERARBUAGERENWEZAR
BER (FRIREEFARERAZGA
B)  ARBRBAAEHAEREESE
ERARBEHEFEAAESREE(F
=) e

Fair Value Valuation Relationship of unobservable inputs
Hierarchy Techniques Significant unobservable inputs to fair value
AREER  RHESR TEENERCYE BUBRECHERMABENER

Commercial unit Level 3 Direct comparison Estimated market unit sale price
located in Hong Kong =% method per square metre

MREREEEN R AV e mEENETIRER

Commercial unit Level 3 Direct comparison Estimated market unit sale price
located in PRC E=R method per square metre

i SE v R AV e mEENETIRER

The increase/decrease in the market unit sale
price would result in an increase/decrease
in the fair value of the property

MISEMHEBREN/HI AT EBEME
RABENRD

The increase/decrease in the market unit sale
price would result in an increase/decrease
in the fair value of the property

MISEMHEBREN/HI T EBEME
RABENRD
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BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. W% HMERKHE

2018 —E-NFE
Furniture
Land and equipment
Hotel Buildings and
properties inHKand  Construction leasehold Plant and Motor
in the PRC the PRC in progress  improvements machinery vehicles Total
REER B
ReEREZ HEREZ RER BER
BRENE THREF EEIR BFLEB He AE fam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
COST AND VALUATION AR fh{E
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E
—-HR-B 115,000 116,912 4,153 44,699 20,297 3,220 304,281
Additions RE - - 6,334 5,893 203 227 12,657
Transfers R - - (8,344) 8,344 - - -
Disposals and write off & R - - - (571) (902) - (1,473)
Exchange difference ELER - (1,938) (135) (2,620) (1,004) (80) (5,777)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—/\F
+-A=+-H 115,000 114,974 2,008 55,745 18,594 3,367 309,688
Comprising: B
At cost A = 114,974 2,008 55,745 18,594 3,367 194,688
At valuation - 2018 fhiE—
“E-N\% 115,000 - - - - - 115,000
115,000 114,974 2,008 55,745 18,594 3,367 309,688
DEPRECIATION neE
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE
—A-H - 6,240 - 10,605 1,154 3,202 21,201
Provided for the year R 4,510 3,194 = 4,977 1,662 149 14,492
Eliminated on disposals %1 & K i 55
and write off 8 - - - (505) (755) - (1,260)
Eliminated on revaluation R E & # (4,510) - - - - - (4,510)
Exchange difference EREE - (168) - (594) (94) (63) (919)
At31 December 2018 R=Z—N\&
+-A=+-H - 9,266 - 14,483 1,967 3,288 29,004
CARRYING VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZT—/\%
+ZA=+-H 115,000 105,708 2,008 41,262 16,627 79 280,684
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

18. ¥ -MEKZE &)

(Continued)
2017 —T—+tF
Furniture
Land and equipment
Hotel Buildings and
properties in HK and Construction leasehold Plant and Motor
in the PRC the PRC in progress  improvements machinery vehicles Total
WEBR Rk
REEREZ MmEREZ RER BE R
BENE THREF ERIR BFRE Ha HE 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BT BT BETT BETT BETR
COST AND VALUATION R AR fEfE
At 1 January 2017 WoE—+E
-A-H 112,000 113,126 314 45,399 16,086 3,125 290,050
Additions HE 4,408 1,212 4,752 15,234 17,267 - 42,873
Transfers g5 - - (987) 987 - - -
Disposals and write off & R - - - (20,605) (14,985) - (35,590)
Deficit on revaluation Ry (1,408) - - - - - (1,408)
Exchange difference ERER - 2574 74 3,684 1,929 95 8,356
At31 December 2017 R-Z—+#
TZA=t-H 115,000 116,912 4,153 44,699 20,297 3,220 304,281
Comprising: 2
At cost A - 116,912 4,153 44,699 20,297 3,220 189,281
At valuation - 2017 -
B+% 115,000 - - - - - 115,000
115,000 116,912 4,153 44,699 20,297 3,220 304,281
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+&
-A-A - 2,965 - 25,854 13,875 3,002 45,696
Provided for the year ~ £EEE 4,226 3,130 - 2,789 296 115 10,556
Eliminated on disposals 71 & R i B
and write off iz - - - (19,973) (14,079) - (34,062)
Eliminated on revaluation 7 & ff ¥ il 34 (4,226) - - - - - (4,226)
Exchange difference ERER - 145 - 1,935 1,062 85 3,227
At31 December 2017 R-ZT—+#
TZA=1-H - 6,240 - 10,605 1,154 3,202 21,201
CARRYING VALUES RHFE
At 31 December 2017 R=Z—+#
+ZA=+-H 115,000 110,672 4,153 34,094 19,143 18 283,080
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BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s buildings

The Group’s hotel properties situated in the PRC were valued
on 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 by Associated
Surveyors & Auctioneers Ltd., an independent valuer not

related to the Group.

The fair value of the buildings was determined based on the
market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction
prices for similar properties, adjusted for differences in the
nature, location and condition of the buildings under review.

18. ¥ BMERXE &)

SEEFQAAETNE

AEBMRFRZBEVER=ZZ—N
Ft+ZA=FT—HBERZZE—tF+=A
=+—HHBLEEMGEMBEEER
WMETREAFAMEENEE

BEMZARERBRBEERTISLET
BRI HER WERMLE 12
FRASEERXUEL AR  FAZ
EET AL EEE -

There has been no change to the valuation technique during

the year.

The Group’s hotel properties were classified under level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy. There was no transfer into or out of

level 3 during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties are their current use.

If the hotel properties had not been revalued, it would have
been included in these financial statements at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation of HK$64,248,000 (2017:

HK$66,870,000).

Fair Value Valuation
Hierarchy Techniques
AREER  RHESR
Hotel properties in PRC Level 3 Combination of
RERELZBENE E=H direct comparison

method and income

capitalisation method
BREBERBA

BAREEE
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e SRk -

Significant Unobservable inputs

TERNBEC YR

Significant Observable Inputs

TEBRRZHE

The increase/decrease in the market unit
rent and the increase/decrease in the
market unit would result in increase/
decrease in fair value of the properties

TSEMHAR/HEEEREM/RHOA
EYMEAAERLN R

Estimated market unit sale price per
square metre and estimated market
unit sales price per square metre

e msELGT ARAERMGH TS
BUBTHREE



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

ook BV 285 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

19. REE& QAR

A

Details of the Group’s interests in associates are as follows: REEREERARERFBERINGOT
Nanhai Guangdong
Guangdong Changhai Tiannuo
Financial Power Civil
Leasing Company Explosives
Co., Ltd Limited Co., Limited Total Total
ERERN mERE
MEHE BE EBERAWRE
BRAH BRAR BERAH At st
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E2-N\F —E-N\F —E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BET T BETT BT
Initial cost of investments in B E N T Z A
associates
Unlisted ¥E™m 191,977 485,042 151,565 828,584 677,019
Less: Distribution from S BT 2 IR B AR
pre-acquisition profit - (143,562) - (143,562) (143,562)
191,977 341,480 151,565 685,022 533,457
Share of post-acquisition profits & {5 i B 18 & 7 64,829 245,042 5,264 315,135 236,917
Share of exchange differences {5 [ 3 =% (18,072) (41,450) (3,325) (62,847) (24,803)
Less: Distribution from B g 2 PR B AR
post-acquisition profit - (115,628) - (115,628) -
238,734 429,444 153,504 821,682 745,571

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 $ 3% 3% B 47 bR 23 %]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of each the Group’s material associates at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

Form of the Place of Principal place Class of
Entity Name entity incorporation of operation shares held
EREE 137 ERUE TEEERE FrisR 0 ER
Guangdong Financial  Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC Ordinary

Leasing Co., Ltd.

EREMBEMRE  HERART REARANE  PEARANE  EER
BRAR

Nanhai Changhai Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC Ordinary
Power Company
Limited

BEREEE iRl va FEARLME hEARKMEA il
BRAF

Guangdong Tiannuo  Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC Ordinary
Civil Explosives
Co., Ltd. (Note)

ERR#ERR EalA REARANE  PEARANE  EER
BB AR (M)

Note:  On 28 March 2018, Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage
Investments Holdings Limited* (“Nanhai Canmanage”) ({3 (L]
mEEREEREABMRAA), awholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the capital contribution agreement for the
capital contribution in Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives
Co., Ltd* (BERRFEREARAQF) (“Tiannuo”) and the
acquisition of Guangdong Nanhong Chemical Co., Ltd* ( &
MU THRAR) by Tiannuo thereafter in an amount of
RMB130,333,102.44, for 49% of the enlarged equity interests
of Tiannuo.

*

For identification purpose only

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4%t

10. REEE N TR (&)

RBEMRAEESEABERBFE

W

Proportion of

Proportion of

ownership interest voting rights
held by the Group held by the Group Principal activities

¥
kg er
-1

25%

32.636%

49%

GEE

EEBATE
RERLH TEER
25% Finance leasing business
and related advisory
and guarantee services
REBEXBREBEN
RERRE
32.636% Generation and sale of
electricity and heated
steam
HEREERATME
49% Manufacture and sale of

emulsion explosives and

industrial detonating

cord
REBEYRBERHE

RZE-NF=ZA=Z+NE &
SEE2EHRBFLAHELTEE
BEEREERLA ([EHEEXE])
AT EEBERNTIEERKA
REBAERAR([R#H]) REXGH
BEEZERBUICIERAF -
WERESARFECBARAZE D
ZADZO+TA - BERARK
130,333,102.447T °
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s material associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd

For the year ended 31 December 2018

REtE NRIER (&)

BRAASESERBERRZHBER
MEHINMT U THHEHNREZT
REERRZMBHRER 2T BER
BAEMBHRELERIGRES -

P S S D R o b B4R A B IS 1R
£ 15 P M AR AR ©

ERENBEREERAF

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BT T BT T

Current assets mEEE 2,743,225 2,078,057

Non-current assets EREBEE 2,823,689 2,739,712

Current liabilities mEBEE (1,799,924) (1,201,146)

Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (2,633,195) (2,478,007)

Net asset value BEFE 1,133,795 1,138,616

2018 2017

—E-N\E —EF—+tF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BT T T I

Revenue U 364,758 265,965

Profit for the year F AR 39,138 66,537

Exchange differences for the year FNEHZE5E (49,414) 64,295
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FRN2m@E (BB,

for the year W a5 (10,276) 130,832

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 5 8 3% ¥ J§t A f 2 5]
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BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REtE AR (41)
Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd (Continued) ERERBEHEARLT (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to RIEAMERERP R L NTER Y
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised BE M (E B2 | 3t B 75 & R it Y BR -

in the consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Net assets of the associate BERRzEEFE 1,133,795 1,138,616
Non-controlling interest of the /N vl
associate’s subsidiary FE 1 AR A 2 (178,859) (173,404)
954,936 965,212
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in A& E R EE &R}
Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd REHERRAT]
A EER TS
ERaEs 25% 25%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REBRERERFE
Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd HEBRAR]
w2 BREE 238,734 241,303
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited EEESREARAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT I
Current assets mENEE 994,698 978,943
Non-current assets ERBEE 743,748 879,475
Current liabilities mENARE (422,585) (313,290)
Net asset value BEFE 1,315,861 1,545,128

1 8 8 CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REE&E NI ()
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited (Continued) EERBREARLAT (£)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Revenue g 1,397,805 1,275,128
Profit for the year FRAEF 193,558 180,351
Exchange differences for the year FRE N E5E (68,529) 103,006
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEE RSB 125,029 283,357
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to NGB RERERBES N TR

the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised BE A {E ER | ift B 7% & R AT st S BR -

in the consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Net assets of the associate BENR 2 EEFE 1,315,861 1,545,128
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in A& B R EE RS
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited BEBRAFZ
WEEERTG

ERa 32.636% 32.636%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in AEBREERS

Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited EEBRAA
a2 REE 429,444 504,268

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 $ 3% 3% B 47 bR 23 %]
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 10. R E N EIRER (2)

Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., Ltd. ERAXEREERAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current assets MEBEE 58,778 -
Non-current assets IERBEE 232,499 -
Current liabilities nREBE (120,876) -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,950) -
Net asset value BEFE 168,451 -
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue W 2= 259,646 -
Profit for the year FRRBN 10,742 -
Exchange differences for the year FNE K E R (6,786) -
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEE RSB 3,956 -

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 10. R E N EIRER (2)
Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., Ltd. (Continued) ERAXEREERAT (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to REEEMEmER PR S A al R
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised MR T (B B b sl B 7 R Rl 9 B

in the consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
Net assets of the associate BaERNR2FEE 168,451 -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in REBRERKHERE
Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., Ltd. BRARZEAR
BERFEES L 49% -
Group’s share of net assets in Guangdong Tiannuo 7 &= B fE1f
Civil Explosives Co., Ltd. ERXHRE
ERARIZEFEE 82,541 -
Goodwil Gk 70,963 -
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in FEERERRHRE
Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., Ltd. BERANFIERZ
IREE 153,504 -

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 $ 3% 3% B 47 bR 23 %]
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVTPL”)

20. RAREFABRBZEHEE

192

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Equity investment in the PRC KA Bz RAREE
- non-current (Note 1) —FEmE (PH5E1) 7,598 9,172
Movement of financial asset at FVTPL is analysed as follows: BEARBEFABE eREEZETN
T
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
At 1 January 2018 RZE—NF—H—H 9,172 8,527
Decrease in fair value of FFABECEeREE
financial assets at FVTPL Z AT ERD (1,148) -
Exchange difference PE H Z=%A (426) 645
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+-A=+—8 7,598 9,172
Notes: B -
1. The equity investments represent investments in equity ZRAEEERERERRE LT

securities issued by a listed entity in PRC. The fair value of the
equity investments was approximately HK$7,598,000 (2017:
HK$9,172,000) as valued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuer. The fair value is within
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy with significant unobservable
inputs. For the year ended 31 December 2018, a decrease in fair
value of approximately HK$1,148,000 (2017: Nil) is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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FEEETAIRAZS HBLHE
HEMSEFTHEERARGENS
7,598,000 (Z B —+HF: B
9,172,0007T) - A A EFH O E AR
NESHNE-LHRGEEFNS
RENBRZBE - BHE-Z—\F
+ZA=+—H1t ARERDOEL
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BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 21. FRAEEERHEESRE
LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets EREEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-NF—HA—H - -
Additions 0 155,010 -
Depreciation provided during the year FANFTRITE (783) -
Exchange difference &5 =% (5,972) -
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F
+ZA=+—8 148,255 -

The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to
use underlying leased premises under operating lease
arrangements over the lease terms, which are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liabilities.

ERREEEASEREEERERY
REERRNEERBEEEEY R &
M E AR AR RETITE R RFHRER
K (AMERNEERBEERFET AR
)5 K-
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21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 1. FRAREEREEESERS &)
LIABILITIES (continuea)
Lease liabilities HEEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT I
Maturity analysis EIER D T
- contractual undiscounted cash flows: — B #ARENIA
BERE:
Less than one year —FRA 4,980 -
One to five years —ERF 29,463 -
Over five years AFUE 312,647 -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at RZZE—NF+=A
31 December 2018 =+—HZXRUHE
HEAGERRE 347,090 -
Lease liabilities analysed as: A
Current Bl &R 4,980 -
Non-current FE BN &7 145,450 -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF
+-A=+—H” 150,430 -
Amounts recognised in the statement of financial REOBRERAERZ2H
position
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEET T BT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-NF—H—H - -
Additions during the year FRIE N 155,010 -
Interest charged to profit or loss B EETFE 1,479 -
Exchange difference = (6,059) -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-—NF+ZA
=+—H 150,430 -




21.
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continuea)

21. FRAEEEREERSE »)

Lease liabilities (Continued) HEaeE (&)
Amounts recognised in consolidated profit or loss REGSERBRZLHE
2018 2017
=F SO —E 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBELHNE 1,479 -
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of REEESREREIAZLHE
cash flows
2018 2017
=F St —E 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T

Total cash outflow for leases

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale are stated at net realisable value. They
are held under medium-term lease in the PRC.

The cost of properties held for sale incurred and recognised as
expenses during the year is HK$8,820,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: HK$7,208,000).

HEZBRE ML AR — -

22, FEWE
HEWMETIAA SR ENR -ZEY
EMRNRBEAPBRBEORE -

BHEZZE—N\F+ZA=+—HLHF
B BRI LFTAKRRNZFEME
AN 758,820,000 (—ZF —+4F:
75 %7,208,0007T) °
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BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T AT I
At Cost 59N
Food, beverages and hotel supplies B OB B E
HrEm 380 494
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in HE-_ZT—- N \F+ZA=1+—HILHF
cost of sales amounts to HK$1,489,000 for the year ended 31 B BREAIWFAEHEXEACFE
December 2018 (2017: HK$389,000). AR A7 11,489,000 (—ZF— 4
75 #389,0007T) °
The Directors considered the provision for inventory AEEEERAEANBTELEER 2
obsolescence is not required. (2017: Nil). FEARAEREBE(ZS—LF: &) -
24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 24, BEHEERFR
2018 2017
—E-N\E&E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ST I
Analysed as: 78R
Current mE 242,708 -
Non-current JER B 365,465 -
608,173 -

1 96 CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. MEHERWR (&)

Minimum lease Present value of
payments lease payments
HERRZEE REHEEMNRK
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\%§ —T—+F —E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Finance lease receivables comprise: L& & & W 1 4E
Within one year THB—F 286,004 - 252,388 -
More than one year but BB —FETBAMRSE
not more than two years 292,734 - 276,004 -
More than two years but BEBERFETBBRSF
not more than five years 85,700 - 80,715 -
More than five years BBAF - - - -
664,438 - 609,107 -
Less: unearned finance income R BREVR B A (55,331) - N/A N/A
Present value of minimum lease Y SEBENHKZRE
payment receivables 609,107 - 609,107 N/A
Less: impairment loss allowance B ORMEBRKER
- lifetime ECL allowance -2 HEHER
BREE (934) - (934) -
608,173 - 608,173 -
Movements of impairment loss allowance on finance lease BMERERKF ZHBEEBIEENE D
receivables are as follows: m
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1 January 2018 RZE-—NF—-H—H - -
Impairment losses recognised R IMEIEL 972 -
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses M FE H, 22 &5 (38) -
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\F
+=B=+—H 934 -

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 $ 3% 3% B 47 bR 23 %] 1 97
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24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

All leases are denominated in RMB. The term of finance lease
is ranged from 1 to 5 years. The effective interest rates of the
finance lease as at 31 December 2018 ranged from 5.30% to
7.41% per annum.

There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection with
finance lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements
that needed to be recorded as at the end of the reporting
period.

The finance lease receivables are secured by the leased assets,
mainly plant and machinery leased, as at 31 December 2018.
The Group is not permitted to sell, or repledge the collateral of
the finance lease receivables without consent from the lessee in
the absence of default by the lessee.

Estimates of fair value of collateral are made during the
credit approval process. These estimates of valuations are
made at the inception of finance lease, and generally not
updated except when the receivable is individually impaired.
When a finance lease receivable is identified as impaired,
the corresponding fair value of collateral of that receivable
is updated by reference to market value such as recent
transaction price of the assets.

Security deposits received from customers as at 31 December
2018 represent finance lease deposits received from customers
which are repayable by end of the lease period of the
respective finance leases. Deposits of HK$21,315,000 have
been received by the Group to secure certain finance lease
receivables and are classified into non-current liabilities based
on the final lease instalment due date stipulated in the finance
lease agreements. The deposits are non-interest bearing.

The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting period
are not past due. Details of impairment assessment for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 6.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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FEREANARBE -TIRER
EZHRBRNF1E5F -RF—/\F
tZA=t+—R BREMREZEREF
K F6.30%E7.41% °

REEHRR TEEHEBEHEL YK
IARMER 2 RERFSKEBATK-

D

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—HB &M
ERWFNEEEERER TERAA
HEZRE MR EAHALEED
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The Group allows an average credit period of
90 days to its customers.

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables after deducting the impairment loss allowance
presented based on invoice dates at the end of the reporting

25. fE U AR H b B UK IR

B EPBEABLENRIN REBEH
BEPZRZBERIENEEET AL
B THEEPTHOBZEES-

AREBRBREHRBEZRZAHEN 2
JEURBE 3R (AEHUR BB R ) 2 BRiR
DT

period:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
0-60 days 0ZE60H 1,194 799
61-90 days 61Z90H 29 163
91-120 days 91%&120H - 51
Over 120 days HBiB1208 48 79
Trade receivables JE U BR 3R 1,271 1,092
Other receivables (Note 1) E b e Y znE (MesE1) 20,445 6,834
21,716 7,926

Note 1: It includes finance lease interest receivables, VAT receivables,
and prepayments.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

The Group’s largest trade receivables balance was amounting
to HK$628,000 (2017: HK$510,000) at the end of the year.
Six (2017: four) other trade receivables balance represented
more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables and
amounted to HK$668,000 (2017: HK$956,000).

fizE1: EhBEREBRERKNE ATE
g ER RN -

REEY B % F AR TR RR
HEMBEEE G-

AEB2EREREREH BB
628,0007T (=& — £ : 510,000
TL) e RNB(ZE—HF:UE)EMfE
U AR SRS B (h 4B BEE % DA - T R URBR X
4R 4 EE BB 668,000 (ZF —+
F 1 5 ¥956,0007T ) °
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. FEW AR X & H fib FE W 5k 18
(Continued) (%)
At as 31 December 2018, trade receivables over 90 days RZE—NF+ZA=+—H BiE0O
amounted to HK$48,000 (2017: HK$130,000) were past due H ) JE Y BR SR & ¥R 78 1548,0007T ( —F
but not impaired as the balance were related to debtors with —+4F : F#130,0007T ) A B B R
sound repayment history and no recent history of default. HEEBALERT 2 RGEE Ril i

R FCEE - B R A HORUE -

An aging analysis of trade receivables that are past due but not B ERE SRR E 2 FEYWAR A BRER N T
impaired:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

91-120 days 91&120H - 51

Over 120 days Hi#@120H 48 79

48 130

200 CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Movements of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
are as follows:

25. fE U AR H b B UK IR

(%)

RN R R 2 BB R R EFEEHMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Balance at the beginning of the year REYE & 498 241

Impairment recognised on trade receivables BIEURIBE R
DERIE] 26 254

Provision written back on trade receivables W RIE Z

VERIENEIEE: (255) (14)
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses 4N [ 3 & &5 (13) 17
Balance at the end of the year RERER 256 498

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

T 7 TE B YR SR A0 B (B W 1 B - AR 5K [
EREUEFEERAARLEELER
EERSHARNEIMES AREFE
REANEERE EERREPREE
BR-

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 5 8 3% ¥ J§t A f 2 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F#t

201



202

Aok B B 25 A PR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25.

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables over 120 days
approximately amounted to HK$26,000 (2017: HK$254,000)
were impaired and fully provided for.

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables that
were neither past due nor impaired relate to other debtors for
whom there was no recent history of default. The Directors
considered that the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables approximates to their fair value.

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

FE e B 7% K EL Ath FE WK TR

(%)

RZZE—N\F+-A=+—8 iBi#E120
B8 e & 5B 40 8 #26,0007T (= F
—+ 4 F¥254,000T) B2 MEEHE
BB L o

2R 380 5 B AR Ol (B8 ) R M B K e EL A B LK
TR 2 BRI A B 3T 33 1 B 46 R A )
NROEBAEB - EFTRA BUEKE
REEMEUGRIAEZ REEEE R E
BEE -

RekBAeESEYRCEMR
TR

(@ BRE=RBASFEYEE:

2018 2017

—2-N% —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BET T BT T

Cash at bank and on hand RITRIRS R 1,233,229 179,884
Short-term bank deposit RHERITIF R 66,197 617,879
Short-term investment MERERE - 153,061
1,299,426 950,824

Less: pledged bank deposit B EEBRITER 77,755 63,963
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEY 1,221,671 886,861
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT (continued)

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by
the Group, short-term bank deposits and short-term
investment with an original maturity of three months or
less and cash equivalents.

Bank balances are interest bearing at respective saving
deposits rate in the Hong Kong and PRC, and the
effective interest rates of the Group’s bank balances
ranged from 0.13% to 4.10% per annum in Hong Kong
and 1.30% to 2.94% per annum in PRC. (2017: 0.79% to
4.05% per annum in Hong Kong and ranged from 1.43%
to 1.95% per annum in PRC).

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
Deposits amounting to approximately HK$77,755,000
(2017: HK$63,963,000) have been pledged to secure
a bank borrowing and is therefore classified as current
asset.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

26. B RRESEYRSEAR

TER &)
(a) BLRBESZEWRE: (&)

ROTEHR MBS ERAEEMFR
ERRIHAB=ZEARATH
RARITERRERARDRE -

RITEBRDERBEERTESEN
GFRHME B - MAEEIRITLER
WEBRFNEREEEN F0.13EE
4102 - R B 7y F1.30/2 £2.94
E(ZZE—tF /AN TF0.79
[EZ=4.05F EH BN F1.43EE
1.95/8) o

EHEARITEFIEEIR TRITLAR
BETAEBRRITREZFR D
& #877,755,000 (—ZF—tF:
75 #63,963,00070) WTFREEA
RITEEMER BB ARD
BE-

RITERLBASNEEMESEAT
P EHEHE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Hong Kong Dollars ok 25,102 56,440
Renminbi AR 1,139,690 250,944
United States Dollars EW 56,879 579,477
1,221,671 886,861
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT (continued)

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank
balances with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1,139,690,000 (2017: HK$250,944,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible
currency in the international market. The government of
the PRC has implemented foreign exchange control and
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the government of the
PRC.

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

26. BERBEEEBYREIEHFR
THEMR &)

(a) RERBRSZEWEE: (&)

RZE—NE+_A=+—H =&
SEUARKHENR @ RIRTHE
FRAREE XY A5 #51,139,690,0007T

—F —+F B %250,944,000
TT)  EWIHBEBETmS LA EBRA
B E - R BT E B INEE
H - A E L E S I P BREEST
B BUAT 2 e A B BR ) o

(b) MEFHFELENAEHRK

activities
Convertible

Borrowings notes Total
CE: TERRER k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H 810,263 135,586 945,849
Proceeds from borrowings BERBHRE 917,005 - 917,005
Repayment of borrowings BEEX (61,668) - (61,668)
Interest paid B F 8 - (3,325) (3,325)
1,665,600 132,261 1,797,861
Exchange adjustment X =% (30,813) - (30,813)
Interest expense FERE - 19,965 19,965

At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF
+=-A=+—H 1,634,787 152,226 1,787,018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. ENBRARA R EMESRIE
The credit period granted by the Group’s supplies ranges from REBETHER  EEHANFI0RE
30 days to 90 days. 90H -
The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade REBPRMEMARN REZHBMET
payables based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting JERBRR ZERER DT A0 T -
period:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
0-60 days 0%60H 3,269 615
61-90 days 61%290H 1 302
91-120 days 91£120H - -
Over 120 days HBiB1208 200 89
Trade payables FETBR K 3,470 1,006
Other payables H fth B 308 128,107 129,846
131,577 130,852
Other payables included the following items: Hih e B RETHIEE :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Contract liabilities (Note 1) BHBE (1) 4,768 -
Other tax payables H b fE R 1B 10,921 11,412
Payables on convertible notes and FERATMREERR
interest payables (Note 2) B 2 FE IR
(Mi5E2) 78,819 78,819
Others (Note 3) Hh (HIEE3) 33,599 39,615
128,107 129,846
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

1. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, contract liabilities as at 31
December 2018 are separately presented. See note 3.2 for
explanations.

2. On 9 May 2002, the Group issued HK$230,000,000 convertible
notes (the “2002 CB”) which were due on 9 May 2007 (the
“Maturity Date”), bearing interest at 1% per annum and in
units of HK$1,000,000 each. As at 31 December 2018 and
2017, the balance of HK$75,000,000 2002 CB were due
but not converted. Such principal monies together with all
interest accrued thereon up to Maturity Date, amounting to
HK$3,819,000 (2017: HK$3,819,000), were reclassified as other
payables and become repayable on demand.

3. Others include accrued staff salaries and welfare, deposits
received from hotel customers and other temporary receipts.

The Directors considered that the carrying amount of trade and
other payables approximates to their fair value. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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27. BERR R EMBEMSKE

(%)
GEE

1. REMREBWBHHRSEINE165RR%
RZE-NF+ZA=+—HNED
BEESHEI-2FME32-

2. RZZEZE-ZFHRANB AEEE
77 76 #230,000,0007T 2 o] 42 i% Z &
([2002m] MR =45 ]) - BIBAR A =F
TEFRANB(TEEAR])  F85A
12 - 518 #1,000,000C - A - &
—NF+ZA=+—BERZZE—+tF
+=ZA=+—H " #%%%75,000,000
TLZ2002F AR EIEC BB RE K
B-BEASERENZIMHAZHA
# B8 13,819,000 (— T — L4
75 453,819,000t ) E ¥ 9 18 & H fh &
3R A B SRS (EE -

3. EHiMBREEFEIFEREMN BEER
Felize M E bR WIE -

BEXERR ARENEMERKEAME
NRBECEREEEEQARERE KK
B 2 ) E B 7% L b B IR LA RE AR P
BREMNFEOREERR AT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

28. BORROWINGS 28. B

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Bank loans RITEE 1,465,060 680,647
Loan from an associate RN ol = 8 - 39,616
Loan from immediate holding company BEEERARZER 90,000 90,000
Other loans EMER 79,727 -
1,634,787 810,263
Secured LSk 1,465,060 680,647
Unsecured A 169,727 129,616
1,634,787 810,263

Carrying amount repayable: JEEERTE(E -
Within one year —F R 1,071,264 624,298

More than one year, but not exceeding FEiB— 18
two years T BB R F 404,003 24,010

More than two years, but not more than HBAMFE
five years TR F 142,505 126,014
More than five years HBERF 17,015 35,941
1,634,787 810,263

Less: Amount shown under current liabilities BAARBEEZ

KIB 1,071,264 624,298
563,523 185,965

During the year, the Group settled loans amounting to
HK$61,668,000 (2017: HK$10,441,000).

On 12 April 2017, the Group obtained a short-term loan
amounting to RMB33,000,000 from the Group’s associate,
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited, which is unsecured
with a fixed interest rate at 2.6% per annum and repayable on
demand. The loan was fully settled during the year.

RAFE AEBCEEERAEE
61,668,000 (—Z T —+tF | B
10,441,000) ©

R-ZE—+tFWOMA+ B AEEMRA
AEEBMEAREEREEHEEEARD
ARMBARE—FHNEHRERARYE
33,000,0007T ZEX AEEA  BE
MEFGF2.6% - WERRAFRE 2
)

i3
B

il

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

28. BORROWINGS (continued) 28. B (&)

On 5 December 2017, the Group obtained a three-year loan
amounting to HK$90,000,000 from the Group’s immediate
holding company, Prize Rich Inc. which is unsecured with a
fixed interest rate at 3% per annum.

On 6 December 2017, the Group obtained a loan facility from a
bank of approximately USD110,090,000, for which a controlling
shareholder has provided the necessary corporate guarantee.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has utilized the loan
facility of USD100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$783,038,000) (2017: USD70,000,000).

In March 2018, the Group obtained two two-year unsecured
loans amounting to RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$79,727,000) in total from two independent
third parties, at a floating interest rate plus a premium
calculated at 10% above the prevailing RMB benchmark rate
published by The People’s Bank of China. On 26 February
2019 and 27 February 2019, the Group entered into the
Supplemental Loan Agreements with these two parties
respectively, in which the loan repayment periods for these two
loans were extended by 2 years to March 2022 and any other
terms and conditions of the loans remained unchanged.

On 16 April 2018, the Group obtained a loan facility from a
bank of HK$40,000,000. It has been secured by the Group’s
property of approximately HK$73,218,000 which are situated
at Unit 01, 14 and 15 on 5th Floor, Wing On Plaza, No. 62
Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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R-ZZE—+F+-_ARE AEFEAK
&= 7 HEZR A T Prize Rich Inc.EU&
A Hl = F /975 90,000,000 E 3 © #%
ERAEER BENELTFI% -

RZE—+F+_A B AEEMA
R 77 HL 18 #9110,090,000% T B & ZX &t
B FZRFAHEERBELERNAE
R BEZZT-—NF+ZA=+—8"
N £ E 2 2 51100,000,000% 7t (5
B #783,038,0007T) EFALE - LAE
R ARMEFMEARAZA(ZE—+
£ :70,000,000% 7T ) °

RZE—N\F=ZR AEERMEE L
%= 7 A3 A EIM S A K #70,000,000
7T (FAERE#79,727,0007T) MEF
EFRYAEERREF FEXRBZFHF
E AP BRARBRITEBRNEESG
HFEEFN10% R _E—NLFE=
ARZ+XRBRZZE-—NFZHA=++t
B AEESREZM A LETEER
WE ERNERAUERREE-F
TZFZ R o FIE A ] H At {55k K 4H
Al g5 T8 o

RZZE—NFEOA+ B AEEMIR
THU3 8 40,000,000t E G E
LA7E #73,218,0007T K9 ¥ %~ M= K 5%
5 (ML KL EIS51E01 - 14R15F ) 1E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

28. BORROWINGS (continued)

During the year, specifically for the Group’s operation of
financial leasing business, the Group obtained loans from
Guangdong Nanhai Rural Commercial Bank, Bank of
DongGuan and Guangdong Huaxing Bank, amounting to
HK$577,855,000, which are interest bearing at floating rates
ranged from 5.23% to 6.50% per annum. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of the loans was HK$546,367,000,
in which approximately HK$130,980,000 of loans are secured
by the Group’s investment property and property, plant and
equipment, while approximately HK$415,387,000 of loans
are secured by the finance lease receivables of approximately
HK$505,647,000 of the Group. Such loans are repayable within
5 years according to their own repayment schedules.

According to HK Int 5, which requires the classification of
whole instalment loans containing the repayment on demand
clause as current liabilities, the aggregate carrying amounts
of HK$827,647,000 (2017: HK$572,677,000) have been
reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities as at
31 December 2018.

The secured bank loans of HK$1,465,060,000 (2017:
HK$680,647,000) are secured by the Group’s investment
property and property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$316,414,000 (2017: HK$323,697,000) that is situated
at Block 1 of Guangdong-Hongkong Finance & Technology
Park, 6 Jinke Road, Guicheng Street, Nanhai District, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC and Unit 01, 14 and 15
on 5th Floor, Wing On Plaza, No. 62 Mody Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, the pledged finance lease receivables amounted
to HK$505,647,000 (2017: Nil) and the pledged bank deposit
amounted to HK$77,755,000 (2017: HK$63,963,000). The
weighted average effective rate on the bank loans is from
1.95% to 4.90% (2017: from 2.03% to 6.15%) per annum and
repayable within 17 years.

28. B (&)

RAF REHSASEREREED
ZEE - AEEHRMEREEEN
EEBRITROABRAT RERITRG
BERAFRREREHEBFITERNER
& H BB 577,855,000 ERZF
IR E5.28%%E6.50% - A - T — )\
F+_A=Z+—B EFXZ2EEES
75 #546,367,00070 E R B A B
130,980,000t EF AN A KB 218 &
MERDE BEREEAKT mE
# 1Y 7 #415,387,00070 B 7 A & LA
#505,647,0007T #) Bt & 0 & FE W K 1E
KR -BIEEFNEREX HEERZ
BYRHHYAERAFR-

REEBFEESR (ERESHIREX
BEBR 2T ETHERSERARD B
&) - &FHRE 2R A EHE827,647,000
T (=T —tF: 8 #572,677,0007T)
ERZE-N\F+-A=+—HHE}kR
PEBEEFOEERBAEE-

B R 17 B 508 %1,465,060,0007T
—ZT— 4% : %5 ¥680,647,0007T) M
AEBZEREMERDE BEEK
BN PEEREBLTREEE
WMEESEER BB SRR
RBEBRDEKL EIHSE01 - 14115
=)A £ 4B 316,414,000 (= F
— -4 : 5 #323,697,0007T) * E K I#
B & & e Wk 4978 505,647,000
ZE—tF E)REEARITER
B HET7,755,000T (ZE— L F B
63,963,0007T ) FT & # « R 17 & ;2 M
R BREF B FHEBH1.95E %F4.90
E(ZZF—t4:2.03EZE6.15E) - I
EETEFERERSR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

28.

29.

BORROWINGS (continued)

The fair values of current borrowings equal their carrying
amounts, as the impact of discounting is not significant. The
fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate
based on borrowing rates from 1.95% to 4.90% (2017: 2.03%
to 6.15%) and are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The Group’s borrowings denominated in the following
currencies:

28.

B (&)

HRMRZYETAER RBAEN
AABEEEREERE ARNBEERESE
BHFMNEAB1.95EF400E (ZF—+
F:2.03E%6.15F ) UBHIRR S RS
B BBRANESERE=-

il

AREBEZEFAMTHERHE:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong Dollars S 134,609 115,851
Renminbi AR 717,140 147,586
UsD ETT 783,038 546,826
1,634,787 810,263

CONVERTIBLE NOTES 20, R ERE

On 9 May 2002, the Group issued HK$230,000,000 convertible
notes (the “2002 CB”) which were due on 9 May 2007 (the
“Maturity Date”), bearing interest at 1% per annum and in
units of HK$1,000,000 each. As at 31 December 2018 and
2017, the balance of HK$75,000,000 2002 CB were due but
not converted. Such principal monies together with all interest
accrued thereon up to maturity, amounting to HK$3,819,000
(2017: HK$3,819,000), were reclassified as other payables and
become repayable on demand.
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R-ZZEZ-_FRANA AEEETHE
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BREE]) EBER_ZZTLFAHA
NB(TEEB]) - ZFERE1ER
B R FEA /B 1,000,000 c A=
Z-NER_ZET—+tF+_A=+—
B - # %88 #75,000,0007T #92002 7]
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BE_T—

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

On 13 October 2014, the Company issued convertible notes
in the principal amount of HK$166,232,000 (the “2014 CB”)
(of which its fair value at the issuance date is approximately
HK$129,270,000) as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of Southern Limited. The 2014 CB bears coupon
rate at 2% per annum and are convertible into shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.76 per share at any
time following the third anniversary of the issue date up to
the maturity date on 13 October 2019. At any time prior to
the maturity date of the 2014 CB, the Company is entitled to
redeem in whole or in part of the 2014 CB. Unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the 2014
CB will be redeemed on the maturity date on 13 October
2019. The 2014 CB carries interest at a rate of 2% per annum,
which is payable annually in arrears or upon the conversion or
redemption of the bonds.

The convertible notes contain two components, liability, and
equity components. The equity component is presented in
equity under heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The
values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined at the issuance of the notes.

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

2. T RERE (&)

RZZE—MF+A+=H ARRET
7N 4 58 &7 #166,232,00070 ( £ A 7
BEREITHY AE1129,270,0007T) 2
AR (20141 R B ) 1B A
WHERmABRARZEMHRIE - 20147]
BRERIEFEBER2% B RRN#ETT
TRERAMEEERIHA TN
FHA+=EHATREREGREE
0.76 TH ] BN B K ) - R2014 A &
% B B B RIS AR A AR
B0 2 2Bk 2B 2014 R AR =45 - (4 3F
EREER BRLEE kit T
2014 BB BN BHA =S —NF
+A+Z=ZRHER - 20147 AR =95 Thi%
FRREF B FEEFHARERER
o FE B B 2 {5 o

AMEREEEMEy -8 ERERED
e By 2N ERIE T 2 AT HBAR
SEFEE-AESY RERBONEE
RBETEFKET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 20 MTRBRRE (2

Liability
component
=R
HK$’000
BT T
At 1 January 2017 N_E—+F—H—H 121,092
Interest charged calculated at an effective REBRFE1416EFE 2 FEBME
interest rate of 14.16% 17,819
Interest paid EAHE (3,325)
At 31 December 2017 and R-ZB—tF+=ZA=+-HR
1 January 2018 —EZ-NE—-—H—H 135,586
Interest charged calculated at an effective BRERFE1416EAE 2 FIERAX
interest rate of 14.16% 19,965
Interest paid EAHE (3,325)
At 31 December 2018 R==2B-NF+=ZA=+—H 152,226
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Analysed as: PHER:
Amount due within one year shown under MEBEBEE TR
current liabilities R—FREHZ
Gkt 152,226 -
Amount due after one year shown under ERMEBEEETAR
non-current liabilities R—FREHZ
Gkt - 135,586
152,226 135,586

The fair value of the liabilities component of the convertible
notes are calculated using cash flows discounted at market
interest rate of 14.16% (2017: 14.16%) and are within level 2 of

the fair value hierarchy.
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BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

30. IE LB IH

T RRERMBEFEZCRRBRLE
BMEBBENEEE:

Undistributed

profits of

an associate

BENRZ

RAOBEBR

HK$’000

BT T

At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—HF—H 10,478

Charged to profit or loss (note 11) FFAETE (H3E11) 4,265

Exchange differences N ZEw 972
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R=-T—+t&+=-A=+—8BK

—E-NE—-—H—H 15,715

Credited to profit or loss (note 11) kB (1) (6,910)

Exchange differences X =% (393)

At 31 December 2018 R=Z2B-NF+=H=+—H 8,412

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

AN R IR IR TR A £R 2 70 4T LA VR B 75 R
WA

2018 2017

—B-N\F —B—tfF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Deferred tax liabilities AR IBEE 8,412 15,715

No deferred tax has been provided in respect of the valuation
surplus relating to the hotel properties for the year as the
carrying amount does not exceed the total investment cost
and the Director considered that there is no taxable flow of
economic benefits to the Group.

A BB R A M R
SHREERE R R EEE
Y EBBEREEREFR AN AR
T & 3 48 B4 5 b M0 4T M o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continuea)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$26,732,000 (2017: HK$34,672,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of that tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law dependent
upon the nationality and domicile of the foreign investors, a
5% to 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement has become
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rates range from 5% to 10%.

As at 31 December 2018, the unrecognised deferred tax
liabilities were approximately HK$17,000 (2017: approximately
HK$18,000), relating to withholding tax that would be
payable for undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries, as the
Directors consider that the timing for reversal of the related
temporary differences can be controlled and such temporary
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. The
total undistributed profits of theses PRC subsidiaries as at
31 December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$170,000
(2017: approximately HK$180,000).

With regard to the Group’s investment properties, as none of
them is held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale,
the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of the investment properties as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes on disposal of its investment
properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. |R&

Number of shares

Share capital

RGEE &S
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F§ —T+F ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT AT T
Authorised: ETERA -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEEEATL
ik 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EBTRAERE -
At beginning of year and HYORBR
the end of year 1,712,329,142  1,712,329,142 171,233 171,233

A share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2013
(the “New Scheme”).

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remuneration, compensating and/or providing benefits to the
participants for their contribution or future contribution to the
Group and to strengthen the many long-term relationships that
the participants may have with the Group. Eligible participants
means any person falling within any of the following classes (a)
any employee; (b) any business associate of the Company or
any subsidiary; (c) any other group or classes of participants
which the board, in its absolute discretion, considers to have
contributed or will contribute, whether by way of business
alliance or other business arrangement, to the development
and growth of the Group. The New Scheme became effective
on 26 April 2013 and, will remain in force for 10 years.

ARBRER-ZZ—=FMA=+/<A
BIT2ZBERBFREG LRA— B
g ([&t&E) -

AEIEERARRREEE L BT
SEERE RE R BER L
M MRERFUAREEFEL SAE
HZER ARZBE2EERAEE Y
RERBMBAR REEZ2EEZER
HER EFTSREEEAENBRAR
REZAREER BRE2EELHAE
AEBEZERERZLEE -FEER
2 8E BN A TER — @R 2 E A
T (EMMES : (b)A A B kA E
RAEZEMERBHEAN: O EFTE2R
B 15 P8 45 B A8 3K 45 4 6 4 SE 7 Bl B =X
Hp X B LHEARE 2 BREERE
HEBZ EEMmAR KRR 2 EE -
AER—E-=FWA-TRBAEXR
YRZBEETFRAER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the New Scheme and other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10 per cent of the total number of shares in issues as
at the date of adoption of the New Scheme (i.e. 118,832,914
Shares of the Company) unless the Company obtain a fresh
approval from the shareholders.

No option shall be granted to any participant such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to such participant
under the New Scheme and any other option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant shall exceed 1 per cent. of the total number of
shares in issue.

Under the Scheme, where the Board proposes to grant any
option to a participant who is a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or any of their respective associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to him or her under the
Scheme and any other option schemes of the Company in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant; (i)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1 per cent. of the total
number of Shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such proposed grant of
options must be approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting with all connected persons of the Company
abstaining from voting (except that any connected persons may
vote against the relevant resolution at such general meeting
provided that his intention to do so is stated in the circular
to the shareholders of the Company). Any vote taken at the
meeting to approve the grant of such options must be taken on
a poll.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the
option to which the offer relates shall be deemed to have
been granted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer, duly signed by the grantee with the number of
share in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated
therein, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company within 1 month from the offer date.

The subscription price of share options granted under the New
Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant in the offer letter and shall be at least
the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (b) a
price being the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of a share on the offer date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30 per cent. (or
such higher percentage as may be allowed under the Listing
Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

No option has been granted under the New Scheme since its
adoption.

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

33. FERES

The table below shows details of the non-wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

TREIIANEETER B AR R

FREEBMB RTINS

interests:
Place of
incorporation Proportion of Proportion of Total comprehensive
and principal ownership interests voting right held by income/(expense) allocated Accumulated
Name of place of held by non-controlling non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
subsidiary business interests interests interests interests
AR
BEREE FERESFRR FERER FERER
WRARERH EEHH iy 2334 FrgRRRLA ELRA/ (F]) ZitFERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\F —EtF ZE-N\F “E—tF ZE-N\F “E—tF ZE-N\F —EtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BB BRI BETT
Guangdong Yibaiian  PRC 30% 30% 30% 30% (336) (1,747) (883) (547)
Comprehensive
Health Technology
Ltd.
ERSARAER HEARLAE
REERAR
Guangdong Sino PRC 20% 20% 20% 20% 1,326 14 218,982 163,675
Rock Tyco
Construction
Co., Ltd.*
BRPEZHER  PEARLNE
BRRA
China Select Small ~ Hong Kong 49% 49% 49% 49% (1,316) - 2,284 3,600
Hotel Union Limited*
BERBEHH BE
BRAR
Canton Risen PRC 37% - 37% - 1,290 - 116,995 -
Financial Leasing
Co., Limited*
EREANRMERE hEARLAE
BRAF

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

subsidiaries that have a material non-controlling interests are

set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 33. FERER 2

Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive Health Technology

ook BV 285 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

EREERARENEARAT ([EA

Ltd. (“Yibaijian”) 1)
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T AT I
Current assets mENEE 3,982 5,649
Non-current assets ERBEE 19 33
Current liabilities REBE (1,629) (1,904)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AQ @A AEEEZR 3,255 4,325
Non-controlling interests SEERR MR (883) (547)
Revenue WA 4,406 3,106
Loss for the year FAREE (1,261) (5,592)
Loss for the year attributable to: FANBHERE:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE ¥ =N (882) (3,915)
Non-controlling interests of Yibaijian SHEEZ
FEFE AR HE = (379) (1,677)
(1,261) (5,592)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive Health Technology

33.

JEIERER (2)

EREERARENEARAT ([EA

Ltd. (“Yibaijian”) (Continued) ®’1) (#)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Other comprehensive (expense)/income, Hazrm (FAX),/
net of income tax: W BREiZ
Exchange difference arising on translation of ~ BB GINEFEREEL 2
foreign operations: ME W ZEE
Owners of the Company PN/NEIEZ ZSDN (188) (164)
Non-controlling interests of Yibaijian EEREZ
FEIE M an 43 (70)
(145) (234)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to: A2 HF X 4258
FB
Owners of the Company ZiN/NESIEF SN (1,070) (4,079)
Non-controlling interests of Yibaijian EAERZ
FEIER R (336) (1,747)
(1,406) (5,826)
Net cash outflow from operating activities LB FEIRS M
Ik (2,601) (3,964)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BREFEHRERAS
investing activities (i) F5 11 (33)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEHHEESMN
R - 9,604
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (nd)/
MAE R (2,590) 5,607
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuea) 33. FERER 2

Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd. (“Sino ERTPEZNERBERATB ([PEHR
Rock”) B1)

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Current assets MENEE 1,033,605 700,500
Non-current assets IERBEE 153,891 -
Current liabilities REBEE (23,923) (78)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (145,450) -

Equity attributable to owners of the Company A RQ &S A

JEIE#E & 799,141 546,747
Non-controlling interests FE 12 i A 2 218,982 153,675
Revenue WA - -
Profit/(loss) for the year FRNEF, (EE) 67,958 (7,229)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: FRRF, (&EE)
5B
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ ¥ =IN 54,366 (5,783)
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock FEREZ
IR M 13,592 (1,446)
67,958 (7,229)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income, Habzm (FAX),/
net of income tax: Was BB
Exchange difference arising on translation of &GN 5 E A4
foreign operations: ZIEHZ5
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ ¥ =N (26,945) 5,841
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock FEHREZ
FEE R (12,266) 1,460
(39,211) 7,301
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuea) 33. FERER 2

Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd. (“Sino ERTPEZNERBERATB ([PEHR
Rock?”) (Continued) B (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FREE R
BEBRS
Owners of the Company RRARER A 27,421 58
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock FERERZ
FEE R s 1,326 14
28,747 72
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KEERHRERAS
operating activities () 5% 44,656 (7,151)
Net cash inflow from investing activities KEEHRESRA
R 11,892 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEEHHESMA
R 217,642 700,350
Net cash inflow BWEMAFER 274,190 693,199
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuea)

China Select Small Hotel Union Limited (“China Select
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. FERER &)

BERBEPHARIF ([EER

Small”) &l
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Current assets mENEE 7,740 9,720
Current liabilities mEBE (1,646) -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR &S A
JEIE#E & 3,810 6,120
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR A 2 2,284 3,600
Revenue WA 753 -
Loss for the year FAREE (2,964) -
Loss for the year attributable to: FABERBE:
Owners of the Company KRABER A (1,866) -
Non-controlling interests of WERE 2
China Select Small FE 12 AR A 2 (1,098) -
(2,964) -
Other comprehensive expense, Hih2MEHAL -
net of income tax: Brii%
Exchange difference arising on translation of & /G SN EE TS EE £
foreign operations: ZERERE:
Owners of the Company PiN/NEIEZ TN (444) -
Non-controlling interests of BEREZ
China Select Smalll FE 12 AR A 2 (218) -
(662) -
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BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuea) 33. FERER 2

China Select Small Hotel Union Limited (“China Select BEREEPHERAT ([HERE])
Small”) (Continued) (#%&)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Total comprehensive expenses attributable to: & A & [ 7 7 4258
B
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ TN (2,310) -
Non-controlling interests of BEREZ
China Select Smalll FE 12 AR A 2 (1,316) -
(3,626) -
Net cash outflow from operating activities L REIRE R
F 58 (2,700) -
Net cash inflow from investing activities KEFHRESRA
g 5 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEEHEESMA
FRE - 9,720
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (Rd)
MAEER (2,695) 9,720
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuea)

Canton Risen Financial Leasing Co., Limited (“Canton
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

FERER (2)

EREENBEAEERQA ([BRE

Risen”) B
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T AT I
Current assets mENEE 546,442 -
Non-current assets ERBEE 358,446 -
Current liabilities REBE (240,383) -
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (335,455) -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARQ&HAE A
FE15 = 212,055 -
Non-controlling interests FE 2 A A 2 116,995 -
Revenue N 36,758 -
Profit for the year FRRAN 17,233 -
Profit for the year attributable to: FARNEGE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ ¥ =IN 15,891 -
Non-controlling interests of Canton Risen BERZ
FEFERR R 1,342 -
17,233 -
Other comprehensive expense, HtzmmAx -
net of income tax: Brfiiz
Exchange difference arising on translation of ~ #E /G EFEREE 4
foreign operations: ZIEN Z5
Owners of the Company KRRHEE A (3,039) -
Non-controlling interests of Canton Risen BER
FEIER R (52) -
(3,091) -
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BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuea) 33.

Canton Risen Financial Leasing Co., Limited (“Canton
Risen”) (Continued)

JEIERER (2)

EREENBEAEERQA ([BRE
B (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FAEAREBE
B
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ TN 12,852 -
Non-controlling interests of Canton Risen BRERZ
FEE R 1,290 -
14,142 -
Net cash outflow from operating activities R EEIR S M
R (779,275) -
Net cash outflow from investing activities REFEHIRS M
g (2,544) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEEHEESMA
R 850,979 -
Net cash inflow REMANFR 69,160 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34. EEBRNTH

35.

The Group as lessor

The Group’s property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$6,780,000 (2017: HK$6,373,000). All of the
properties held have committed tenants 1 to 10 years (2017:

1 to 11 years).

FEEBHAA

For the year ended 31 December 2018

AEBRFRERESEMERS WAL
A7516,780,0007T (ZZF—+HF | Bk
6,373,0007T) ° FTEE MO WER KK —

EHE(ZB—£F: —E+—F) 88

BEIHMEP -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted REFER AEEEEHBEAPFTHZRK
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: HEMESHOT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within one year R—FR 8,648 9,197
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEFRF
(BREERMF) 13,789 19,952
Over five years HFELE 11,528 11,955
33,965 41,104
COMMITMENTS 35. &iE
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Commitments for the acquisition of BAVE BE &
the property, plant and equipment R 2 R - 1,957
Commitments for the refurbishment of WEMEREZ
investment properties B AR EE 217 -
Commitments for the investment cost of S F AR E KA
establishment of subsidiary 2B AR 409,203 837,462
Commitments for the investment cost of ERAMEEREE
development of Industry Park in Danzao AR 2 & A E 21,505 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

36. PLEDGED OF ASSETS 36.

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged
to secure general banking facilities to the Group or borrowings
of the Group (see note 28):

EEERH

EBUTEREEENEECRIFUIERE
FAREBRN—RIBITRERANEBNE
B (FfizEes) :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Investment property "EYE 210,706 213,025
Property, plant and equipment LESRY 105,708 110,672
Pledged bank deposit DR ITER 77,755 63,963
Pledged lease receivables [REEEHEEN= T EN 505,647 -
899,816 387,660

37. CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS 37. RMBF AR FTEESE B

IN SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT LOSS OF
CONTROL

Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss
of control

On 27 September 2018, pursuant to 1st capital injection
agreement, a third party injected cash of RMB52,145,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$59,237,000) respectively as
itself capital contribution to Canton Risen Financial Leasing
Co., Limited (“Canton Risen”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, which has an effective dilution of the Group’s interest in
Canton Risen. After these capital contribution, the Group and
the party together own equity interests of Canton Risen as to
77.28% and 22.72% respectively, and the Group still controls
Canton Risen.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

37. CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

IN SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT LOSS OF
CONTROL (continuea)

Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss
of control (Continued)

On 28 December 2018, pursuant to 2nd capital
injection agreement, another third party injected cash of
RMB52,147,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$59,604,000)
respectively as itself capital contribution to Canton Risen,
which has an effective dilution of the Group’s interest in Canton
Risen. After these capital contribution, the Group and two
parties together own equity interests of Canton Risen as to
62.98% and 37.02% respectively, and the Group still controls
Canton Risen.

The Group recognised an increase in non-controlling interests
of HK$118,841,000 and no change in equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company.

The effects of changes in the ownership interests of Canton
Risen on the equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company are summarised as follows:

37. RIMBF AR AESE B

BEIERE )

BRHENBFARER BEFER
® (&)

R-ZE—NF+_A-+NB REF
ZREERE B FE - RERRNE
AN & AR#52,147,0007T (FHER L
7 #59,604,0007T) " {E R ¥ BERIH
AE MG REREE T AEENER
B AR FER RNEBMEE=
7 Bl A B EX 162.98% K 37.02%H)
B MASEDAIZES &R -

AEBERIEERER 2B NABE
118,841,0007T & I £ 38 hn 78 A &) 4 2
BEABGERESZ -

S EULEEEEELE DRI
A AT R R T

2018 2017
—2-n% —E—t%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Carrying amount of non-controlling EHEFERER
interests disposed of R ERMEE 118,841 -
Consideration received from 2 U IE 1 AR i
non-controlling interests Spfanke (118,841) -
Gain on disposal recognised within equity RN ERK
B s - -
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BE_T—

NE+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

*

A)

B)

C)

On 1 May 20186,
agreement for a period of 72 months with the Group’s
Ltd. The
leased property was situated at Flat 301 and 302 of
Phase 1 Guangdong — Hong Kong Finance & Technology
Park, 6 Jinke Road, Guicheng Street, Nanhai District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. Monthly

the Group entered into a rental

associate, Guangdong Financial Leasing Co.,

rents escalated by two years. The first period was from
May 2016 to May 2018, and the monthly rent was
RMB19,000. The second period was from June 2018 to
April 2020, and the monthly rent was RMB31,000. As the
rental agreement with Guangdong Financial Leasing Co.,
Ltd was terminated since 1 November 2018, the Group
only received 10 months’ rents in 2018, amounting to
approximately HK$297,000 (2017: HK$251,000)*.

On 12 April 2017, the Group obtained an one year
short-term loan amounting to RMB33,000,000 from the
Group’s associate, Nanhai Changhai Power Company
Limited with a fixed interest rate at 2.6% per annum. This
short-term loan was returned during the year*.

On 5 December 2017, the Group obtained a three-year
loan amounting to HK$90,000,000 from the Group's
immediate holding company, Prize Rich Inc. which was
unsecured with a fixed interest rate at 3% per annum.
Interests were paid per quarter, and the principal was
repaid in full on the due date*.

The transaction constituted an exempt connected transaction under

the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4%t

38. BAEER B

*

A)

B)

C)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (continued)

*

*k

D)

E)

On 16 April 2018, the Group’s non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive Health
Technology Ltd.** (“Yibaijian”), entered into a service
agreement amounting to RMB1,060,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,256,000) with its non-controlling
interest, Shenzhen e-ling Info-Tech Co., Ltd.** (“Shenzhen
e-ling”), in which Yibaijian paid Shenzhen e-ling for the
Management of Comprehensive Elderly Care Service
in Nanhai district. During the year, the Group has paid
RMB625,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$741,000)
to Shenzhen e-ling*.

On 16 November 2018, the Group’s non-wholly
owned subsidiary, Yibaijian, entered into an agreement
amounting to RMB88,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$104,000) with its non-controlling interest, Shenzhen
E-ling, in which Yibaijian paid Shenzhen E-ling for
software security service on the Management of
Comprehensive Elderly Care Service in Nanhai district.
During the year, the Group paid the amount in full to
Shenzhen e-ling*.

The transaction constituted an exempt connected transaction under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

For identification purpose only

38. BBt F (&)

*

D)

E)

RZE—-N\FEA+ A A5EH
MIETENBRARIERSERERK
BEMRAERAR ([EEM2])H
HIEEiR s - R ETREME
MAERAR (IRIIZEZR])FR]
A AR #1,060,0007T (HERH
7 %1,256,0007T ) BIARTE & 49 - BA
TRV EZRREEREEZR
BERFEE RAFEAN AEH
ERIRYIEE % AR K625,0007T
(FEER4)/B¥ET741,0007T) * °

RZE—-N\F+—A+~ B A&
EmIEENBARSARELIE
TRERRVNEZREETE M
fR7%& R - 28 A ARES8,0007T
(FER4)/BH104,00000) * £ 2
AHEEEEERKEEFAREMR
BHEZ2REREG -RAFER -
AEBE 22BN FINETE -

ZRHBELETRUNERLHER S -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (continued)

F) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

38.

BEHRXS (&)
F) TEEBASEH

EFLEMEZEEAERFA
ZEMT

2018 2017

—2-N\& —E—tf

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Short-term employee benefits RHEERT 7,718 8,484
Post-employment employee benefits BKREERF 418 462
8,136 8,946

The remuneration of Directors and key management
personnel is proposed by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. T EMBERF

ARAZEIBEHBARAR B —N\F
toASt—RZEMNT:

Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2018 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation or

registration/ Issue of Paidup  Percentage
Name of subsidiary operation shares capital held Principal activity
A
Hifh/ B#1T 2]
i) PNCIEE EEBHY RE EHERE Btk FEEHK
Direct subsidiary
EEMBAR
China Investments Limited Hong Kong 200 Ordinary HK$1,000 100 Investment holding
shares
PERERHERAA B 200%BH  EH10007T RERR
Indirect subsidiaries
BEREAR
Airlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100  Property trading
shares
HEERERAA B0 2EER BT NEEE
Barmax Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100  Property trading
shares
BEERBERAA B8 2EEK BT NEER
Botex Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100 Property trading
shares
REEREBRATA BB 2ERK BT NXER
Canton Risen Financial Leasing Co., PRC N/A RMB270,068,000 83.34 Financial leasing
Limited* (Note)
EREEMBMEMERRLA (M) +E el AR HEME
270,068,000
Centon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100 Property trading
shares
BRERBRAA EA 2ERK BB NEEE
Charland Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100 Property trading
shares
HEREBRARA B &R BT NEEE
China Alliance Industries Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100 Property trading
shares
EREXAERAA 0 2EBR BT NEEE
China Industrial Development Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100  Investment holding
shares
hEIXERARLA BB 2ERK BT REER
China Select Small Hotel Hong Kong 9,720,000 HK$9,720,000 51 Hotel management
Union Limited Ordinary shares
HERBAMTERAR Bt 9,720,000% @M %%9,720,0007T BEEER
CIH Finance Investments Hong Kong 4 Ordinary HK$4 100 Financial Investment
Holdings Limited shares
HEEEERREZRERA B 4EER BEAT TRRE
CIH Finance Leasing Company Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary HK$1 100  Financial leasing
shares
HEmEREERAA B 1E &R BEAT MERE

For identification propose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. TEWMBERAF (&)

Place of
incorporation or

registration/ Issue of Paidup  Percentage
Name of subsidiary operation shares capital held Principal activity
A
Hifh/ B#1T 2]
i) PNCIEE EENY RE EHERE BA FEEE
Cyro Holdings Limited British Virgin 1 Ordinary shares US$1 100  Investment holding
Islands/
Hong Kong
HEERTEE 1E &R E REZR
/EE
Expert Target Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares HK$2 100  Property trading
BRERBRAA B 2ERK B2 NEEE
Greenswood Property Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares HK$2 100 Property investment
BMOEERAA BB 2EEKR BT NERE
Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco PRC N/A RMBB842,653,000 80 Investment in the
Construction Co., Ltd.* (Note) development and
construction of
industrial park
BRPERMERERAA (M)  HE TER AR# FREBREZEC
842,653,000 RE
Guangdong Sinsing Technology PRC N/A RMB5,000,000 100 Big data business
Limited* (Note)
EREAMEERRDF (M) H TR AR# REBEEH
5,000,0007t
Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive ~ PRC N/A RMB8,000,000 70  Comprehensive
Health Technology Ltd* (Note) elderly cure
service
ERSARARRBEERDA TR AR BEZEERE
(BaT) 8,000,0007T
Guilin Plaza Hotel (Note) PRC N/A US$10,400,000 100 Hotel operation
EMEERE (Fa) H TH#EA  10,400,000% T BELR
Hong Kong Lanhai Vision Hong Kong 1 Ordinary HKS$1 100 Financial leasing
Investment Limited shares
EEREESREABRAR BB 15 BB BEAT HEME
Jofra Company Limited Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary HK$1,000 100  Investment holding
shares
BA 1,000% ik 71,0007 REZR
Foshan City Nanhai Jia Shun Timber PRC N/A HK$39,800,000 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited* (Note) trading of medium
density fibreboards
BUTEEERAXERAA (M) HE TER B SEMEENER
39,800,0007T E 4R
Foshan City Nanhai Kang Sheng PRC N/A  HK$81,000,000 100 Investment Holding
Timber Company Limited* (Note)
BUTEEREAXERAA (M) HE TER B REER
81,000,0007T
Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage PRC N/A~ RMB30,000,000 100 Property investment
Investments Holdings Limited*
(Note)
FUTEEREREERAA (M) B TR AR# NERE
30,000,0007T

For identification propose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

Place of
incorporation or

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

30. FEMEB AT (&)

registration/ Issue of Paidup  Percentage
Name of subsidiary operation shares capital held Principal activity
L B 3L
Hifh/ B#1T 2]
WELREME EEBHY RE EHERE Bt TEEH
Foshan Zhong Chuang Property PRC N/A RMB2,000,000 42 Property
Service Company Limited* (Note) management
BUTREIMERBERLA (HE) +E TR AR MEERE
2,000,0007T
Kingsgrand Developments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 100 Property trading
shares
BRERBRAA B 10,000% @K 7 %10,0007T NEEE
Langmax Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100  Property trading
shares
BEXREBERRA 6 2ERR BT NEER
Lina Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100 Property trading
shares
BEFRARAA 6 2E Ak BT NEEE
Metropolitan Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100 Property trading
shares
HOBERERAA EB pE:g il BT NXER
Natural View Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Ordinary HK$100,000 100 Property trading
shares
RECEBERAA B 10,000% @M #%100,0007C NEEE
Rich Asset Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100 Property trading
shares
BNRERAERAF 6 2ERR BT NEER
Rich Horn Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100 Property trading
shares
WA BERBERAA 6 2E Ak BT NEEE
Senicon Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100 Property trading
shares
BAREBERRA EB pE:g il BT NXER
Sabrina Limited British Virgin 1 Ordinary US$1 100  Investment holding
Islands/ shares
Hong Kong
EERELHES 1E &R E REZR
/EE
Sino Sense Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100  Property trading
shares
ERERAERAA EB pE:g il BT NXER
Southern Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 100  Investment holding
shares and property
investment
BABRAA BB 10,000% @ i 7 %10,0007T REZRRMER
)
Taily International Traders Limited Hong Kong 8,000 Ordinary HK$800,000 100 Property trading
shares
AMEBRERER A A EB 8,000& @Mk /#%800,0007T NXEE
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Statements

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

30. FEMEB AT (&)

Place of
incorporation or
registration/ Issue of Paidup  Percentage
Name of subsidiary operation shares capital held Principal activity
A
gifh/ =55 2]
MELAR AR EEBHY RE EHERE Btk FEEHR
Trener Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100 Property trading
shares
FEREBRAA EA 2ERK BT NEEE
Universal Talent Development Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 Ordinary HK$2 100  Property trading
shares
FHRERBRAA £ &R BET
Zhong Chuang Xing Ke (Shenzhen) PRC N/A~ RMB150,000,000 100 Investment holding
Investments Company Limited*
(Note)
REIER (R REBR AR H TR AR# REER
(M) 150,000,0007T

Note: Wholly foreign owned enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

For identification propose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE-F—\E+-A=+—AILEE

40. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

41.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform to the current year presentation.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 21 January 2019, Sino Rock, a subsidiary of the Group,
entered into the four lease arrangements with {3 1L /&8
BB R E AR A A (Foshan City Nanhai Lianyun Investment
Co., Ltd.) (“Nanhai Lianyun”), pursuant to which Nanhai
Lianyun leased the unencumbered land use right for four
pieces of unencumbered industrial land totalling 472.98
acres (equivalent to approximately 315,313.2 square metres)
situated at FE G ILTEEE N EES LW RP L (Danzao
Logistics Centre, Danzao Town, Nanhai District, Foshan City,
the PRC) to Sino Rock, for an aggregate consideration of
approximately RMB709,161,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$819,790,000) for a term of approximately 33 years.

Further details of these land use right lease arrangements are
set out in the Group’s announcement dated 23 January 2019
and circular dated 22 February 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

40. Lk B F

41

ETHERFELBINNAAFEZ
EX] v

BEWREE

W_ZE-—NF—A-+—0 K&EBZ
FRRIPERBEBILTREEHERE
BRAT ([FEEHE])ET Y THMKHE
EWne Bt EgsE D AN R
LTS RS ES TR O 2 IR
HEBMES H£K A472.98E (HE R
#9815, 3182 F AR MEERAETE
Rz EEEAETIERE TR ES
B mREHNAEARKET709,161,0007T
(F8 & R #4975 #819,790,0007T ) * 4 Hf
#9334 -

ERALtmERAREHEEZE -2 FHE
IR ASERRA-T—NEF— A
Tt =ZHBz2AERZZE—-NFZAR
ZtZHZEK-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

41. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

On 21 February 2019, Canton Risen, a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the Finance Lease arrangements with the
Lessees, BILMMEEERMF*EEBR AR (Foshan City
Nanhai Hengyuan Property Management Co., Ltd.) and f# LU
MEER XEBRREKEEAER QA (Foshan City Nanhai
District Dali Town Yuansheng Water Treatment Co., Ltd.) in
relation to the transfer of the unencumbered ownership and
lease back of designated pipelines for sewage collection
systems, to acquire the ownership of the assets from the
Lessees for RMB140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$163,660,000), which would be leased back to the Lessees
for their use and possession for a term of 5 years. Such
amount should be payable within 1 month from the date of
the Finance Lease, i.e. on 21 March 2019 or before to the
Lessees.

Further details of this Finance Lease are set out in the Group’s
announcement dated 21 February 2019 and circular dated 13
March 2019.

On 26 February 2019 and 27 February 2019, Nanhai
Canmanage, a subsidiary of the Group, entered into the
Supplemental Loan Agreements with the individual third
parties, FRILTMEERBEREEBR A (‘EERXE") and
HLUTESHERE (EFR)ERAA ('BEBERE"
respectively, in which the loan repayment periods for the two
separate unsecured loans since March 2018, amounting to
RMB40,000,000 from 8% # and RMB30,000,000 from &
YB3 18 & - were extended by 2 years to March 2022 and any
other terms ond conditions of the loans remained unchanged.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

41. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

On 7 March 2019, Sino Rock, a subsidiary of the Group,
entered into the lease arrangements with 1L /&8 & &+
JHIE+ &R A Al (Foshan City Nanhai District Danzao
Town Land Resources Development Ltd.) (“Danzao Town Land
Resources Development”), pursuant to which Danzao Town
Land Resources Development leased the unencumbered
land use right for four pieces of unencumbered industrial
land totalling 699.55 acres (equivalent to approximately
466,367.8 square metres) situated at F1 B # L5 EE R
FEE ALY RPN (Danzao Logistics Centre, Danzao
Town, Nanhai District, Foshan City, the PRC) to Sino Rock,
for an aggregate amount of rents and management fees of
approximately RMB1,049,933,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,228,421,000) for terms ranging from approximately 32 to
34 years.

Further details of these land use right lease arrangements are
set out in the Group’s announcement dated 7 March 2019.

Meanwhile, Sino Rock, a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into the acquisition agreement between Sino Rock and fi#
LWmEEEAEIWAEREESHAEFR A2 A (Foshan
City Nanhai District Danzao Xianhuwan Commercial Plaza
Development Co., Ltd.) and & 1% {E (Huang Peijia) in relation to
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in ff L Tl 47 & & 2
B BR A 7] (Foshan City Xianhuwan Development Co., Ltd) for a
consideration of RMB185,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$216,450,000). This target company was set up for the sole
purpose of, after the entering into of the acquisition agreement,
holding the target properties namely, Blocks A, B, C, D, E and
F of Xianhuwan Commercial Plaza with a gross floor area of
approximately 28,552.74 square metre situated at No.3 Yang
Guang Road, Danzao Xianhu Resort Area, Nanhai District,
Foshan City.

41.

WMEWEREE (2)

R-ZZE—NAFZAtR AEBZTA
ARERBEBILTREEESLELS
& RFAZE QA ([T E LT E R A
B THERS Bt St
BRI AR LTSRS T
BEAEYRP Lz OEEERAEEN A
699.558) (#8 & 7 49466,367.8F 75 K)
WEEEARTIXERAM  BEEBEL
MERAETHERR - HekERBESE
AR ¥1,049,933,0007T (FHE KL
75 #51,228,421,0007T ) * FHAT F 432
B34 -

BRAL T ERERE ZE—FFE
FERAEEARAR_T-—NEF=A+H

/N

B AEBZ FTRRPEREEGFEL
MEBEMIUNEmERESRERR
NEINREBERI L T RERZE AR B
W ERLTILAEEXERARI R
PR #E - B B A R ¥185,000,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

41. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

Further details of this acquisition are set out in the Group’s
announcement dated 7 March 2019.

On 12 March 2019, in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the convertible bond, the Group and its major
shareholder, Prize Rich Inc. entered into the extension deed
to extend the maturity date of the outstanding convertible
bond in the principal amount of HK$166,232,000 by 5 years
from 13 October 2019 to 13 October 2024 (i.e. the extended
CB maturity date), with all the terms and conditions of the
outstanding convertible bond unchanged.

Further details of this extension deed of the convertible bond
are set out in the Group’s announcement dated 12 March
2019.

On 25 March 2019, Nanhai Canmanage, a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the Capital Injection Agreement with &
HEmBEITRBER AT (Guangdong Nanhai Chemical
Factory Co., Ltd.*) (“Nanhai Chemical’), ff 1L 7 m /& [& B %=
BELEEEABM AR (Foshan City Nanhai District Lianhua
Asset Operation & Management Co., Ltd.*) (“Nanhai Lianhua”)
and Tiannuo in relation to the Capital Injection on the basis of
their respective shareholding proportion in Tiannuo. Pursuant
to the Capital Injection Agreement, Nanhai Canmanage has
agreed to inject an amount of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$46,760,000) to the capital of Tiannuo
by 3 installments before 30 September 2019, in which the
first installment amounting to RMB15,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$17,535,000) is completed before 31
March 2019. Upon completion of the entire Capital Injection,
the percentage shareholding interest of Nanhai Canmanage,
Nanhai Lianhua and Nanhai Chemical in Tiannuo will remain
unchanged at 49%, 2% and 49% respectively.

Further details of this Capital Injection are set out in the
Group’s announcement dated 25 March 2019.

For identification propose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. AR A BBk L G#E
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RB AR ZRE 23,607 23,607
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE WK BB A R IR 1,487,748 1,278,730
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMBITER 77,755 63,963
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 247 26,283
1,565,750 1,368,976
Current liabilities RERE
Bank loan IRITE R 783,038 546,826
Other payables H fth JE A FRIB 82,112 80,061
Convertible notes B 152,226 -
1,017,376 626,887
Net current assets REBEEFEH 548,374 742,089
Total assets less current liabilities MEERARBEE 571,981 765,696
Capital and reserves BRI E
Share capital fig A% 171,233 171,233
Reserves ] 310,748 368,877
Equity attributable to owners of =B
the Company 481,981 540,110
Non-current liability EREBEE
Convertible notes B - 135,586
Loan from immediate holding company BEERARZER 90,000 90,000
90,000 225,586
571,981 765,696

RRARMBRARER T —NF=A
“TRBEEEESHENBENR I

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March

2019 and are signed on its behalf by: HATESEKREREE:
HE XIANGMING LIN PINGWU
i HER
Director % Director %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. AR A BBk L G#E

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continuead) (#&)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AATREZEE
Convertible
Share note equity Accumulated
Premium reserve losses Total
ARBREE
% 17 )% 8 EEREE RitEE mat
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2017 RN—_E—+F—HF—H 725,199 34,700 (369,881) 390,018
Loss for the year rEEER - - (21,141) (21,141)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+tF
1 January 2018 +ZA=+-HBEK
—E-N\¥—-HF-—H 725,199 34,700 (391,022) 368,877
Loss for the year KEEERE - - (58,129) (58,129)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZBE-N\E
+=A=+-8H 725,199 34,700 (449,151) 310,748

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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43. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share
and is not attributable but may be applied in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to the
shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus shares
or in providing for the premiums payable on repurchases
of shares.

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserve represents general reserve and
enterprise expansion fund which are set up by
subsidiaries established and operated in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) by way of appropriation from
the profit after taxation in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC. The rate of appropriation
of the general reserve and enterprise expansion fund
is subject to the decision of the board of Directors of
the PRC subsidiaries, but the minimum appropriation
rate for the general reserve is 10% of the profit after
taxation for the each year, until when the accumulated
balance reaches 50% of the total registered capital of the
subsidiary. Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
of the PRC, if approvals are obtained from the relevant
government authorities, the general reserve can be used
in setting off accumulated losses or to increase the
capital, and the enterprise expansion fund can be used to
increase the capital.

ook BV 285 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

43. B ZMHEREN

(i)

(ii)

g EEAZBESREELZ
ERBITRODMELE ZRE  %F
BETT DI EARBABAZ
F(E LB AR AIRABUR AL
AR ARBBRREITZ R
TR ©

EEQR

o

EERERERFEBESRERE
RES RREPEARANE
(TFEDRIEEEZHER
A REBEFBEEREN FERR
E B FRTIR B R B SRR &
VoHBEEERERERES 2
AUEREOTEHNBRARAZES
QBT ERHEBESZRERRL
EREFERBERENI0% BEER
BEBRED RN B AR Z &
BARB0% /3 1k - IRIEH B A BED
FOERBE FRRERBNER
#oE - RIFBES A BIERE R
BIEIGEMER MEXBRES
AR AEIBINE AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

43. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Hotel properties revaluation reserve

Hotel properties are revalued annually based on
independent professional valuations on an open market
value basis. Changes in the values of hotel properties are
dealt with as movement in the hotel properties revaluation
reserve. If the reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation
deficit, the excess of the deficit is changed to the profit
and loss account.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the foreign subsidiaries of the Group whose
reporting currency is not Hong Kong dollars. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
of foreign currencies set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Convertible note equity reserve

Convertible note equity reserve represents the value of
the unexercised equity component of convertible bond
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy of Convertible note set out in Note
4 to the consolidation financial statements.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represented additional contributions made
by the shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries and,
in case of an acquisition of an additional non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary, the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the non-controlling interest acquired.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ 88 3 #5¢ Jit 45 FR 2 5]
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(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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Five Years Financial Summary

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+-HLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mE  —E-RF —E-RF T-tF ZB-N\E
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T BT BT T BET T
RESULTS ON
Revenue EEH 32,448 39,275 24,554 29,846 79,550
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERFN/ (FHR) 81,038 5,773 (2,703) 27,630 55,815
Discontinued operations loss 2= & IF & & ¥ 75
for the year rEFEE - - (1,628) - -
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERDAERA
attributable to owners EIEEF/ (ER) 81,038 5,773 (4,331) 31,266 42,383
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF,/ (EE)
Basic N HKB T HK# T (HKE T HKB 7T HK% 7t
6.22 centsfll  0.34 centsfl 0.25centfll)  1.83centsfll  2.48centsfll
Diluted i HK% 7T HK# T (HK# T HK 7T HK# T
6.22 centsfll  0.34 centsfll 0.25centfll)  1.83centsfli  2.48centsll
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+-RLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“F-mF —EF-hf ZE-RF ZEF-tf& Z¥-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T BT T BETT BETR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥2EREAE
Total assets EEHBE 1,458,734 1,352,241 1,316,578 2,277 412 3,460,537
Total liabilities BELE (463,152) (377,822) (385,291)  (1,099,553)  (2,129,217)
Non-controlling interests R R - - - (157,625) (338,205)
Equity contributable to ARRHEA AEHERS
owners 995,582 974,419 931,287 1,020,234 993,115
* The result for each of the year 2014-2015 have not been represented  * ZEMET-RAFEFEEVERD

for the discontinued operation.

BIMREEETED
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Particulars of Major Properties

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31 December W _-_Z—N\E+-A=+—H AEEHEFH

2018 are as follows: ZEBYEERFROT
Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERES TR 2 B
AR/ Bk HEER kil HEZHE ERBR  THEH
(s.m.)
(FAXK)
Hotel properties
BEYFE
Guilin Plaza, 20 Li Jiang Lu 100 Medium Hotel 29,746 Existing N/A
Guilin, Guangxi,
The PRC.
F B B 7 AT R BR 100 iy 29746  HE TiEf
205 EMELLE R
Properties
/ES
Unit No.1, 14 & 15 on 5th Floor, 100 Medium Commercial 429 Existing N/A
Wing On Plaza,
No.62 Mody Road,
Kowloon.
Bk 100 GES 429 HAE TEA
EQ0Y
3 186257
KR E5H5E
1 14R15%E
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Name/Location

LYk

Effective
% held
ERER
Btk  HEER

Category
of lease

Type

<Rl

Total gross
floor area

on completion
TEREZ
BEZHR
(s.m.)

(F%)

Particulars of Major Properties

Stage

ERER

Expected year
of completion
B
TEREH

Properties (Continued)

EXED

12th to 13th Floor of
Block A, Phase 1
Guangdong - Hong Kong

Finance & Technology Park

Guicheng Street,
Nanhai District
Foshan City,
Guangdong Province
The PRC
hEERE
IR E R
AT 8 £ R BRO
BERBREIE
12-1318

Investment properties

RENF

17th Floor

SingHo Finance
Building,

Nos.166/168 Gloucester
Road,

Hong Kong.

BB

ELiTE

166/168%:
ENRBREITE

100 Medium

100 A

100 Medium

100

Commercial

SRS

Commercial

SRS

3,048

3,048

112

112

Existing

BE

Existing

BE

N/A

NER

N/A

NER
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Particulars of Major Properties

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
EBREE TR 2 B
2B/ Bk HEER E<Fi] BEZHE ERBR  ZHEH
(s.m.)

(F%)

Investment properties (Continued)

RENF (B)

1st to 11th Floor of 100 Medium Commercial 15,818 Existing N/A
Block A, Phase 1

Guangdong - Hong Kong

Finance & Technology Park

Guicheng Street,

Nanhai District

Foshan City,

Guangdong Province

The PRC

hEERE 100 5 EES 15818 HAE TiEfR
IR E R

AT 8 £ RO

BERBREIE

11118

Proerties held for sale

Level 1-4 of Block B 100 Medium Commerical/ 6,020 Existing N/A
and Levels 2-3 of Block C of Residential

Shantou Commercial Plaza at

the junction of Jinsha Road East

and Huashan Road,

Shantou Special Economic Zone,

Guangdong Province,

The PRC

TEERE 100 BE/ 6020 %A TER
WEER B R Fx

TYRBEFEIR

MIEEETSE YN

BEE1-418 R CRE2-318
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